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 39 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 40 

Council convened in the Coastal Ballroom of the Courtyard 41 

Marriott, Gulfport, Mississippi, Wednesday afternoon, June 16, 42 

2010, and was called to order at 1:30 p.m. by Chairman Bob 43 

Shipp. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN BOB SHIPP:  Good afternoon.  My name is Bob Shipp and 46 

as Chairman of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council, I 47 

welcome you all.  Members of the public will be permitted to 48 
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present oral statements in accordance with the schedule 1 

published in the agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you 2 

desire to address the council.  Please give written statements 3 

to the council staff, who are sitting at the tables on the side. 4 

 5 

The 1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all 6 

oral or written statements to include a brief description of the 7 

background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 8 

statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 9 

the source and date of such information. 10 

 11 

It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 12 

to the council false information regarding any manner the 13 

council is considering in the course of carrying out the 14 

Fisheries Act.   15 

 16 

If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that 17 

you keep them on silent or vibrating or turn them off during the 18 

council and committee sessions.  A digital recording is used for 19 

the public record and therefore, for the purpose of voice 20 

identification, each member is requested to identify himself or 21 

herself, starting on my left. 22 

 23 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi. 24 

 25 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 26 

 27 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama, proxy for Vernon Minton. 28 

 29 

MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 30 

 31 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 32 

 33 

MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 34 

 35 

MR. MIKE RAY:  Mike Ray, Texas. 36 

 37 

MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 38 

 39 

LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard, District 8. 40 

 41 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 42 

 43 

MR. DAMON MCKNIGHT:  Damon McKnight, Louisiana. 44 

 45 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, the precautionary closed 46 

state of safe seafood, to make sure that all of our public eats 47 

safe seafood in this country. 48 
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 1 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 2 

 3 

MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA General Counsel, 4 

Southeast Region. 5 

 6 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 7 

 8 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, Southeast Fisheries Science 9 

Center. 10 

 11 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 12 

 13 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council liaison. 14 

 15 

MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 16 

 17 

MR. BILL TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, Florida. 18 

 19 

MS. JULIE MORRIS:  Julie Morris, Florida. 20 

 21 

MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 22 

Commission. 23 

 24 

(Break in audio recording.  Julie Morris is presented with 25 

council gift.) 26 

 27 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next item is the Adoption of the Agenda.  30 

It’s listed as Tab A, Number 5 and I think it’s Number 4, but in 31 

any case, we have an agenda.  Are there any additions to the 32 

agenda? 33 

 34 

MR. PEARCE:  I would like to add, under Other Business, the 35 

discussion of the inability of a boat to transfer the reef fish 36 

or highly migratory pelagic fish permit to a vessel with a COI 37 

of more passengers than that permit will allow.  I just want to 38 

discuss that. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce.  We will add that to the 41 

agenda.  Dr. Bortone, do you have that down?  Okay.  Ms. 42 

Williams, did you have an addition to the agenda? 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I would like to add discussion of crew sizes 45 

on vessels and I would like to add an emergency action to open 46 

areas for commercial harvest due to the oil spill and I would 47 

also like to add something to where we can discuss ITQ shares 48 
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that will not be harvested due to the oil spill and also 1 

potential harvest of red drum in federal waters.  I know that’s 2 

a long list, but I’ve had a lot of requests from a lot of our 3 

different constituencies. 4 

 5 

There was one other request, and I’m not certain really where to 6 

put it, and that is also about some discussion about maybe 7 

having some type of a dividing line so that our recreational 8 

industry can choose different measures to be regulated under.  I 9 

had that request from Mr. Jim Smarr and so if we could have some 10 

discussion about that too, I would appreciate it.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Williams, and I want to add an 13 

item too, a discussion of possible emergency action we could 14 

take to extend the recreational red snapper season beyond the 15 

September 30 deadline, contingent on the ramifications from this 16 

oil spill, and discuss what legal options we have.  I would like 17 

to add that, Dr. Bortone. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Kay, one of your items was something about 20 

emergency action to possibly open some commercial fisheries and 21 

is that what you said? 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Open some commercial fishing areas or fishing 24 

areas for the commercial industry, such as the guys in Florida 25 

that are fishing red grouper and they’ve had a lot of their 26 

areas taken away and they wanted some consideration for fishing 27 

in different areas. 28 

 29 

MR. PERRET:  I would just like to say open fishing areas.  If we 30 

can open anything, I would like to open it for whoever can catch 31 

a fish, because we’ve got enough problems.  Is that okay with 32 

you? 33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely and that would have come up in the 35 

discussion, but thank you, Corky. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I want to alert both the council and the 38 

audience that when we first set this council agenda that we set 39 

aside quite a bit of time for public testimony and planned it to 40 

go later than the usual hour. 41 

 42 

However, that was before the oil crisis and I know a lot of 43 

people who had planned to attend are not here and so I just want 44 

to alert everybody that we may make some modifications to the 45 

agenda and maybe address some of the new business late this 46 

afternoon or move some of the committee reports up, if in fact 47 

public testimony doesn’t take as much time as we had originally 48 
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planned. 1 

 2 

MR. SAPP:  An additional item under Other Business and it will 3 

be a real quick one.  It’s got to do with Reef Fish Amendment 28 4 

and I’m going to ask that we instruct Cathy and staff to do 5 

whatever is necessary so that we can carry over into 2011 the 6 

money necessary to deal with it when we finally get the time to. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Sapp.  With that, the next item 9 

on the agenda is the Approval of Minutes.  That’s Tab A, I think 10 

Number 5, even though we’ve got Number 6 down here.  Do I have a 11 

motion to approve the minutes? 12 

 13 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 14 

 15 

MR. GRIMES:  Just one change or actually two changes.  On page 16 

151, line 12, insert the word “not” between “has” and “ended” 17 

and that’s actually Dr. Crabtree’s statement, but I have 18 

confirmed it and also, on page 166, line 26, “SSC” I believe 19 

should be “ABC” and that’s actually Mr. Atran’s statement and so 20 

he might want to look at that and confirm it.  Thank you, Mr. 21 

Chairman. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Grimes.  Any other additions or 24 

corrections to the minutes?  Hearing none, do I have a motion to 25 

accept the minutes?  A second?  Any objections?  Hearing none, 26 

the minutes as modified are adopted.  The next item is a 27 

Briefing on the Oil Spill and I think, Dr. Crabtree, are you up 28 

for this one? 29 

 30 

BRIEFING ON OIL SPILL 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  We had a discussion of this on Monday and we 33 

don’t want to rehash any of that, do we?  Really the only new 34 

thing I have to bring to your attention is that we did change 35 

the closed area this morning and the northern portion of the 36 

closed area was extended to the east, to the Panama City area, 37 

and then it sort of cuts back diagonally and goes offshore. 38 

 39 

There was oil showing up in most all of the trajectories moving 40 

east towards Panama City and that is posted on our website and 41 

will be effective at 6:00 P.M. eastern time and 5:00 P.M. 42 

central time.  Unless there are any questions, I don’t really 43 

have anything to bring up that we haven’t talked about on Monday 44 

or at the Q&A and some other things. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, I have a question for maybe you and Bill 47 

Teehan.  When Mississippi and especially Alabama were impacted 48 
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and federal waters were closed, our state waters only three 1 

miles out followed pretty quickly.  Since Florida has a nine-2 

mile territorial sea, is there interaction between your agency 3 

and Florida to address this or are you all just operating 4 

independently? 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’re talking about all of this and keeping each 7 

other informed of what the other is doing, but obviously the 8 

federal closure is extended considerably further to the east 9 

than what state waters is and so Bill will have to talk about 10 

their criteria and what they’re doing. 11 

 12 

MR. TEEHAN:  We are coordinating with NOAA Fisheries.  We’re 13 

lagging behind in our closures so far.  The only state water 14 

closure we have is the existing one that is about three-quarters 15 

of Escambia County.  We are closing on visible sightings of oil.  16 

I’ve got an email -- 17 

 18 

(There is a gap in the audio recording.) 19 

 20 

MR. PERRET:  -- there’s just not enough equipment to handle 21 

something this massive and where these two boats end up, I don’t 22 

know, but I hope they stay off of Pascagoula, Bill. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Corky, I’ve actually directed one of those vessels 25 

to dump its bladder at your house, but they can’t find it. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other comments or questions regarding the 28 

oil spill?  Hearing none, we will go ahead and begin public 29 

testimony.  We do have a bit of a glitch up here.  I was not 30 

being totally facetious when I said our equipment was down, but 31 

Dr. Bortone has agreed to serve as the time control here.   32 

 33 

Normally we have the green, orange, and red lights, but what 34 

we’re going to do is ask our speakers to come to the podium and 35 

at the two-minute mark, he’ll give a little ring on the bell and 36 

then at three minutes, he’ll continue to ring until you quit 37 

talking. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s going to be a little more 40 

difficult than that.  We’ve got the two-minute timer here.  41 

Julie has let us borrow her new gift, which is two minutes.  42 

Look up and you can see and that’s going to be the two-minute 43 

warning and then one minute will come up and Phil has offered to 44 

help me out here to pull anybody down if they go on for like an 45 

hour or two.  We’ll try to keep everybody on time and please 46 

bear with us.  We’re trying to improvise here with the timer. 47 

 48 



8 

 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Our first speaker is going to be Dennis O’Hern, 1 

talking about the red grouper ACL. 2 

 3 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 4 

 5 

MR. DENNIS O’HERN:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m Dennis O’Hern, 6 

Executive Director of Fishing Rights Alliance.  Regarding the 7 

red grouper ACL, we’re concerned, as we’ve stated in our 8 

litigation that we’ve filed, that you’re putting the cart before 9 

the horse and you’re setting the limits based on the still 10 

fatally flawed and unrepaired data. 11 

 12 

We’re concerned that no economic effects are projected onto the 13 

recreational sector based on any of this.  I read the little 14 

paragraph and it says nothing that you do is going to change it 15 

and I think my members would disagree with that.  Thank you. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions for Dennis?  Hearing none, the 18 

next speaker is Pam Anderson. 19 

 20 

MS. PAM ANDERSON:  I was going to talk about several things and 21 

so should I go ahead and just do that now? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, Pam, go ahead. 24 

 25 

MS. ANDERSON:  Chairman Shipp, Dr. Crabtree, and council 26 

members, thank you for this opportunity to comment on the issues 27 

before us.  Starting with the oil spill, thank you for your 28 

efforts to protect our fisheries and our way of life and as Dr. 29 

Crabtree said yesterday, there are three components to this 30 

issue, people going broke, cleaning up, and funding the 31 

monitoring. 32 

 33 

While the SBA loan program is a good idea in theory, people are 34 

not taking advantage of it because they do not know when or how 35 

they will pay it back.  I think Johnny Greene’s suggestion of 36 

having our loans paid back by BP is a good one.  You could have 37 

our BP claims used as collateral.  SBA should, in turn, be paid 38 

back in full by BP and not tax dollars. 39 

 40 

I know that this is not exactly a NOAA issue, but yet it does 41 

affect this whole problem with the oil spill.  I have emailed 42 

you the answer that I received back from Senator Nelson’s office 43 

regarding that matter. 44 

 45 

What Corky said about the cleanup is true also, about the 46 

habitat being the key concern.  Possibly a task force of 47 

independent scientists and environmentalists could be appointed 48 
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to test all the many remedies so many people have suggested.  I 1 

know that you all have your plates full without doing that.  If 2 

one works to clean the oil off the water or out of the marsh 3 

without harming the environment and wildlife, it will be worth 4 

it. 5 

 6 

I will continue to request funding for proper monitoring of our 7 

fishery through days at sea research and sampling and ask that 8 

it be four times the present annual amount over the next ten 9 

years, so researchers will know the true impact of the spill and 10 

hopefully watch the fisheries recover. 11 

 12 

We will continue to request cooperative research involving 13 

commercial and for-hire fishers to be implemented.  They have a 14 

lot to offer the process and they need the work and considering 15 

the closure of seasons on groupers and amberjacks, it is best 16 

for the recreational sector to have them open when red snapper 17 

is closed.  Their habitats are not always the same and so 18 

discards will be low.  That will give us something to offer 19 

recreational anglers for a longer period of time. 20 

 21 

I presented the Florida reef fish endorsement proposal offered 22 

by CCGF to the FWC at its April meeting.  I have given each of 23 

you a copy.  It is a simple, inexpensive plan that will provide 24 

a universe of actual recreational reef fish anglers a database 25 

for use by researchers for phone surveys of those who actually 26 

access the reef fish fishery. 27 

 28 

The registration will provide contact information and 29 

information on targeted species for each angler.  Also in the 30 

proposal is a web-based recreational angler data reporting 31 

system which, when implemented, can provide number of anglers 32 

per vessel, license number, hours fished, area fished, and 33 

harvest info with disposition. 34 

 35 

By using this method for data collection, the fishery will 36 

remain more accessible to all those who wish to fish and not 37 

just those who can afford it.  The proposal was provided for 38 

discussion and one conference was held in late April and others 39 

are planned when the spill crisis allows it. 40 

 41 

Please consider this information as an attempt to bring the 42 

recreational sector into accountability willingly and enhance 43 

the accuracy of harvest data for the reef fish species in the 44 

Gulf.  Thank you. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Pam.  Any questions?   47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Ms. Anderson.  I appreciate your 1 

comments and your comments about the habitat.  This morning, the 2 

council -- We didn’t make a motion, but I guess we concurred 3 

with the staff’s recommendation that on June 29th we’re going to 4 

have our Ecosystem Advisory Panel meet and some of the items we 5 

suggested for their agenda are habitat, sargassum, larval, egg 6 

state, and so on and so forth.  Thank you for your comments. 7 

 8 

MS. ANDERSON:  You’re very welcome. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anyone else?  Thank you, Pam.  Dennis is back 11 

up on amberjack.   12 

 13 

MR. O’HERN:  For the record, Dennis O’Hern, Executive Director.  14 

By the way, council, thank you for the opportunity to address 15 

you all.  Regarding amberjack, the recreational effort figures 16 

are so obviously wrong. 17 

 18 

I was taking a look at some of the landings and amberjack target 19 

trips went up by over 50 percent from 2006 to 2009.  65 percent 20 

of the trips plunged into -- Hold on here, guys.  I’m sorry, but 21 

I need my glasses now.  It’s plunges the state into -- While the 22 

state plunged into the deepest economic recession since World 23 

War II, according to the figures we went up 65 percent in our 24 

landings. 25 

 26 

The FRA contends that the fatally flawed MRFSS estimates are 27 

dead wrong and that amberjack trips are below 2006 levels.  If 28 

you recall, Florida has been still extremely affected by the 29 

economic downturn. 30 

 31 

The overestimation of effort is the primary cause of the 32 

increase of amberjack landings.  To move forward based on such 33 

flawed data will surely wreak havoc on the recreational sector.  34 

It would be a tragedy causing undue damage and harm to the 35 

entire fishery and its infrastructure. 36 

 37 

The recreational sector has long advocated a size increase over 38 

a closure.  That this option is being ignored only highlights 39 

what appears to be a prevalent anti-fishing agenda.  The 40 

commercial thirty-six-inch minimum size should be considered for 41 

the recreational sector before any closure or bag limit 42 

reduction. 43 

 44 

As we heard on the grouper stats yesterday, I believe it was, 45 

even if you went up in size of grouper for the commercials, you 46 

still reduced overall take.  Why do we continue to believe that 47 

the fatally flawed data, which defies reality and even common 48 
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sense, should be used to drive this closure?   1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions for Dennis?  Thank you, Dennis.  3 

Next is Richard Waites.  After Richard will be Michael Miglini. 4 

 5 

MR. RICHARD WAITES:  You guys know who I am, right?  I’m Richard 6 

Waites and what I was doing last year at this time, I was put 7 

out of business.  A thirty-one-year marriage gone and a home in 8 

Tennessee gone and you know why?  Because you wouldn’t cut us no 9 

slack. 10 

 11 

You can take 200 hooks and a mile of gear and I know you don’t 12 

want to hear it, Roy, but you’re going to hear it.  You can take 13 

two miles or gear or one mile of gear and 200 hooks and you 14 

won’t hurt a turtle. 15 

 16 

You know it’s funny that last year it was turtle, turtle, turtle 17 

and you ain’t heard a word about a turtle in this meeting, for 18 

two days.  What happened to protecting the turtles?  You won’t 19 

protect me as a fisherman and you won’t protect me as a United 20 

States citizen and so now you’ve got to protect me.  I’m a 21 

turtle. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I won’t ask if there are any questions.  24 

Michael Miglini, followed by David Krebs. 25 

 26 

MR. MICHAEL MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and I’m really 27 

not exactly sure how to follow that.  I’m a little intimidated.  28 

I’ve got a green shirt on.  Anyway, my first issue is to talk 29 

about a COI issue and the ability to transfer a charterboat 30 

permit onto a vessel with a COI. 31 

 32 

Currently, if the person who has an inspected vessel wants to 33 

obtain a charterboat permit to fish in the federal waters of the 34 

Gulf of Mexico and their COI says a greater passenger capacity 35 

and they can’t find a permit or can’t afford a permit of the 36 

passenger capacity that their COI is, National Marine Fisheries 37 

will not transfer that charterboat permit onto their vessel 38 

unless they reduce their COI for all purposes and not just 39 

fishing. 40 

 41 

In the past, National Marine Fisheries has transferred permits 42 

onto vessels by allowing the vessel to have a provisional note 43 

added to the COI that said that while the vessel is fishing that 44 

the passenger capacity is reduced to the passenger capacity of 45 

the permit, of the fishing permit, which allowed the vessel to 46 

go out and do dolphin watching, sightseeing tours, bird 47 

watching, things like that. 48 
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 1 

Currently, the policy is to make that vessel reduce its COI for 2 

all activities and that does two things.  It makes it difficult 3 

for an inspected vessel with a charterboat/headboat permit on it 4 

to do other things, because they can’t do it profitably. 5 

 6 

It also, in some cases, encourages the boat to run with a lot 7 

more fishermen, anglers, on the boat in state waters trips, to 8 

just run like twenty-five people on state water trips, whereas 9 

if it had a fifteen-passenger federal permit, it would be 10 

restricted to only carry fifteen passengers while fishing in 11 

state or federal waters. 12 

 13 

The other issue is on data collection and I would like to just 14 

put another word in for data collection and possibly consider 15 

having a data-collection-specific team, because right now we’re 16 

sharing resources with a lot of overburdened people at National 17 

Marine Fisheries and in the scientific community, with this oil 18 

spill especially, and I think some data-collection-specific 19 

people would really help us out a lot. 20 

 21 

I also wanted to endorse or agree with the removal of the crew 22 

size limit for dual-permitted commercial and charterboats.  I 23 

think that was a rule that was put in place a long time ago, 24 

when things were considerably different, and I don’t believe it 25 

applies anymore.  Also, I wanted to say, lastly, but certainly 26 

not least, thank you to Julie Morris for nine great years.  27 

That’s it. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  We have a couple of 30 

questions. 31 

 32 

MR. PEARCE:  Mike, have you discussed your COI problem with the 33 

Coast Guard and if so, what was their response? 34 

 35 

MR. MIGLINI:  I’ve discussed the COI issue with the Coast Guard 36 

several times and from many years ago when we would send a COI 37 

in and the Coast Guard -- Let’s say a vessel, for example, had a 38 

100-passenger COI out to a hundred miles, but could only find a 39 

seventy-five-passenger permit. 40 

 41 

What we would just simply do is have the vessel owner go into 42 

the Coast Guard’s MSO and say on the back, under the note 43 

section of the COI, to please write a sentence that says while 44 

fishing under the authority of these permits or it could just 45 

say while fishing of any kind, on any trip in which fishing 46 

occurs, the passenger capacity of the vessel is reduced to the 47 

capacity of the fishing permit. 48 
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 1 

The Coast Guard said to me, time after time, that reducing the 2 

capacity of a COI is really a non-issue.  It’s increasing the 3 

capacity of a COI that requires a lot of review and everything.  4 

Then I’ve also asked the Coast Guard about enforcement, because 5 

some people have said that there’s an issue with enforcing it. 6 

 7 

What I’ve received back from most of the Coast Guard people that 8 

I’ve spoken to, basically all of them, is that the COI will say 9 

so many passengers on inland waters and so many passengers for 10 

twenty miles and this many passengers to a hundred miles and 11 

this many passengers for scuba diving.  It has all these 12 

different passenger capacities and crew requirements for 13 

different operational situations, nighttime, overnight, over 14 

twelve hours, under twelve hours. 15 

 16 

Something that is this vessel fishing is pretty straightforward 17 

and easy to see.  There’s people fishing on the vessel and 18 

there’s fish on the vessel and there’s tackle out on the vessel.  19 

What I’ve heard from the Coast Guard is it’s not an enforcement 20 

issue and it’s not an issue to simply put on the back of the COI 21 

that if it’s fishing that the passenger capacity would be 22 

reduced. 23 

 24 

What I’ve understood is that if the Coast Guard is concerned 25 

about passenger capacity or concerned that they’re going to 26 

inspect a vessel, they’re going to inspect the COI when they do 27 

that inspection and see if it’s operating under a COI. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  If the Coast Guard is all right with it, where is 30 

your problem? 31 

 32 

MR. MIGLINI:  Right now, the issue is just that I think it -- 33 

Shepherd I think has some concerns about it and understandably 34 

and I understand that the rules were written that way for a 35 

reason then and I respect that and I just think that the rules 36 

now don’t serve us like they used to. 37 

 38 

There’s vessels that are trying to do something else other than 39 

fish.  If a person has a vessel and they have a fifty-passenger 40 

permit, but they could get their COI increased up to seventy-41 

five or they can change boats and have a hundred-passenger 42 

vessel and just fish fifty, then that crew and that operation of 43 

that business could buy a different boat and fish their fifty 44 

people on their however many day season they’ve got, but the 45 

rest of the year they can go do bird watching and sightseeing 46 

trips. 47 

 48 
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Right now, the rule, as it’s being enforced now through the 1 

permit transfer process, is forcing these operators to stay in 2 

this fishery.  It’s forcing them to do the only thing they can 3 

do profitably with that passenger capacity, which is to run 4 

people out and put them on the resource and drop a bunch of 5 

hooks.  Hopefully they catch the one fish that there’s an open 6 

season for. 7 

 8 

MR. PEARCE:  All right, Mike.  That’s fine and we’ll address it 9 

a little later. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  Could you -- What was the numbers that may have 12 

been thrown around for additional crew when a vessel, a dual-13 

permitted vessel, when he’s commercially fishing?  Did you all 14 

have any idea? 15 

 16 

MR. MIGLINI:  I don’t think that there really should be a 17 

restriction.  The big issue on this is there’s two kinds of 18 

operational situations that I’ve heard from a lot of people that 19 

this applies to and one is a big boat. 20 

 21 

If I’ve got a sixty-five-foot charterboat or a fifty-five-foot 22 

charterboat and I want to commercial fish the boat, I should be 23 

able to take the number of people that I think is safe and 24 

required to run the boat.  If it’s a big boat, it might take 25 

more than three people. 26 

 27 

The other situation is if there’s diving and spearfishing on the 28 

boat -- Spearfishing, I believe, is arguably the most selective 29 

and low bycatch way to put effort on the fishery.  Let’s say an 30 

individual has a thirty-six-foot boat and they want to charter 31 

and spearfish commercially, but they can only have three people 32 

on that boat, that creates an unsafe situation while they’re 33 

scuba diving and so it makes it difficult to have the proper 34 

number of people to safely operate. 35 

 36 

If a boat wants to spearfish eight people on the boat and 37 

they’re commercial fishing, then when they leave that port, they 38 

are declaring commercial.  They have a VMS on that boat and 39 

every hour their position is pinged in. 40 

 41 

If they get back to the dock -- It’s less of an enforcement 42 

issue, I think, now than before and to try and put an arbitrary 43 

number on the crew size is not really going to answer the 44 

question, I don’t believe. 45 

 46 

MR. GRIMES:  Just for the record, would you state your 47 

background and interest?  You’re required each time you give 48 
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public comment to state your name and background and interest 1 

and I didn’t hear that in the beginning. 2 

 3 

MR. MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and my background is 4 

that I have a charterboat in Port Aransas and I also reentered 5 

the commercial fishery recently and I also help people with --  6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shepherd, did you want to comment any beyond 8 

that? 9 

 10 

MR. GRIMES:  No, thank you, but I would just remind people when 11 

you come up that you should state your name, background and 12 

interest.  The gentleman in the turtle costume didn’t either, 13 

but I didn’t get a chance to ask. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mike.  David Krebs, followed by 16 

Scott Hickman. 17 

 18 

MR. DAVID KREBS:  Good afternoon, Dr. Shipp, and thank you.  19 

Good afternoon, council.  These are unparalleled times.  I’m 20 

David Krebs, Ariel Seafoods, Destin, Florida and a commercial 21 

wholesaler and also the President of the Gulf of Mexico Reef 22 

Fish Shareholder’s Alliance. 23 

 24 

My comments right now are going to be from my perspective as an 25 

owner of a commercial fish company.  First of all, I would like 26 

to commend Dr. Crabtree for the work that NOAA and NMFS is doing 27 

to keep the vessels safe.  I just had a call an hour ago telling 28 

me that my boat was going to be in the new closed area and could 29 

I get a hold of him and have him move further southeast, which 30 

because of satellite phones, I was able to do. 31 

 32 

He had heard also already over the broadcast that the area was 33 

expanding.  That is a very important component to fishery safety 34 

and consumer confidence that we rely on and so I want to thank 35 

the agency for that.  Ashley from NOAA Enforcement called us and 36 

that brings me to my next point. 37 

 38 

Maybe it’s time that the council considers a task force or an 39 

advisory panel made up of industry of how we’re going to deal 40 

with the future expansion of whatever this oil does, so we can 41 

maintain the consumer confidence as a region or as a Gulf, 42 

rather than state-by-state. 43 

 44 

I know a lot of the states are working independently through 45 

their Department of Agriculture, but being as we’re in charge of 46 

fisheries, maybe we could come together and the council could 47 

appoint some folks that they could get together with and meet 48 
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with, to see what ideas are on the table.  I think that could be 1 

a help for the future, because we as an industry want to 2 

maintain our livelihoods.  3 

 4 

We want to continue fishing, but we also, under no 5 

circumstances, want to lose consumer confidence in the product 6 

that we’re producing.  We’ve worked a lot of years for this and 7 

we will recover and we will survive, but we don’t want to make 8 

any mistakes on the way.  Thank you very much. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Any questions for David? 11 

 12 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks, David.  Last week, our Mackerel Committee met 13 

jointly with the South Atlantic Mackerel Committee and among the 14 

things we talked about, since it’s a joint fishery management 15 

plan, was the notion of whether or not we should be going 16 

forward with catch shares. 17 

 18 

The response that we got from the South Atlantic was pretty much 19 

that they felt like they needed to back away from it, because 20 

there wasn’t support from the industry folks that would be 21 

involved in a program like that. 22 

 23 

I know your involvement in the whole catch shares issue and can 24 

you give me a fair gauge or level of what the support is in the 25 

Gulf Coast mackerel fishermen about whether they’re opposed or 26 

in favor of a catch share system for king mackerel? 27 

 28 

MR. KREBS:  Yes, thank you.  The Gulf, as you know, in Corpus 29 

Christi, after numerous concerns from king mackerel fishermen 30 

that operate in the western Gulf, that would be from the 31 

Alabama/Florida line west, on that million-pound commercial 32 

quota, came to me and said we need a catch share system and 33 

we’ve got too many new participants that are showing up from the 34 

east coast that’s affecting our livelihoods and we would like to 35 

develop a catch share system. 36 

 37 

I came to the council and requested that we form an AP and you 38 

guys were so gracious as to do that.  The issues in the South 39 

Atlantic are the South Atlantic and fortunately, after the 40 

Southeastern Fisheries Association’s meetings in Orlando last 41 

week and the Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation 42 

roundtable, I think there was some new information given to 43 

those fishermen to know that this is not something that that 44 

council or this council is ramming down anybody’s throat.  It’s 45 

an option. 46 

 47 

I think the perception of moving into the future and talking 48 
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with Dr. Branstetter about the future and king mackerel 1 

management as a whole, we know that we have several zones that 2 

we’re fishing already in the Gulf, the southeastern subzone, the 3 

northeastern subzone, and then the western Gulf. 4 

 5 

They can be broken into any number of options and I think that 6 

the advisory panel will do that and we’ll present options that’s 7 

going to go out to the fishers to see if they accept that or not 8 

is the prudent thing to do. 9 

 10 

The South Atlantic guys, after the conference in Orlando, said 11 

can we come sit in and listen and I said would you like to sit 12 

in and listen and not vote and they said we would just like to 13 

be there.  It’s interesting when you finally get information out 14 

that this is not something that’s being force fed to anybody. 15 

 16 

They recognize they’ve got over 1,700 permits that go from North 17 

Carolina to Brownsville, Texas and that makes a latent permit 18 

issue huge.  We all know that there’s ways around qualifiers and 19 

keeping permits and so to have the opportunity to explore a 20 

catch share as an effort reduction tool is a good opportunity. 21 

 22 

If the fishermen don’t want it at the end of the day, they’ll 23 

tell you that, but I really appreciate the chance to sit down or 24 

for you guys to have an advisory panel meet to sit down and try 25 

to cipher this out. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Any other questions?  The 28 

next speaker is Scott Hickman, followed again by Dennis O’Hern. 29 

 30 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Hello, ladies and gentlemen.  My name is 31 

Captain Scott Hickman from Galveston, Texas and I just want to 32 

say thanks for listening to us, especially with this trying time 33 

in the Gulf of Mexico and all the rest of our eastern neighbors 34 

from Texas. 35 

 36 

I just can’t imagine having our fishery shut down this time of 37 

year and our thoughts and prayers go out to everybody in these 38 

other states that are having this oil spill and I feel really 39 

blessed to be from Texas right now and not having that oil and 40 

being able to continue to fish.   41 

 42 

Once again, as far as the council, I know you all are going to 43 

have an interesting few years here in front of you and trying to 44 

go the right direction for the fishermen and for the resources 45 

and good luck to you and I hope everybody makes the best 46 

decisions in a speedy timeframe. 47 

 48 
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First off, I just want to say that I want to support getting 1 

electronic logbooks on all of our charter for-hire vessels as 2 

soon as possible.  That will make a big difference in being able 3 

to decide which way we’re going in the health of the fishery and 4 

how this spill is going to affect us and getting on the right 5 

track. 6 

 7 

I always supported sector separation and we need to move forward 8 

with that and I think that, once again, this spill has 9 

reinforced the need for these things.  I support one red drum in 10 

the EEZ in all of our states.  There’s plenty of redfish in our 11 

waters and as we undergo a spill like this and have problems 12 

with all of our other fisheries, it would be nice to be able to 13 

have another fish to go catch and keep our charter businesses 14 

alive in the future. 15 

 16 

This year, with the season being closed earlier than ever, we 17 

don’t know where this oil is going to go or what’s going to 18 

happen.  If for some reason we in Texas get to fish through the 19 

end of the season in July, we would like the Gulf Council to 20 

revisit where we’re at with the TAC at the end of July and early 21 

August and if we can reopen this season sometime in August, 22 

where we could fish into the fall, whoever’s waters are open 23 

from oil, we would like to be able to finish our TAC. 24 

 25 

Anything we can get will help.  Our bookings are down even in 26 

Texas.  Our out-of-state customers aren’t coming because they 27 

see the national news.  Our in-state people are booking, but 28 

overall, most of the fifty or so captains I keep in touch with 29 

are seeing about a 25 percent reduction in calls and bookings.  30 

 31 

It may not sound like a lot, because a lot of guys aren’t 32 

fishing at all in the east, but anything is not good and so 33 

anything we can do later in the season to keep on fishing and 34 

get those customers down here, it would be a big help for us. 35 

 36 

I also would like to the Gulf Council to look at breaking the 37 

Gulf of Mexico into three geographic zones for management.  38 

Texas would be one zone and maybe Florida could be another zone 39 

and Louisiana, Mississippi, and Alabama could be another zone. 40 

 41 

When you get these hurricanes or these spills, these big natural 42 

disasters, it would be a whole lot easier to be able to manage 43 

the fishery if we were broken into zones like that.  Once again, 44 

I support catch shares in the charter for-hire fishery and the 45 

fishery as a whole. 46 

 47 

If we had catch shares right now in the charter for-hire 48 
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fishery, it would be a whole lot easier and the guys could have 1 

caught fish this last spring and they could have been halfway 2 

okay with a little bit of income or after they got the spill 3 

cleaned up, they could go on and fish in the fall and depending 4 

on the geographic region you’re in, catch shares would have 5 

answered a lot of those questions. 6 

 7 

There’s a lot of good tools that the Gulf Council could use to 8 

manage this fishery, especially in trying times like this, and 9 

so we need to pursue all those things.  That’s all I’ve got. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Scott, for coming and your comments.  You 14 

mentioned your preference for three zones and could you define 15 

what those three zones would be?  Are they for the recreational 16 

sector or are they for all fisheries or how do you see that 17 

unraveling? 18 

 19 

MR. HICKMAN:  I could see that unraveling -- My personal 20 

preference would be all fisheries, but to start out with, you 21 

could do it with reef fish, because that’s where we’re having 22 

our biggest issues right now.  As far as the migratory pelagics, 23 

that would be a whole different ball of wax. 24 

 25 

Something else I didn’t mention as far as zones right now is the 26 

guys in the east had a great cobia season and we were looking 27 

forward to that same thing in Texas and we’ve got a fantastic 28 

cobia and king mackerel fishery and with the spill, I don’t know 29 

if the fish got back turned back the other direction or what 30 

happened to them, but we’ve probably seen an 80 percent 31 

reduction on the upper Texas coast of our cobia and king 32 

mackerel migration. 33 

 34 

We just don’t have a lot of fish.  Our reef fish is very good 35 

right now and I talk to a lot of charterboats and everybody is 36 

scratching their heads and saying where are the cobia and where 37 

are the kingfish? 38 

 39 

For me to have to go out and spend most of the day looking for 40 

king mackerel, which normally I could pull up on any spot on the 41 

upper Texas coast and they’re a nuisance this time of year, our 42 

fish are eight weeks late.  They’re not there and so as far as 43 

different species, I would probably support it all across the 44 

Gulf, but at least to start out the three geographic zones, do 45 

it for reef fish and then see how that goes and move on. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  I may have missed it, but was that for the for-hire 48 
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sector as well as the private angler sector? 1 

 2 

MR. HICKMAN:  I say doing it for the private recreational sector 3 

and the charter for-hire sector.  It would be good to do it with 4 

both. 5 

 6 

MR. RIECHERS:  One quick question, Scott.  You had talked about 7 

getting the season open as soon as we could or basically once 8 

we’ve checked the data.  What’s the timeframe that works best in 9 

your part of the world? 10 

 11 

MR. HICKMAN:  In Texas -- I also own a fairly large hunting 12 

operation and so my customers that fish with us, hunt with us.  13 

In Texas, when September 1 gets here, the kids are back in 14 

school and hunting season is huge and everybody goes hunting and 15 

so to be in -- The best economic impact for the Texas people 16 

would be to fish as much as we could in August and that’s a big 17 

time for us. 18 

 19 

People put their boats up at home after school starts and high 20 

school football and hunting season is there and fishing is just 21 

something -- It’s not like a lot of other states that have a 22 

year-round interest in fisheries.  Texas is a summer deal and as 23 

far as our big partyboat operations and the six-pack boats, all 24 

the days we could get in August would be even that much of a 25 

bigger help and if we don’t have these migratory fish and they 26 

don’t show up, all of our mackerel and cobia, we’re going to be 27 

looking for stuff to fish in August. 28 

 29 

I don’t know what the amberjack -- If you all are going to leave 30 

that open or close that, but we’re at the point if we don’t have 31 

king mackerel or cobia or they don’t show up because of the 32 

spill, we’re not going to have anything to catch.  You might as 33 

well just do away with the month of August and so it’s something 34 

we’re worried about. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Scott.  I have actually a couple of 37 

questions.  I know you were talking about three zones and when 38 

you said for everyone -- Then Mr. Gill also asked and you said 39 

charter for-hire and recreational and were you also including 40 

commercial? 41 

 42 

MR. HICKMAN:  I would have to really look at that.  Not being a 43 

commercial fisherman, I just know what’s best for my group and I 44 

know a lot of charter captains across the whole Gulf coast and 45 

it sure would make a whole lot of difference for us. 46 

 47 

The commercial sector is already in an IFQ system and that seems 48 
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to be working real good for them and so I don’t know if you 1 

would have to make a zone for them or not, but I know as far as 2 

the charter for-hire sector that we’ve got a very small group of 3 

people fishing on the Texas coast compared to other parts of the 4 

Gulf of Mexico, but we’ve got a lot of fish and our seasons keep 5 

get cut down every year and with basically a catch share system 6 

and a different zone to be able to fish, it would help my people 7 

in Texas and I would be for that. 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  My second question is catch shares -- You hit on 10 

catch shares, sector separation, and also the different zones.  11 

If we did the boundaries, do you still see the need for catch 12 

shares or sector separation? 13 

 14 

MR. HICKMAN:  Absolutely. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott.  Dennis O’Hern, to be 17 

followed by Jim Smarr. 18 

 19 

MR. O’HERN:  Dennis O’Hern, Executive Director of Fishing Rights 20 

Alliance.  I do agree that data collection is a huge problem.  21 

We support improved data collection.  Of course, we’ve supported 22 

it all along, for seven years now.  We’ve been promised better 23 

data collection after the NRC Report came out in 2006.   24 

 25 

I remind those of you who are kind of new to the process or 26 

maybe you don’t need to be reminded, but in 2000, basically the 27 

same report came out, pointing out the same problems.  This has 28 

gone unaddressed for over ten years. 29 

 30 

Finally, the recreational sector has a universal angler 31 

registration program going into place.  It’s still not in place 32 

yet, but it’s going.  That’s a very necessary element.  Until we 33 

have that, it’s going to be very hard to define exactly who is 34 

fishing.   35 

 36 

One thing we do know is who is fishing recreationally is 37 

recreational anglers and whether they do it from my boat, from 38 

shore, from their own boat, from a friend’s boat, or if they’re 39 

fortunate enough to be able to hire some of the amazing captains 40 

who can take you out on a fishing adventure of a lifetime. 41 

 42 

It’s still recreational fishing.  The fish belong to the 43 

recreational angler.  If I take people out on my boat, I would 44 

never expect to say, well, you know I took Dr. Shipp and Dr. 45 

Bortone out and they each caught their limit of grouper, but I 46 

turn around and say no, that’s my grouper when it comes down to 47 

it and if I decide to invite them back or if they want to pay me 48 
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next year, they can go catch those fish again. 1 

 2 

Those fish belong to all the anglers.  We’re not unsympathetic 3 

to the plight of the for-hire sector, but it’s much like the 4 

rest of the businesses in the country.  They’re greatly 5 

suffering. 6 

 7 

Now we go back to the data collection.  If that’s been repaired, 8 

I think we would see that the effort would be a lot lower than 9 

what some of the statistics or some of the estimates are showing 10 

us from MRFSS and that lower effort would, of course, result in 11 

lower landings estimates and I think that’s what we’re all 12 

trying to do, is reduce some of the landings. 13 

 14 

The FRA, again, all of my members, charter captains, headboat 15 

operators, recreational anglers, we don’t understand the sector 16 

separation part.  It’s the recreational angler’s fish and the 17 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Report, the last one that was out 18 

in 2006, because they only do them every five years, showed that 19 

only 3 percent of all the trips in saltwater took place on a 20 

professionally hired boat.  That’s 97 percent of the saltwater 21 

trips -- Don’t let me mislead you with the figures. 22 

 23 

50 percent of those trips, 48 percent I believe it is, are from 24 

shore and so we could say 5 to 6 percent of all boat trips are 25 

on for-hire, but that would still leave 45 percent of all boat 26 

trips on private boats and they’re all recreational anglers, 100 27 

percent of those trips.  Thank you very much. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dennis.  Jim Smarr, followed by 30 

Donnie Waters. 31 

 32 

MR. JIM SMARR:  Good afternoon, council, Chairman Shipp.  Thank 33 

you for the opportunity to address the council.  I come here 34 

today very saddened with what’s happened to the Gulf with the 35 

oil spill.  There are a lot of people that are really getting 36 

hurt and hurt really badly and I normally wear a coat and tie.  37 

I came wearing this today because of my feelings for those 38 

people.  I wanted to dress down today. 39 

 40 

In light of what’s happening, the RFA supports one red drum in 41 

the EEZ.  I was a part of CCA when they first worked on the red 42 

drum issues with Jack Cowen and I think it is long time -- They 43 

have been well recovered and I do believe that we should allow 44 

one fish in the EEZ so that these charter for-hire guys will 45 

have something.  Scott just testified that we’ve lost some fish, 46 

our kingfish and the cobia. 47 

 48 
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In light of all this going on with the oil spill, I talked to I 1 

think six or seven of you about splitting the Gulf in three 2 

regions.  Tex Moncrief, an oil billionaire from Texas, has just 3 

found one of the largest finds of natural gas offshore of Texas 4 

and into Louisiana. 5 

 6 

Whether this president stops oil drilling or not, it will 7 

continue at some point and I think it would be very prudent for 8 

this council to move forward immediately and get something in 9 

the pipeline to where we could split the Gulf. 10 

 11 

I’ve talked in depth to those of you that I’ve talked to and 12 

three zones, Florida being a separate zone and Louisiana, 13 

Mississippi, and Alabama being one zone and Texas another.  The 14 

Florida zone is more of a Caribbean fishery.  They have other 15 

fish they can fish for. 16 

 17 

In the mid-Gulf, all fish is probably pretty much the same and 18 

Texas is like Florida.  We are a vastly different fishery.  We 19 

don’t have the other species that Florida has to fish and we 20 

have been punished to the tenth degree for years in the fact 21 

that we can’t fish for red snapper when we want to. 22 

 23 

I think that split needs to be given serious consideration.  I’m 24 

talking to our governor and I think he’ll be penning a letter to 25 

the other governors about this, in support of this.  I hope that 26 

our Texas delegation gets behind this and I thank Kay for 27 

bringing it up. 28 

 29 

As far as this, I do believe that this splitting the zones, with 30 

BP doing a stock assessment, which we think that they’re going 31 

to have to do, pay for, at this point would give us leverage to 32 

where we wouldn’t have to fight over past numbers.  Once this 33 

new stock assessment is done, we could take each state for each 34 

species of reef fish and decide how they’re going to be fished 35 

in those quadrants. 36 

 37 

I’m not opposed to five sections.  I’m not opposed, but I would 38 

like the two larger states split from the smaller states.  If 39 

the smaller states choose to do it differently, I’m just making 40 

the suggestion, but I would like to see that started.  At least 41 

we wouldn’t have a penalty for everybody if something like this 42 

happens again.  Thank you. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jim, for coming.  I appreciate your 45 

comments and I guess the same question for you that I asked 46 

Scott and I don’t know if you two are in cahoots or not, but 47 

which fisheries are you proposing and which sectors? 48 
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 1 

MR. SMARR:  I’m not here representing commercial fishermen.  2 

They have been blessed with an IFQ and I don’t think it is my, 3 

as state chairman of the RFA or sometimes representing the 4 

entire Gulf for the RFA, I don’t think it’s my place to say what 5 

we do in the commercial sector in this instance. 6 

 7 

I do believe that they should use their IFQs and I think reef 8 

fish should be managed as all reef fish under those sectors, for 9 

recreational and recreational for-hire.  I do believe that once 10 

that happens that it would ease the pressure of about 80 percent 11 

of the SOS crowd to not push the catch shares nearly as hard. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anyone else? 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Jim.  I wanted to be absolutely 16 

certain.  I was thinking in our discussion as I was recalling it 17 

that you had first suggested the line be somewhere in Florida 18 

and let Florida have their allocation and let the rest of the 19 

Gulf be under another allocation, so that there would actually 20 

only be two sections rather than three, but now you’re 21 

supporting three? 22 

 23 

MR. SMARR:  I may have misled you, Kay, but what I wanted was a 24 

Texas/Louisiana split and leave the three states in the center, 25 

Louisiana, Mississippi, and Alabama, together and then Florida, 26 

because they’re basically three different fisheries, the times 27 

that we can fish there. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  Donnie Waters, followed by 30 

Stan Senner. 31 

 32 

MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  Thank 33 

you for the chance to speak here today.  My name is Donald 34 

Waters, owner/operator of the Fishing Vessel Hustler.  I’ll be 35 

speaking for myself and myself only and representing no other 36 

organizations. 37 

 38 

I do support a kingfish ITQ advisory panel to meet.  I got a 39 

chance to go to Orlando and sit down at the roundtable and argue 40 

ITQs or catch shares and not really argue, but to bring facts 41 

forward.  I agree with Mr. Krebs.  There seems to be a lot of 42 

different opinions that’s floating around. 43 

 44 

I also see who is running the show over there, which was sitting 45 

at the table, was pretty much fish dealers.  Me being the one 46 

hands-on commercial fisherman sitting at the table and another 47 

guy that was in the rec fishery who seemed to be a hands-on 48 
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commercial fisherman and both of us supported catch shares. 1 

 2 

I do think it’s two different worlds and if the fishermen don’t 3 

support catch shares, I think that’s their prerogative.  I don’t 4 

think they should be put or forced on anybody.  That’s been my 5 

position from day one.  We had two referendums in the Gulf of 6 

Mexico. 7 

 8 

87 percent of the snapper fishery elected to go a catch share 9 

system.  It was what we needed and it has helped.  It has helped 10 

the population of red snapper in the Gulf of Mexico.  We’ve had 11 

expanded stocks. 12 

 13 

I think the history, the science, and what you see today, four 14 

years after the implementation of IFQs in the red snapper 15 

fishery, speaks for itself.  Anyone willing to debate it, I will 16 

be happy to sit at the table and debate it with them.   17 

 18 

I also would like to see this council put together a five-year 19 

review panel to see what the commercial fishermen are up against 20 

with the review of this red snapper IFQ.  In my opinion, under 21 

Magnuson-Stevens, it should be left alone if it’s performing all 22 

of the things that it was meant to do and in my opinion, it is 23 

doing what it was supposed to do and therefore, I feel like it 24 

should be left alone. 25 

 26 

The other one thing that I ask or would like to see is to hold 27 

off of being wide open, because I think the consumers deserve 28 

the right to have a fish that’s 99 percent of the public -- 29 

That’s 99 percent of the people in the United States -- 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Donnie, you need to wrap it up.  Your time has 32 

expired. 33 

 34 

MR. WATERS:  You’re winding me up already, Bob? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Take another twenty or thirty seconds. 37 

 38 

MR. WATERS:  I would like to see that.  I would like to see -- I 39 

brought it up at the roundtable and most of you heard me and 40 

maybe thinking about if you’re going to extend, because of low 41 

harvest rates and just us not being able to fish, we would like 42 

to have a chance to harvest our IFQs and if you extend fishing 43 

periods for the recreational, I think you should extend fishing 44 

periods for the commercial and I support data collection, VMS, 45 

and electronic logbooks, both on recreational and commercial 46 

boats.  Thank you, Bob. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Donnie.  Any questions for Donnie?  1 

Donnie, let me make sure I understand.  You would not be in 2 

favor of a free market system for the commercial quota once the 3 

five years is up? 4 

 5 

MR. WATERS:  No, sir. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Donnie, I know that the first ITQ system you 8 

voted against.  Can you tell me why you voted against the first 9 

one and supported the second one? 10 

 11 

MR. WATERS:  The same reason the east coast and some of these 12 

other things probably don’t support theirs.  The east coast does 13 

not have a referendum.  We had a referendum to start and a 14 

referendum to finish. 15 

 16 

I honestly, when I went to the east coast, I did not realize 17 

that there wasn’t a referendum on the east coast and therefore, 18 

they may have catch shares pushed on them and I do not support 19 

that theory whatsoever and so I would -- To any South Atlantic 20 

Council member or any member of Congress, I would support a 21 

referendum to follow any development of any catch share program. 22 

 23 

When you get something pushed on you, it scares you.  If you’re 24 

able to develop it from the ground up and the fishermen get to 25 

design it and do it the way they want to do it, it’s a lot more 26 

acceptable.  Thank you very much. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Donnie. 29 

 30 

MR. CUPKA:  I just want to point out that we’ve discussed catch 31 

shares in the South Atlantic Council a number of times and have 32 

gone on record that we realize unless the fishermen support it 33 

that it won’t work and we’ve made a commitment, even though 34 

we’re not required under the Reauthorized Magnuson Act to hold 35 

referendums, that we would want to hold something like that, 36 

even though it’s not required under the law, to gauge the 37 

support of the fishermen. 38 

 39 

We certainly don’t intend to shove it on anybody and realize 40 

that unless the fishermen support it that it’s not going to work 41 

and we won’t move forward with it. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Donnie, for coming and your comments, but 44 

once again, you’ve confused me.  On the one hand, I thought I 45 

heard you say that the red snapper IFQ program is fine and we 46 

shouldn’t change it, which to me says -- Did you not say that?  47 

Did I misunderstand that? 48 
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 1 

MR. WATERS:  I couldn’t hear you, Bob.  I’m sorry. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  You basically said that the IFQ program for red 4 

snapper is fine and don’t change it and leave it as it is.  On 5 

the other hand, in response to Dr. Shipp’s question, you do not 6 

support opening it up to all U.S. citizens and registered 7 

aliens.  Well, that’s part of the program and so you have to 8 

change the program to eliminate that and so it seems to me that 9 

we have a discrepancy. 10 

 11 

MR. WATERS:  I’ll answer that question.  I’ve got it.  It’s not 12 

part of the program yet and so you don’t have to change nothing 13 

and leave it alone.  That’s something to be changed and to be 14 

honest with you, I would prefer all reef fish come online as a 15 

quota-based system so that we can work out our bycatch problems 16 

and be able to trade freely for a few years with the vermilions, 17 

the triggerfish, the amberjacks, and the other species that are 18 

to come online, so that we can work it out amongst the 19 

commercial fishermen and gather enough TAC to cover our bycatch 20 

and deal with our own very small problems that we have in the 21 

fishery before we open it up. 22 

 23 

Bob, I understand what you’re saying, but that is a change that 24 

is supposed to happen, but it has not happened yet and so I 25 

don’t want it to change.  It’s fine.  I hope I cleared it up for 26 

you that I don’t want the change to happen. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you again, Donnie.  The next speaker is 29 

Stan Senner, followed by James Bruce. 30 

 31 

MR. STAN SENNER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of the 32 

council.  My name is Stan Senner, Director of Conservation 33 

Sciences for Ocean Conservancy.  I’m a biologist, although I 34 

will admit I’m a bird biologist and not a fish biologist by 35 

background. 36 

 37 

I did spend seven years as the Restoration Program Manager for 38 

the State of Alaska following the Exxon Valdez oil spill and 39 

then part of that time as Science Coordinator for the state and 40 

federal trustees that administered the $900 million civil 41 

settlement between the governments and Exxon. 42 

 43 

Ocean Conservancy’s goal, following the spill, is to see that 44 

the Gulf ecosystem is fully restored and that the people 45 

affected by the spill, and especially the fishermen and coastal 46 

communities, not only survive, but are made whole.  To that end, 47 

we have significantly reallocated our organization’s resources 48 
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to understanding what is going on with the spill, but also to 1 

try and contribute in a positive way to that restoration. 2 

 3 

There are a lot of differences between Exxon Valdez and this 4 

spill.  I’m not going to go into all those details, but there 5 

are some similarities and I just want to share a few 6 

observations that I hope you find helpful. 7 

 8 

One, first off, is that much of the Exxon Valdez action played 9 

out in state waters and clearly here we have a situation where 10 

we have a spill event in state and federal waters and it is very 11 

much on your plate.  I would like to focus my comments on the 12 

natural resources damage assessment, which I think you know must 13 

address publicly owned natural resources and the services that 14 

they provide.  NOAA is one of the trustee agencies, but so are 15 

many of the state agencies represented around the table.   16 

 17 

I would encourage early involvement by the council in the NRDA 18 

process, so that you are aware of what studies are being carried 19 

out and how they relate to your responsibilities for management 20 

and also future needs for research and monitoring. 21 

 22 

Beyond the immediate rush to gather water samples and sediment 23 

and fish tissues and the like, it’s really important that this 24 

NRDA program be designed for the long-term, to detect the less 25 

obvious effects that may be ecosystem-wide and playing out over 26 

a period of years. 27 

 28 

Had we cut off the Exxon Valdez program too quickly, we would 29 

have missed much of that story.  We need early peer review, 30 

independent peer review, of the program.  This is possible 31 

without encountering FACA problems. 32 

 33 

I would encourage you to be thinking now, already, about 34 

restoration and although we need to stop the flow of oil, you 35 

need to begin thinking now about what restoration opportunities 36 

may be appropriate over the long run and then make sure that the 37 

NRDA studies are asking the right questions.  The results of the 38 

NRDA studies will form the basis of a claim for restoration and 39 

nature resources and services that will be worth hundreds of 40 

millions, if not billions, of dollars.  Much of that relates 41 

directly to what you’re doing here. 42 

 43 

Lastly, I will just say that I think one of the challenges for 44 

the council, going forward, is to consider how the management 45 

decisions you’re making bear on the recovery of the species that 46 

are affected by the spill and that are under your active 47 

management and how you take those into account in the future 48 
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will be a real challenge.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, sir.  Questions? 3 

 4 

MS. MORRIS:  Thank you, Stan.  I think you were involved in how 5 

the State of Alaska decided when to reopen waters to harvest of 6 

fish and shellfish and could you -- That’s something that I know 7 

this state director is concerned about and could you talk to us 8 

a little bit about any insights you have to share from that 9 

experience in the Exxon Valdez situation? 10 

 11 

MR. SENNER:  The primary commercial species involved, at least 12 

in Prince William Sound, were Pacific herring and pink salmon.  13 

There were other salmonids involved, particularly outside the 14 

Sound, but those were the two primary ones. 15 

 16 

For each of those fisheries, the Department of Fish and Game had 17 

regularly established protocols that they would review and they 18 

would essentially trigger a decision of whether a fishery is 19 

going forward in any given year. 20 

 21 

They had those standards set up before there was ever a spill 22 

event.  Once they got beyond the issue of seafood safety and 23 

whether there was any potential for tainting of product, they 24 

still then had those earlier standards that were set up that if 25 

those standards were met and there was ever indication this was 26 

a robust, sustainable fishery, they would go forward. 27 

 28 

I would add that in the case of herring that prior to the spill 29 

their -- Let me rephrase that.  Following the spill, the 30 

resources made available through the restoration program enabled 31 

them to be much more sophisticated about how they actually made 32 

the decision on whether to go forward with herring fisheries or 33 

not and that was actually one of the applications of restoration 34 

dollars that was appropriate. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Even though this was a state issue or in state 37 

waters and the state agency had the protocol for reopening a 38 

fishery, my question is, was there federal oversight?  These are 39 

species, at least in the Gulf and I’m sure in Alaska also, that 40 

enter interstate commerce and so was the reopening done by the 41 

state alone or did you have federal oversight over the process? 42 

 43 

MR. SENNER:  I believe that the decisions made within state 44 

waters, in Prince William Sound for herring and pink salmon, 45 

were state decisions and they never gave up that prerogative.  46 

The studies that were conducted and the restoration funds that 47 

were administered were all done jointly and there were 48 
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memorandums of agreement doing that.  In doing that, the state 1 

did not give up their management prerogatives within their 2 

waters. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Stan, for coming.  This may be an unfair 5 

question, but what percentage of that $900 million went to 6 

habitat issues and is that number, in any sense, applicable to 7 

what we’re seeing today as a barometer? 8 

 9 

MR. SENNER:  I can actually answer that.  I don’t quite have the 10 

whole pie chart of $900 million in my head, but what I can tell 11 

you is that $600 million was spent on habitat, $600 million out 12 

of $900 million.   13 

 14 

About $125 million was spent on research following the spill and 15 

the trustees of these resources were poised to commit another 16 

$100 million to research and actually were going to set up an 17 

endowment to support long-term, essentially a permanent fund, 18 

for support of research and monitoring activities and not just 19 

for fisheries, but a whole array of marine research. 20 

 21 

Then we had some changes in who was in elected office and 22 

trustees changed and the interest in that endowment disappeared.  23 

That was an action and in my opinion, that was an opportunity 24 

lost. 25 

 26 

If I could add, on the $600 million for habitat, in Alaska’s 27 

case, this was acquisition of primarily upland habitats adjacent 28 

to the marine waters harmed by the spill and you might be 29 

curious about the justification.  The justification is that 30 

there were species that are marine, but that also have upland 31 

habitat components in their life history and that they needed 32 

protection of those habitats if they were to have the 33 

opportunity to recover following the spill. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Stan.  The next speaker is James 36 

Bruce, followed by Tom Becker.  I think Corky is going to 37 

represent Tom, but Corky is out of the room right now.  Anyway, 38 

James Bruce, are you here?  No James Bruce?  How about Ben 39 

Fairey?  Ben, are you here?  We’ll have Ben, followed by Corky. 40 

 41 

MR. BEN FAIREY:  I’m Captain Ben Fairey and I am Vice President 42 

of Fisheries Management for the Orange Beach Fishing Association 43 

and I run a multi-passenger charterboat that’s licensed for 44 

thirty-five folks. 45 

 46 

First of all, I would like to thank Chairman Shipp for allowing 47 

me to have the opportunity to present.  The first thing I would 48 
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like to do, on behalf of the Orange Beach Fishing Association’s 1 

151 members, we would like to thank Julie Morris for her service 2 

and you’re going to be sorely missed. 3 

 4 

I personally would like to thank Dr. Crabtree and Kim Amendola 5 

for their hard work in engaging the local fishermen when they 6 

were closing an area.  We got a lot of phone calls and we 7 

appreciate them working with us.  I would like to thank the 8 

council members and the staff also for their hard work. 9 

 10 

One thing that we support that -- Let me stop.  The rest of this 11 

is my personal opinions.  One thing that I support is electronic 12 

logbooks.  I would like to thank Harlon Pearce and Dr. Ponwith 13 

for trying to move this forward.  I think it’s extremely 14 

important that the charter for-hire industry in this very tough 15 

time that we get accountable so the council can make informed 16 

decisions on what we’re catching and what we’re doing. 17 

 18 

The other thing that I would like to talk about is the 19 

amberjack.  One thing that we’re concerned about, and this 20 

particular incident kind of magnifies this, is that we need more 21 

product besides just during red snapper season.  I would like to 22 

have amberjack available besides red snapper season, in case we 23 

do have a business interruption, that we could have the options 24 

of catching fish at a later time. 25 

 26 

On redfish, my biggest concern is I would like to see the EEZ 27 

open, mainly to prevent just wasting of fish, because in the 28 

depth of water that we’re catching them, they are 100 percent of 29 

the time dead and I just would kind of like to ask the council 30 

to really consider that, because it’s distressful for my 31 

customers to see us wasting a valuable resource. 32 

 33 

On the red snapper issue, I’ve talked to some of my Texas 34 

friends and I understand their plight and they understand mine.  35 

I ask the council to consider closing the red snapper season on 36 

July the 24th and let’s reconsider at the August council meeting 37 

where we are, because this oil spill issue is going to be 38 

completely different by then and we can make an informed 39 

decision. 40 

 41 

On sector separation, I think that the oil spill is a glaring 42 

example of why the for-hire industry needs to be managed 43 

separately so we can -- If we have any type of business 44 

interruption, whether it’s natural or man-made, that we can have 45 

some options to make a living. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ben.   48 
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 1 

MR. FISCHER:  Ben, on red drum, you didn’t say what depth of 2 

water you fish in.  You just said the water depth that you fish 3 

in and are you finding this mortality -- Could you explain how 4 

deep you’re fishing and if it’s a targeted species? 5 

 6 

MR. FAIREY:  It is not a targeted species.  It’s an incidental 7 

catch while we’re fishing and the mortality rate, the 100 8 

percent I’m talking about, is usually over a hundred foot and we 9 

try to move offshore and fish deeper water to avoid red snapper 10 

and unfortunately, we catch a few drum, very few, but they’re 11 

dead and so that’s what I would like to prevent, wasting that 12 

fish. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Ben, for coming.  Would you comment on 15 

your reaction to the proposal we just heard concerning regional 16 

management in the Gulf for at least all reef fish species for 17 

the recreational sector, two or three or whatever number of 18 

regions? 19 

 20 

MR. FAIREY:  I’m always open to discussion and I think that that 21 

needs to be discussed.  I mentioned earlier to some people 22 

around here that we travel to the central Louisiana coast about 23 

six weeks out of the summer and when we fish off of Fourchon, 24 

that fishery is totally different than the Alabama coast. 25 

 26 

I think it would be something that I think the council should 27 

discuss.  At this point, I’m not saying that I support it, but I 28 

think that it has some merit, to see if we can better take care 29 

of the fish and the fishermen. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ben, in reference to your comments regarding 32 

red drum being incidental and if we did consider -- First of 33 

all, tell me what incidental means.  How frequently do you get a 34 

red drum and secondly, would your preference be a bag limit of 35 

one per boat or one per angler? 36 

 37 

MR. FAIREY:  Incidental to me is this spring, just off the top 38 

of my head, during the spring break season, I probably ran ten 39 

trips and I think I caught two red drum out of all those ten 40 

trips.  I think that’s fairly accurate.  What was your other 41 

question?  I’m sorry. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I guess that implies that you would be content 44 

with one per boat? 45 

 46 

MR. FAIREY:  To me, I would like to see, just like warsaw, one 47 

per boat, per trip, just so we don’t waste the fish. 48 
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 1 

MR. ANSON:  Thanks, Ben, for coming and to further discuss the 2 

red drum issue, and I think we discussed this outside of this 3 

particular forum, but is this something that you experience in 4 

the springtime, as far as these red drum in deeper waters, or is 5 

this throughout the year that you would experience it, during 6 

other trips? 7 

 8 

MR. FAIREY:  That’s an excellent question.  It is more in the 9 

springtime.  Those fish had migrated offshore because of a cold 10 

winter and trying to get to warmer water and mainly February 11 

until about May is normally the time that we find them offshore 12 

in the deeper waters. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you again, Ben, for coming.  Corky, are 15 

you going to represent Tom Becker?  He’ll be followed by Mike 16 

Colby. 17 

 18 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you very much, Dr. Shipp.  Tom Becker is 19 

President of the Mississippi Charterboat Association and you all 20 

got copies, I think, of his statement.  He’s in Washington.  21 

He’s been asked to testify before a congressional committee 22 

today and he asked me to please enter this into the record and 23 

so with the Chair’s permission, I would like to read Mr. 24 

Becker’s statement. 25 

 26 

NMFS and Gulf Council members, I am Tom Becker, President of the 27 

Mississippi Charterboat Captains Association.  I am speaking on 28 

behalf of all recreational fishermen and recreational for-hire 29 

here in Mississippi and wherever else they may have been 30 

catching red drum in the EEZ. 31 

 32 

A couple of months ago, I came before the council and asked that 33 

you consider lifting the restriction on keeping or having in 34 

your possession a red drum in the EEZ.  Our states 35 

representatives on the Gulf Council got it moved into a 36 

committee and now I am asking for the recreational fishermen 37 

before you to move it forward today to get this action 38 

completed, one per person aboard the vessel except one for 39 

captain and crew on a recreational for-hire vessel. 40 

 41 

This action would save the hundreds of fish that are being 42 

caught in waters over sixty feet and deeper.  To not act on this 43 

fishery now, with the present oil crisis going on and the 44 

possible fishery problems in the future because of the oil 45 

crisis, would show the fishermen that you really cared for their 46 

future. 47 

 48 
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The recreational and recreational for-hire fishermen in our area 1 

are seeing schools bigger than we have ever seen in over thirty 2 

years of chasing these fish.  Catching one per person for 3 

everyone on the vessel except captain and crew aboard a 4 

chartered vessel.  This one per person would not hurt the 5 

population or the spawning activity of this recovered fishery. 6 

 7 

Catching red drum in deep waters do not respond well to venting 8 

and revival methods to help them return to the water.  I 9 

personally have killed more red drum caught in deep waters than 10 

I have red snapper, trying to revive them from such deep waters.  11 

I respectfully ask that you give this request priority action so 12 

you can move on to more serious problems and it’s signed, Tom 13 

Becker, President, Mississippi Charterboat Captains Association.  14 

Thank you. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Corky, and thank you for staying 17 

within the three-minute time limit.  Michael Colby, followed by 18 

Kenny Daniels. 19 

 20 

MR. MICHAEL COLBY:  My name is Mike Colby and I represent the 21 

Clearwater Commercial Marine Association out of Clearwater, 22 

Florida.  Before I say anything, there are fishermen in this 23 

room that I know and I know some of them that are not fishing 24 

and there are many in the north Gulf that are not and that is 25 

not lost on our permit holders in our association.  Our heart 26 

goes out to those people that are not fishing. 27 

 28 

We’re fortunate now because we are fishing and maybe not so in 29 

the near future, but I want to assure all of the fishermen that 30 

I know in this room that that is not lost on all of us who are 31 

currently fishing and earning a living. 32 

 33 

After the Gulf Council meeting in Galveston, I talked with our 34 

permit holders and they have indicated to me, and I’m in full 35 

agreement with them, that they would genuinely like to see a 36 

movement of a serious discussion by the council moving toward 37 

the discussion on sector allocation and sector separation.  38 

 39 

They feel that they’ve figured these issues out and we’ve had 40 

several meetings after the Gulf Council meeting and they see 41 

where a separate industry will lead them down a pathway toward a 42 

sustainable fishery and they’ve also figured out that a 43 

sustainable fishery for them means job security and they are not 44 

-- Our permit holders, our operators, like I said, in Galveston 45 

have been in that marina, some of them for thirty or forty years 46 

and they’re not just recreational fishermen who just happen to 47 

own boats, who just happen to fish in federal waters. 48 
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 1 

These are professional operators that take recreational 2 

fishermen, who have no access to the resource, fishing and they 3 

see their activity in this industry as important, to give those 4 

people who otherwise would not have access to the fishery, an 5 

access to the fishery. 6 

 7 

After listening to this group talk, I had several meetings with 8 

them and talk about sustainable fisheries and talk about 9 

discards and talk about the issues that this council talks about 10 

and I realized that these guys are fishermen, but now they’re 11 

starting to act like resource managers.  It was almost 12 

refreshing to hear that, because now they see the important role 13 

of not just being fishermen, but being good resource managers 14 

and good stewards of the resource. 15 

 16 

If sector allocation, the issues and alternatives in Action 5 17 

under the ACL Amendment, if those actions were acted on and 18 

passed for us, then those fishermen now become industry managers 19 

and none of us have any illusions.  We don’t have any misgivings 20 

about how difficult any process can be. 21 

 22 

We understand that you’re going to have to roll your sleeves up 23 

and get to work.  This is my second full council meeting.  I 24 

kind of think I’m a quick study.  Andy Strelcheck is graciously 25 

going to accept me to come to his office in St. Petersburg, 26 

after this meeting, and he’s going to give me a crash course on 27 

the process of SEDAR and MRFSS data and so we are ready to roll 28 

up our sleeves and get to work with this council to improve our 29 

industry standing.  Thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Michael.  Any questions? 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks, Mike, and we look forward to working with 34 

you.  I just wanted to warn you that Andy will probably try to 35 

make you buy lunch. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Mike, would you remind us again how many boats you 38 

represent in the Clearwater area? 39 

 40 

MR. COLBY:  We have twenty-two permit holders who carry 68,000 41 

recreational fishermen fishing on an average year, between 2005 42 

and 2010. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  You’re all in agreement on wishing to have sector 45 

separation? 46 

 47 

MR. COLBY:  Every single permit and we’re canvassing areas now 48 
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from Tarpon Springs to Cortez to Sarasota to Fort Myers to 1 

inform other permit holders of their options and opportunities 2 

under sector allocation. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Michael.  Kenny Daniels, followed by 5 

Russ Nelson. 6 

 7 

MR. KENNY DANIELS, JR:  I’m Kenny Daniels and I’m a twenty-five-8 

year bottom longline commercial fisherman and a five-year 9 

seafood processor and I’m here today representing Little Manatee 10 

Partners, which is my family-owned business, working out of 11 

Ruskin, Florida. 12 

 13 

I’m here today looking for an answer to a mechanism to harvest 14 

these red groupers.  We’ve got a lot of red grouper share out 15 

there and a lot of heavy regulation, with Amendment 31 just 16 

going by, and me and the grouper fishermen think that there’s a 17 

better way. 18 

 19 

We’re basically looking at sixty-one boats out there fishing 20 

right now, when they can bottom longline fish for red grouper.  21 

They’re stringing an average of four-and-a-half miles and 22 

that’s, at any given time, two-hundred-seventy-four-and-a-half 23 

miles of gear on the bottom.  The sixty-one boats at 750 hooks 24 

each, that’s 45,750 hooks out there at any time. 25 

 26 

You’re looking at a soak time of anything from two to four hours 27 

per gear and at a minimum, they’ll do it four times a day and 28 

that’s eighteen miles on the bottom, with 3,000 hooks being 29 

fished.  That’s the reduction down to sixty-one. 30 

 31 

Now, if we let all 161 of the guys that used to longline fish 32 

longline fish with one-mile of gear and 200 hooks at any given 33 

time, you’ve only got 161 miles on the bottom and 32,200 hooks 34 

on the bottom.   35 

 36 

You take those guys and on the average, they’re going to have a 37 

soak time of an hour to an hour-and-a-half between deployment 38 

and actually giving it soak time and picking it back up.  You do 39 

it ten times a day and you’ve got ten miles of gear that’s been 40 

strung on the bottom and 2,000 hooks.  You’ve got a reduction 41 

straight across the board. 42 

 43 

You make that fifty-fathoms in, just like we’ve already got the 44 

longline boundary basically in the rest of the Gulf of Mexico.  45 

If you want to longline fish inside of fifty fathoms, you do it 46 

with one mile of gear and 200 hooks and you’ll get the reduction 47 

for next year. 48 
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 1 

There’s going to be a lot less interaction with sea turtles and 2 

a lot less interaction with everything out there.  The guys are 3 

going to bring down their expenses and their operating costs and 4 

they’re going to maximize their profits.  That’s just a little 5 

idea that we’ve been kicking around for a little while and we 6 

wanted to bring it up here today. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any questions for Kenny?  Thank you.  Russ 9 

Nelson, followed by Maurice Fitzsimons. 10 

 11 

DR. RUSSELL NELSON:  Good afternoon, folks.  My name is Russell 12 

Nelson and today I’m here speaking on behalf of the Coastal 13 

Conservation Association, the American Sportfishing Association, 14 

the Billfish Foundation, and the Center for Coastal 15 

Conservation.  I want to simply address one issue that is on 16 

everybody’s minds. 17 

 18 

We have an emergency in the Gulf of Mexico.  We have a 19 

Presidential Fisheries Disaster Declaration for the four eastern 20 

Gulf states and we have seen huge closures of fishing grounds 21 

and we’ve seen the cancellation of fishing rodeos and billfish 22 

tournaments that have been in place for decades and bring 23 

economic benefits to the communities in which they’re held and 24 

the charities they contribute to. 25 

 26 

I would just like to ask this council to do whatever you can to 27 

create as much flexibility as you can to give any relief that is 28 

possible in the face of these closures and we don’t know how 29 

long they’re going to continue and so specifically, I think 30 

today we would like to see you take emergency action to allow 31 

for the Regional Administrator to maintain the flexibility to 32 

alter the red snapper season in response to whatever is seen in 33 

terms of effort reduction and catch, to create the possibility 34 

of keeping that season open or reopening it later in the year, 35 

if and when there is a time when it’s possible to fish for them.  36 

Thanks. 37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  Russ, thank you, but you only mentioned red 39 

snapper.  Would you not want that for any species we could do 40 

something with? 41 

 42 

DR. NELSON:  If I wasn’t clear enough, I was asking you to 43 

generically take whatever action you can to move some 44 

flexibility into this system to respond to this emergency.  It 45 

just seems that there is an immediate situation with red 46 

snapper, with the season ending in July.  We would certainly 47 

like to see you take some emergency action today that would 48 
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allow the flexibility for you to react quickly in August, when 1 

you meet next. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Russ.  Any other questions?  Okay.  4 

Maurice Fitzsimons, followed by Bob Spaeth. 5 

 6 

MR. MAURICE FITZSIMONS:  Good afternoon, council.  I’m Maurice 7 

Fitzsimons.  I’ve been a captain charter fishing in Orange 8 

Beach, Alabama for about twenty-five years.  In 1992, I started 9 

Zeke’s Charter Fleet, followed in 1995, after getting a group 10 

together, by purchasing Zeke’s Landing Marina and making it a 11 

charterboat marina.  I’m still an owner of Zeke’s Landing 12 

Marina. 13 

 14 

Unfortunately, all the captains that I know are now doing BP 15 

work, trying to stay alive.  I was designated to come on over 16 

here and try to fill in. 17 

 18 

Any consideration to giving us snapper season would be greatly 19 

appreciated in October when things calm down, after your August 20 

meeting, for two reasons.  One, obviously they want to get back 21 

to fishing, but, two, a lot of the charters that they have built 22 

their business on over the years are corporate charters. 23 

 24 

If you let this corporate business get away for the year, 25 

they’re going to end up playing golf in Myrtle Beach or they’re 26 

going to go pheasant hunting in South Dakota and you’ve lost 27 

that corporate charter.  They’ve already found a new home and a 28 

new way to spend the money and when the money is gone, the 29 

business is gone. 30 

 31 

The thing we’re asking for is a fall fishing season, if 32 

possible, if the oil is cleared up and everybody gives the 33 

blessing.  That would be the most beneficial thing you could do 34 

for us in Orange Beach, Alabama.  Thank you. 35 

 36 

MR. GREENE:  Thanks for coming over, Captain Fitz.  Could you 37 

kind of set the mood for things back in Alabama as far as what 38 

it’s like around there right now?  As far as the mood in Orange 39 

Beach and what things are like as far as things going on?  I 40 

know people are doing Vessel of Opportunity and -- 41 

 42 

MR. FITZSIMONS:  It’s pretty devastating.  We’ve got some 43 

captains out there doing whatever they can do to try to make the 44 

boat payment or try to make their house payment, whether it’s 45 

vessel for hire or looking for odd jobs, because we’re shut 46 

down, as you all know. 47 

 48 
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Boats cannot even leave the Pass.  You cannot get in and out of 1 

Orange Beach, Alabama.  It’s totally shut down.  There is no 2 

people on the beach and the hotels are empty or close to it and 3 

the condos are empty.  Everybody is in a financial problem. 4 

 5 

We’ve got three restaurants not even close to being in the 25 6 

percent volume range from where they’ve been in years past and 7 

so if that answers your question.  We’re down 70 percent in the 8 

charter office prior to June 1, going up through May. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anyone else?  Thank you, Captain Fitz.  The 11 

next speaker is Bobby Spaeth, followed by Holly Binns. 12 

 13 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Thank you, council members.  My name is Bob 14 

Spaeth and I represent the Southern Offshore Fishing 15 

Association.  One of the things that I won’t reiterate about the 16 

closure of the deep water basically for our longline industry is 17 

it’s been shut down.  We’ve got about 140 miles by fourteen in 18 

some areas and eight miles wide in others and about a third of 19 

that has habitat to fish on and we’ve got hundreds of vessels 20 

that shallow-water grouper fish. 21 

 22 

We would wonder -- I’ve talked to Dr. Crabtree before and he 23 

didn’t think it was possible, but I would like to maybe bring it 24 

up one more time, that due to this emergency that we could open 25 

the fishery back up to twenty fathoms.  It’s closed under 26 

Amendment 31 now for turtles, but I think if I’m correct, for 27 

the first several months I’ve only heard of one turtle being 28 

caught on a flipper.  I haven’t heard of any mortalities.  I’m 29 

not sure, but to the best of my knowledge. 30 

 31 

With this oil spill, with all the other places in the Gulf, 32 

seafood products are getting less and less available and so if 33 

there’s ever a time or an instance where we may be proactive or 34 

very cognizant of our fishery, this might be the time. 35 

 36 

We really don’t even know, after next year, if we’ll ever be 37 

able to eat a grouper until the carcinogens get out of them.  38 

Let’s hope that that doesn’t happen. 39 

 40 

The other thing that all the state directors -- Everybody in all 41 

the states are going to have the same problem and it’s to keep 42 

our infrastructure alive.  We need to work with BP or the United 43 

States government on getting immediate bridge funding for these 44 

businesses. 45 

 46 

I can give you an example.  A seafood company, all their people 47 

downstairs are professionals and they know what kind of fish and 48 
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when to get them and when they can go in the cooler and what the 1 

seasons are and you take the fishing vessels and you have the 2 

captains that have to go to turtle school, shark fin school, all 3 

these other schools.  They’ve got to identify every species of 4 

shark and every species of grouper and know when they can have 5 

them. 6 

 7 

I think if we could all push in that direction of making that 8 

bridge funding happen within a month or two, or I think you’re 9 

going to see all your infrastructure fall. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bobby.  Any questions for Bobby? 12 

 13 

MR. PEARCE:  Bob, thanks for your testimony.  Let me clear 14 

something up quickly.  You’ll never have a problem with finfish 15 

and carcinogens.  They’re going to metabolize anything they pick 16 

up in the oil spill right away.  All the tests that we’re doing 17 

in Louisiana with DHH and the other groups that are testing are 18 

coming up non-detect, non-detect.  You’ll never find anything in 19 

a finfish, because it goes through them immediately. 20 

 21 

MR. SPAETH:  Thank you, Harlon.  That’s great to hear. 22 

 23 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks, Bobby.  When David Krebs was up there before, 24 

I asked him if he could give me a gauge of the level of support 25 

for the king mackerel IFQ in the Gulf of Mexico and I wasn’t 26 

really looking for a personal opinion, because I thought I knew 27 

what that was and I think I know what that is from you also. 28 

 29 

What I’m really looking to try to determine is what’s the level 30 

of support among the fishermen that would actually be affected?  31 

Is it their desire for us in the South Atlantic to continue to 32 

try to move forward with it or should we in fact drop it because 33 

there’s no support? 34 

 35 

MR. SPAETH:  To be truthful with you, I don’t have any members, 36 

probably other than myself and another one, that is in the king 37 

mackerel fishery and so I couldn’t give you a realistic answer.  38 

You’ve been to the South Atlantic and we know what their feeling 39 

was. 40 

 41 

To straighten that out, I think that I’ve attended meetings with 42 

hundreds of people over there and I don’t think they’re dead 43 

against IFQs.  I think that they’ve been run at them too hard by 44 

too many people and it’s scared them off and they want time to 45 

look at them. 46 

 47 

I think a lot of them would possibly be interested in looking at 48 
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developing one and what one might look like.  That would be my 1 

idea, is to try to put together a team, like David said, and 2 

explore the idea for them, but right now, they’re against it. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks again, Bobby, for coming.  Holly Binns, 5 

followed by Bill Kelly. 6 

 7 

MS. HOLLY BINNS:  Good afternoon, Chairman Shipp and council 8 

members.  My name is Holly Binns and I work with the Pew 9 

Environment Group.  We appreciate the opportunity to comment on 10 

a couple of issues that are before the council this week, but we 11 

do that in recognition that the Gulf oil spill is still 12 

unfolding and that it’s going to continue to be a major focus 13 

for NOAA Fisheries and for the Gulf Council for the foreseeable 14 

future. 15 

 16 

Obviously the first priority is to figure out whatever we need 17 

to do to make sure that our fishermen and our fishing 18 

communities make it through right now and can stay in business 19 

and then to develop plans to restore the damaged ecosystems. 20 

 21 

I think one thing that the Gulf oil spill also does is that it 22 

underscores the need to secure the long-term health of our fish 23 

populations, so that they’re better able to withstand unexpected 24 

and damaging events. 25 

 26 

I first wanted to talk briefly about the council actions under 27 

consideration to protect gag grouper.  The gag population, as 28 

you know, has been pretty severely depleted, in that fishing 29 

mortality has been much too high and that was before the onset 30 

of the Gulf spill. 31 

 32 

Given the uncertainty about the impact of both the oil spill and 33 

the impact of dispersants on the gag population, we think that 34 

it is prudent to take cautious action to protect the gag 35 

population and that’s why we would support the proposed interim 36 

rule that was approved by the Reef Fish Committee to address the 37 

overfishing of gag. 38 

 39 

Secondly, on the Generic ACL Amendment Options Paper, we wanted 40 

to thank the staff and the council for all the work that’s gone 41 

into that document already.  In our comment letter, we offered 42 

some recommendations and suggested actions that were intended to 43 

help provide some more clarity and transparency and to make sure 44 

that that document meets all the requirements of the Magnuson-45 

Stevens Act and the National Standard 1 Guidelines. 46 

 47 

In the interests of brevity, instead of going into that, I think 48 
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I’ll just refer you to our written comments.  Again, just thank 1 

you for the opportunity today and we look forward to continuing 2 

to work with the council and the staff on these important 3 

amendments as they move forward. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Holly.  Any questions for Holly?  6 

Thanks again for coming.  Billy Kelly, followed by Michael 7 

Jennings. 8 

 9 

MR. BILL KELLY:  Dr. Shipp and members of the council, I’m Bill 10 

Kelly.  I’m the Executive Director of the Florida Keys 11 

Commercial Fishermen and I welcome this opportunity to put catch 12 

shares in perspective for the South Atlantic and the Florida 13 

Keys. 14 

 15 

I would like to start it off by sharing some comments with you 16 

that George Geiger of the South Atlantic Council made to this 17 

council regarding catch shares.  He said having chaired every 18 

single public hearing on the east coast of Florida for the last 19 

three years, I can tell you at every public hearing, regardless 20 

of the subject, regardless of the issue the public was requested 21 

to comment on, we’ve heard overwhelmingly from fishermen that 22 

they in no way support a catch share program, especially in the 23 

mackerel fishery. 24 

 25 

The South Atlantic Council has basically taken the position that 26 

we will not force a catch share program on any fisherman, unless 27 

they really come forward and express a desire to pursue a catch 28 

share program, and we certainly aren’t there yet. 29 

 30 

Interesting comments.  I was also in attendance at the South 31 

Atlantic Council meeting last week in Orlando and during the 32 

public comment, the gallery consisted of about 300 people.  Jim 33 

Bussey led the charge on catch shares.  He said, is there 34 

anybody in here that’s opposed to catch shares in the South 35 

Atlantic and in the State of Florida and of the approximately 36 

300 people that were there, 295 raised their hands in opposition 37 

to catch shares. 38 

 39 

There were probably maybe five people that raised their hands in 40 

support of catch shares and I think that’s a significant 41 

statement. 42 

 43 

In addition to being against catch shares in the mackerel 44 

fishery, they’re also against catch shares -- There’s an 45 

overwhelming opposition to catch shares in the finfish fishery, 46 

the stone crab fishery, and the spiny lobster fishery. 47 

 48 
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Now, I also attended the leadership conference meeting in 1 

Orlando.  There was a catch shares panel that met there, but in 2 

the discussion amongst the major panel and in the catch share 3 

issues, there was no consensus that they wanted to move forward 4 

with catch share programs. 5 

 6 

We each respected each other’s rights to their positions, but no 7 

one endorsed either of the other side’s positions on the catch 8 

share matter.  As far as a marine management tool, we think it 9 

is extremely detrimental.  It encourages fleet reduction, job 10 

loss and it oftentimes triples and quadruples the price of fish, 11 

as the lease holders try to cover their costs.  It has 12 

significant socioeconomic impacts and it does absolutely nothing 13 

to protect fish.  It encourages poaching, high-grading, and 14 

increased levels of bycatch mortality. 15 

 16 

If you examine the seventeen catch shares that are in place and 17 

active today, you’ll find that long term, most fish stocks are 18 

negatively impacted.   19 

 20 

I had the opportunity to attend a South Atlantic Council meeting 21 

in Jekyll Island and Monica Medina from the National 22 

Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration was there pushing 23 

catch shares in a presentation that she made to the council.  24 

The only person who asked her a hard question was Rita Merritt 25 

and she said, how would you address the issue about job loss? 26 

 27 

Monica Medina, for the federal government, said there’s winners 28 

and there’s losers with catch shares, to which someone 29 

immediately responded, if you’re a winner, that’s great, but if 30 

you’re a loser, that sucks.  I will tell you what.  In small 31 

coastal communities like the Florida Keys, if you’re a loser, 32 

you don’t have much else to fall back on and it really has a 33 

detrimental effect on these small coastal communities. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bill, your time is up.  Can you wrap it up in 36 

the next twenty or thirty seconds? 37 

 38 

MR. KELLY:  Yes, sir, I can.  I wouldn’t want you to take my 39 

word alone on this.  I would like you to check out a publication 40 

that’s being presented by the Pew Trust and it’s called “Design 41 

Matters”.   42 

 43 

Pay particular attention to pages 12 through 16, where they 44 

analyze catch shares that are already in place in the United 45 

States and you will be able to read and see the extremely 46 

negative impact that it has on fish stocks and the fisheries and 47 

coastal communities.  Thank you. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions? 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  Thanks, Bill.  It’s good to be with you for two 4 

straight weeks of this.  What about the runaround gillnet 5 

fishing down in the Keys for mackerel?  They’ve had an interest 6 

in a catch share program in the past. 7 

 8 

MR. KELLY:  On the runaround gillnet fishery, it’s probably one 9 

of the most efficient fisheries that there is in the State of 10 

Florida.  It is already on a limited access program and anyone 11 

that’s getting out of the business can only hand it down to 12 

immediate family members and so forth and that is down now to 13 

seventeen active permits. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  But we have a lot of problems in that fishery and 16 

they’ve had some huge quota overruns and they’re going to end up 17 

with a payback provision and when they have one of those 18 

overruns, they’re likely not even going to get to fish the next 19 

year and so there are a lot of problems there and in the past, 20 

they’ve been interested in an IFQ program of some sort.  Is that 21 

interest gone now? 22 

 23 

MR. KELLY:  I would think so.  There are still a few people that 24 

have an interest in catch shares in that program because as soon 25 

as there was a catch share program, they would get out.  There 26 

are a total of twenty-two active permit holders, meaning they 27 

have caught 20,000 pounds in the last five years, but they would 28 

probably sell out as soon as there was a catch share program 29 

available. 30 

 31 

You talked about huge overruns and yes, in the past three years, 32 

there have been overruns that have been as high as 30 percent, 33 

but if you average that out, if you take the past six or seven 34 

years, and I have the information in my briefcase here, actually 35 

over a six to seven-year period, that’s only 106 percent 36 

average. 37 

 38 

6 percent above in a high-yield fishery like that is not really 39 

significant.  Granted, in the three year’s time here, it’s been 40 

significant, but that’s a testament to how many fish are there 41 

and in our comments to the councils, both councils, that’s why 42 

we have endorsed an increase to the 13.2 million pounds. 43 

 44 

In fact, in written comment, we asked for an increase to 14.5 45 

million pounds, because in a high-yield fishery, where you have 46 

a runaround gillnet fishery, oftentimes, since these spotter 47 

planes are up there, you’ll have a stock of fish and some of 48 
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them are out of vision even from the pilots.  Then as they make 1 

these strikes, they inadvertently run into fish as they move 2 

their boats and their nets forward to find the identifiable 3 

stock of fish and it has resulted in those three years of 4 

overruns. 5 

 6 

We have also submitted accountability measures, as I think the 7 

council members are aware, where we think we can get that right 8 

down on the line there by curtailing the catch at about 75 9 

percent and then doing the lottery system and I believe you’re 10 

going to address that at this council meeting. 11 

 12 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks, Bill, for coming.  You’ve been a traveling 13 

man these last couple of weeks.  A different subject.  Given 14 

that the vast majority, if not all, of the spiny lobster fishery 15 

is in the Keys, a great majority of the stone crab fishery is in 16 

the Keys, as is the yellowtail snapper, and you’ve heard the 17 

discussions at both councils about repealing fishery management 18 

plans and delegating those fisheries to possibly the State of 19 

Florida and this would result in having to come out from under 20 

Magnuson and not doing ACLs and AMs.  I know I just said a lot. 21 

 22 

Given that, do you think the industry down there would support 23 

Florida as the sole manager of any one of those three species, 24 

if not all three of them? 25 

 26 

MR. KELLY:  The short answer is yes.  We realize this is an 27 

unfunded mandate for the state, but you have expressed an 28 

interest, as well as Mark Robson, in taking responsibility for 29 

those fisheries and we’re very comfortable with FWC having 30 

oversight on that. 31 

 32 

We do have specific issues though that need to be addressed on a 33 

federal level, which you mentioned today, Mr. Teehan, and that 34 

is, one, how do we address imports and how do we address 35 

transfer of boats or boats coming from out of state and fishing 36 

off the coast of Florida and how are we going to regulate those 37 

and how can you get that authority? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Anyone else?  Thank you, Bill.  The 40 

next speaker is Michael Jennings, followed by Libby Fetherston. 41 

 42 

MR. MICHAEL JENNINGS:  Thank you all for letting me speak today.  43 

I’m Captain Michael Jennings with Cowboy Charters and Rig Runner 44 

Sportfishing out of Freeport, Texas.  I’ll try to make this real 45 

short today. 46 

 47 

One of the things I wanted to touch on real quickly was the 48 
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alternatives on the sector allocation.  I personally would 1 

support the Alternative 2 with Option A.  I think it’s the most 2 

simple alternative and it’s the alternative that the council has 3 

used in the past and it’s the most fair method to set 4 

allocations and the Option A is the most data we have.  We would 5 

take the majority of the data and use that to set the 6 

allocation. 7 

 8 

The other thing I wanted to touch on was with the current 9 

fishery closures, I think we all can realize that the red 10 

snapper TAC or the red snapper ACL is not going to be met this 11 

year.  Those of us in Texas, the heart goes out for those in the 12 

northern Gulf of Mexico and seeing what they’re going through 13 

and right now, we’re just kind of counting our blessings that 14 

we’ve been able to fish, although we’ve seen a little bit of 15 

this impact as far as the drop in our tourism. 16 

 17 

I would like for the council to explore, when we reach that July 18 

24 closure date, explore trying to get that season open back up 19 

for those guys and opened up back up to see if we can reach our 20 

ACL for the year and let some of these guys fish. 21 

 22 

To me, this closure is a glaring example of why we need to make 23 

some moves in the way that we manage this fishery.  We have some 24 

things on the table right now as far as the sector separation 25 

goes.  I think I’ve been in front of you all for the last year 26 

now kind of driving on that sector separation issue and 27 

supporting that. 28 

 29 

We have it currently on the table in front of the council.  It’s 30 

something that we’ve got the ability to move forward with and it 31 

gives these guys some options.  If those guys in that northern 32 

Gulf of Mexico right now were in a position where they could 33 

personally manage their businesses and personally manage the 34 

days that they fished, there’s a lot of this that we’ve talked 35 

about and everybody here has talked about today that would be a 36 

non-issue. 37 

 38 

They would be looking at either fishing that earlier this year 39 

and getting some benefit out of that or waiting on the ability 40 

to fish in the areas that are currently closed. 41 

 42 

One thing that was from the Galveston council meeting that I 43 

would like to touch on was there was a comment made by Dr. 44 

Crabtree about there’s a misconception among the fishermen that 45 

sector separation is going to instantly give us more fishing 46 

days. 47 

 48 



47 

 

I personally, personally, spoke with every person that was at 1 

that Galveston council meeting that you all saw, personally, and 2 

there’s no misconceptions on our part.  We can do the math like 3 

everybody else can. 4 

 5 

We understand that sector separation and a charter for-hire 6 

allocation may give us less fishing days when we start, but what 7 

it does give us is the ability to make this fishery accountable 8 

and move it in a direction that we may see more fishing days in 9 

the future.  Thank you. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 12 

 13 

MR. RIECHERS:  I want to make a point of clarification, Mike, 14 

and make sure that I’m not misinterpreting what you said and 15 

then I’ve got a question for you much like I had for Scott.  16 

First, if we just separated by sector and you have a different 17 

set of poundage without different management zones, which we 18 

don’t have either one of those right now, but if you just had 19 

sector separation and it wasn’t turned into an individual quota 20 

of some sort, there would really be no difference than the 21 

current situation, where people are all on the same season, if 22 

you will. 23 

 24 

The only way that would happen is through an IFQ or different 25 

management zones.  That’s kind of the clarification and I just 26 

wanted to make sure that everyone understands that. 27 

 28 

MR. JENNINGS:  I think we’re very clear on that.  I think, 29 

Robin, it’s one of those one-step-at-a-time processes.  I can 30 

cross this room, but I’ve got to take one step at a time. 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  I hear you.  I just want to make sure that 33 

everyone does understand that.  The second thing is you actually 34 

talked about the season for red snapper and getting it open as 35 

early as we could, but then you also said getting it open so 36 

that folks in the eastern Gulf or northern Gulf could fish also.  37 

Help me with that, because those may be two mutually exclusive 38 

things. 39 

 40 

If we open as quick as we can, it might could open as soon as 41 

August 1 or August 7 or something like that and at least as far 42 

as we know, based on projections, though we hope those 43 

projections are wrong, the oil is not going to stop until August 44 

15 or sometime in that timeframe.   45 

 46 

Help me a little bit with that, because obviously if that is the 47 

case, there’s going to be some time for cleanup and some time 48 
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before -- It will definitely be fall before there could be any 1 

opening that would help these guys.  At least that’s my best 2 

guess, given all the things we know. 3 

 4 

MR. JENNINGS:  Of course you’re going to have the issues where 5 

those people are fishing right now and myself included have got 6 

a selfish streak that would like to see it just continued on.  7 

We know that’s not realistic and that’s not beneficial to the 8 

entire fishery or the entire charter for-hire or recreational 9 

fishery. 10 

 11 

As far as when to open it up, I would like to see it explored at 12 

the next council meeting about it being a mid-August, like 13 

August 12th through the 16th or something along those lines.  I 14 

think that might be a realistic time to start exploring that 15 

opening or setting some kind of a timeframe on that. 16 

 17 

Us in Texas, and you heard it earlier today from Captain Scott 18 

Hickman, August would benefit us a lot more than it would -- 19 

That’s one of the things that we understand that it’s something 20 

to benefit the entire Gulf charter for-hire fishery and not just 21 

one little small group. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  One follow-up then.  Given that and given you’re 24 

in the charter business, what kind of lead time do you really 25 

need if you were going to try to book some trips?  Let’s assume 26 

we meet in August and what’s beneficial to you guys so that you 27 

can actually book some trips?  I’ll be asking this of other 28 

folks as well. 29 

 30 

MR. JENNINGS:  It’s going to take a little while to get that 31 

word out.  Of course, we all know that the internet is where the 32 

business comes from these days and where you really get your 33 

best bang for your buck on advertisement and it’s going to take 34 

a little bit of a web push to get that information back out 35 

there. 36 

 37 

Can we book trips that late?  Can we get that information out 38 

that late to really benefit from it?  September and October, 39 

we’re talking about the season ending in January and even if 40 

that northern Gulf is clean and clear by then, we may not get 41 

the word out soon enough to actually book the trips to benefit 42 

them. 43 

 44 

Some of their repeat customers and they can pick the phone up 45 

and say, Joe, come on fishing and it’s open, yes, but the 46 

tourists -- What’s the tourism business like?  I really don’t 47 

know. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for Michael? 2 

 3 

MR. PERRET:  Have you got a position on one red drum per person 4 

per vessel in the EEZ for recreational? 5 

 6 

MR. JENNINGS:  Yes, sir, I support that, just as we did the last 7 

couple of council meetings where we’ve talked about it.  For us 8 

over there, it’s an incidental catch part of the year and it’s 9 

an incidental catch that we can target throughout a portion of 10 

the year. 11 

 12 

I’ve come to the point where we keep talking about is it an 13 

incidental catch or can you target it and so forth and so on and 14 

to me, that’s semantics.  It’s can the fishery handle the take 15 

and if it can, then let’s -- Here’s a place for the council to 16 

give back something that has been taken.  We always hear that 17 

the council always takes, takes, takes and if they take it, 18 

you’re not ever going to give it back.  I think it’s a real good 19 

opportunity for the council to give something back to the 20 

fishermen. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Michael.  Libby Fetherston, followed 23 

by Darrell Hingle. 24 

 25 

MS. LIBBY FETHERSTON:  Good afternoon.  My name is Elizabeth 26 

Fetherston, not to be confused by Elizabeth Featherstone, who I 27 

hear has had some legal trouble of late.  I wanted to thank 28 

Julie Morris for her service to this council and explain the 29 

packet that I believe was handed out to you guys, and we 30 

provided some in the back, and then make some brief comments 31 

about your discussions this week so far. 32 

 33 

In the packet, we’ve just put together some frequently asked 34 

questions and information about oil spill response and the NRDA 35 

process and so forth.  My hope is that you will find it helpful 36 

and if you don’t, that you will find the appropriate receptacle 37 

for it.  We’ve provided copies for anyone in the audience who 38 

might benefit from that information. 39 

 40 

I’m going to move on to some discussion about gag grouper and 41 

just highlight briefly something that Dr. Koenig presented and 42 

that’s that Ocean Conservancy thinks that year-round protections 43 

for those spawning habitats and big spawning male gags has 44 

enormous benefit beyond just the effort in fishing reduction, 45 

fishing mortality reduction. 46 

 47 

That’s really the breeding population and that has some 48 
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disturbing scientific trends revealed from the video surveys and 1 

I think protecting that population helps us, in the middle term, 2 

to really have a sustainable gag fishery, while in the immediate 3 

term we need to end overfishing and reduce the F rate, which 4 

brings me conveniently to thanking the committee for their 5 

discussion about the interim regulations for gag. 6 

 7 

Ocean Conservancy supports those and all the actions this 8 

council continues to take to support sustainable fishing 9 

regulations.  We consider that to be a critical component of 10 

ensuring that restoration of our ecosystem is complete on the 11 

other side, whenever that may be, of this ongoing disaster. 12 

 13 

I would like to talk briefly about some specific items in the 14 

annual catch limit amendment document.  In Action 3 -- First, 15 

thank you for the spirited, I believe it was called, discussion 16 

at the committee level.  That was very illuminating for those of 17 

us in the audience who have been reading this document for the 18 

last while. 19 

 20 

We support the addition, in Action 3, of the range of reductions 21 

from OFL and the data-poor control rule and would recommend your 22 

consideration of how you select between 65, 75, 85, and 100 23 

percent of OFL.  We think that maybe there should be an option 24 

that that reduction be based on the life history of the 25 

particular species or species complex in question. 26 

 27 

We don’t agree that the framework is an acceptable place to 28 

consider changes to control rules.  I think those should be 29 

static and changes should be considered only through the fishery 30 

management plan process. 31 

 32 

In Action 5, it’s not particularly clear if sector separation, 33 

the action to consider that, is for all species or just the five 34 

in that particular space.  That could potentially be my own 35 

confusion or it could just be that maybe an action needs to be 36 

added to consider sector separation for all Gulf-managed 37 

species.   38 

 39 

With that, I will thank the states and the federal government 40 

and the Coast Guard for their ongoing response to this issue we 41 

have in the Gulf and thank you all for being here this week. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Libby.  Hold on.  We have a 44 

question. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Libby, thank you for coming and your comments and I 47 

believe the word was “feisty” and I might be mistaken, but I 48 
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believe it was directed at Dr. Crabtree. 1 

 2 

MS. FETHERSTON:  I can’t comment on that, Bob. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  One of the reactions I got to Dr. Koenig’s 5 

presentation was a little discouraging for me and he didn’t say 6 

it so much, but it seems to me part of the conclusion that you 7 

draw from that was that absent better enforcement, MPAs, the 8 

Edges, et cetera, are little better than futile, because we’re 9 

not making anywhere near the progress that we ought to be making 10 

if they’re going to do what they’re supposed to do, which is a 11 

little bit distressing, but that’s the conclusion I’m drawing. 12 

 13 

Now, if, as seems probable, that we’re not likely to get any 14 

better enforcement, would you still argue to implement 15 

additional MPAs of one sort or the other, given the poaching 16 

problem that he has outlined and documented? 17 

 18 

MS. FETHERSTON:  I would and let me first go on the record and 19 

say that I commend the U.S. Coast Guard for the job that they do 20 

with the resources we as a country provide them.  I do think 21 

that it offers continued protection and important protections 22 

and taking a step back from the specifics, I don’t think that it 23 

should be a good management policy to set management measures 24 

based on other people’s poaching. 25 

 26 

I think that this council should consider doing what is best for 27 

the fish and for the fishery and I know that poaching is a 28 

problem, but I still think those protected areas provide a 29 

significant benefit and I would hope that we have the resources 30 

to do the best job, but in the absence of those, I still think 31 

that the management action is important and has utility. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any other questions for Libby?  34 

Thank you, Libby.  Darrell Hingle and Darrell is our last 35 

speaker. 36 

 37 

MR. HINGLE:  I’m Darrell Hingle and I’m a charterboat captain 38 

from Galveston and I run Hingle’s Guide Service.  I would like 39 

to say after looking over the ACL Amendment deal that I support 40 

Alternative 2, Option A, based on landings data, and the longer, 41 

the better. 42 

 43 

As far as the snapper season closure, I’m kind of like Mike.  I 44 

was a little greedy at first and let it run until it’s gone, 45 

unless you set an emergency closure and stop it.  If the TAC is 46 

not met, I feel like it ought to be left open. 47 

 48 
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That being said, I can agree to stop it now and look at the data 1 

and open it back up.  I don’t want it to just stop and not get 2 

to finish the TAC and so whatever we have to do to be able to 3 

keep fishing. 4 

 5 

I want the improved data collection that Harlon keeps pushing 6 

for every meeting, even though we seem to be spinning our 7 

wheels.  Hopefully we can get it by January and move on with it.  8 

I like the feasibility of regionalizing the Gulf into -- I had 9 

always thought just splitting it down at the Mississippi River 10 

and splitting the Gulf into two zones, east and west, but three 11 

zones makes pretty good sense.  It would be a little smaller and 12 

maybe easier to manage on a regional level.  The redfish, I 13 

talked to guys back in Galveston and they all like it and the 14 

other one, he forgot to mention that he agrees with wanting to 15 

regionalize it, too.  That’s it. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Darrell.  If there’s no other 18 

comment, I am going to make one, every chance I get.  From a 19 

zoogeographic point of view, if you split the Gulf in two, 20 

Mobile Bay is the break, just for the record. 21 

 22 

We’ve got about fifteen or twenty minutes to four.  Obviously we 23 

have some extra time that we need to deal with.  My suggestion 24 

is that we take a break until about four o’clock and come back 25 

and my first thought is that we address the many new business 26 

items.   27 

 28 

There are several of them that were on the agenda and there were 29 

four or five more that were added today and go through those and 30 

then if we still have some time, begin some of the committee 31 

reports.  Is that agreeable with the council to do that?  Okay.  32 

We will recess until four o’clock. 33 

 34 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re going to start with Other Business items 37 

and we’re going to start with the ones that are already on the 38 

agenda and when and if we finish those, we’ll move into the ones 39 

that were added today and in the unlikely event that we have a 40 

surplus of time, we might start committee reports later on, but 41 

my intent is to finish between 5:00 and 5:15, since we have a 42 

social tonight. 43 

 44 

With that, let’s start off with the Report from the Recreational 45 

Fisheries Working Group Meeting.  Ed, can you give us a report 46 

on that? 47 

 48 
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OTHER BUSINESS 1 

REPORT FROM THE RECREATIONAL FISHERIES WORKING GROUP MEETING 2 

 3 

MR. SAPP:  I can give you a report, but it would be basically 4 

the same one that Russ gave to us yesterday.  I had staff send 5 

to all the council members a note that I wrote that has a link 6 

the report.  Anybody that’s interested can go in there and look 7 

at it. 8 

 9 

On that note, I gave the page numbers for where my speech or 10 

testimony, whatever you want to call it, was summarized and so 11 

if anybody is interested in seeing what it was that I reported 12 

to that group up there in Washington, you can go in there and 13 

read that, but I don’t think I need to redo that report at this 14 

point. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ed, just for clarification, the report was sent 17 

out a couple of times and so I don’t know what happened, but 18 

anyway, all council members should have had access to the 19 

report.  Has anybody got any questions for Ed before we move on?  20 

The next Other Business item is from the Council Coordinating 21 

Committee meeting that was held in Alaska a few weeks back.  22 

Steve, I’ll turn it over to you to give us a very brief thirty-23 

second review of that. 24 

 25 

REPORT FROM THE COUNCIL COORDINATING COMMITTEE MEETING 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp, myself, Mr. Gill, and 28 

Cathy Readinger attended the CCC, Council Coordinating 29 

Committee, meeting in Alaska the 19th through 21st of May, in 30 

Anchorage.   31 

 32 

A couple of things happened of note.  The Administrative 33 

Officers, of which Cathy is our representative to the group, 34 

really had some real headway made.  They were comparing the way 35 

budget processes and procedures and things like that and it was 36 

a pretty good session, because they were able to share amongst 37 

the other AOs how they conduct their business and there were 38 

some surprises.  I guess I could ask Cathy if she wants to 39 

address anything in particular, but it was really a productive 40 

session for them. 41 

 42 

With regard to the CCC, we met separately from the federal group 43 

for a while and discussed among ourselves the agenda and came to 44 

some conclusions about that.  One of the issues that came up was 45 

how to deal with public testimony.  That was discussed at length 46 

and we decided to include public testimony as part of the CCC.  47 

It wasn’t required, but we did allow it, but it is at the 48 
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discretion of the chair. 1 

 2 

One of the things of note that everyone here should realize is 3 

that the Council Coordinating Committee does not represent the 4 

councils and there also can be minority opinions written by 5 

councils and on occasion, our council has done that on a couple 6 

of issues. 7 

 8 

At the full session of the CCC, we talked about funds available 9 

for catch shares.  That will mainly happen next year.  We 10 

presented some things summarizing our group’s outreach efforts 11 

and our council and the South Atlantic were far ahead of the 12 

councils with regard to this particular issue. 13 

 14 

The federal SOPPs are not ready yet and we, to be honest, don’t 15 

know when they’ll be ready, but we’re told they’ll be any month 16 

now, but we don’t know.  With regard to carryover funds, that 17 

has not yet been decided among the feds, but they’re supposed to 18 

get back to us about how to carryover funds to next year. 19 

 20 

The next meeting will be in South Carolina.  I just got word 21 

it’s probably going to be the first week in May in Charleston 22 

and a budget increase -- It’s predicted to be level funded, but 23 

we anticipate perhaps getting between 3 to 5 percent.  Bob and 24 

Bob, do you have anything to add? 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I just want to comment on the outreach 27 

presentation.  Of the eight councils, I think six of them, it 28 

kind of blindsided them.  They really haven’t done squat on 29 

outreach, but the South Atlantic and the Gulf Council were just 30 

miles ahead of everybody else and I think the NMFS people really 31 

appreciated that. 32 

 33 

I think that this current administration is really committed to 34 

outreach and involvement with the public and so we came out 35 

quite well on that.  Bob, do you have anything you want to add? 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Just one item, Mr. Chairman.  One of the other things 38 

that we did do at the CCC was the Mid-Atlantic chair, Rick 39 

Robbins, is putting together a working group to try to figure 40 

out a way to share information between councils on ESA actions 41 

and how they relate versus Magnuson, given our recent experience 42 

in Amendment 31 and those frustrations, to help pass that 43 

information around and other councils likewise around, so we can 44 

share those experiences and learn a little bit more, so the next 45 

time we have a turtle issue, which may be closer than we think, 46 

we’ve got some other information to draw on. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bob.  If there are no other 1 

questions or comments, we’ll put Ed back on the saddle and he’ll 2 

give us a report from the ICCAT/HMS Advisory Panel Meeting. 3 

 4 

REPORT FROM THE ICCAT/HMS ADVISORY PANEL MEETING 5 

 6 

MR. SAPP:  This one really does put me on the spot a little bit.  7 

I’ve actually got some notes up in my room.  I wasn’t quite 8 

prepared to do it, but basically, all I was going to do was 9 

review what happened at each of those meetings, but I actually 10 

did a written summary and had staff send them around.  Those 11 

notes are available for you to look at. 12 

 13 

The reason that I asked that this be put on the agenda is there 14 

is one issue that I would like to have some council feedback on 15 

and it probably wouldn’t be appropriate to spend a lot of time 16 

talking about it here in the full council session, but if 17 

anybody has got any input or any guidance, I would appreciate it 18 

if you’ll catch me and let me know what you think. 19 

 20 

The issue has got to do with sailfish catches and what the 21 

background is, it’s that in addition to tunas, ICCAT also has 22 

management of all those pelagics, including the marlin and the 23 

sailfish.  I’m new to this whole process and I’ve got to tell 24 

you that it was more Greek to me than the council process, as 25 

I’ve begun to be involved in it and I’ve got some small 26 

understanding of it at this point. 27 

 28 

With the tunas and it being an international fishery and with 29 

the U.S. being one of the small players in the whole tuna 30 

management process, there’s some things at work that are quite a 31 

bit different from how they work at the council level here. 32 

 33 

The issue with sailfish is it’s not anything that’s targeted by 34 

any of the commercial industries throughout the world, but there 35 

is occasional catch of sailfish in the longline fisheries and 36 

they’re typically discarded, sometimes live and sometimes dead. 37 

 38 

The U.S., along with some of the other member countries, 39 

requested at the ICCAT meeting that all of the sailfish be 40 

released alive at boat-side when they could be and the response 41 

from some of the other countries was we might be willing to do 42 

that if the U.S. will agree to release all sailfish that are 43 

caught in their waters by their recreational anglers alive also. 44 

 45 

Within the U.S., the management is done by Highly Migratory 46 

Species, by the HMS folks, and so the HMS folks were asked to 47 

provide some guidance to the ICCAT folks and as a result, 48 
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they’ve asked for council input.  The question is would that be 1 

something that’s agreeable to the recreational sail fishermen of 2 

the U.S.?  It is appropriate for us to give up the ability to 3 

recreationally harvest and keep sailfish occasionally, when 4 

somebody wants to? 5 

 6 

Most of what I have heard from anybody is sure, nobody is 7 

keeping sailfish anyway, but there are the occasional catches of 8 

sails that are kept for people to smoke, I understand.  Any 9 

input that you guys can provide to me that I can pass on through 10 

ICCAT or through HMS and ultimate to ICCAT, I’ll be glad to 11 

carry that message, if you have some input for me. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Along those lines, Russ Nelson is here and he, 14 

I believe, represents the Billfish Foundation.  Russ, do you all 15 

have a position on that or some knowledge on what percentage of 16 

our fishermen actually keep sailfish? 17 

 18 

DR. NELSON:  There are very few tournaments and I don’t think 19 

any tournaments in the U.S. anymore that weigh sailfish in 20 

tournament competition.  There are a lot of all-release 21 

tournaments that occur.   22 

 23 

South Florida is certainly the sailfish capital of the U.S. and 24 

in that area, very, very few fish are kept by anglers.  25 

Occasionally charters will keep fish and to my knowledge, it’s 26 

primarily to use as an inducement to -- They get folks out who 27 

are going fishing for the first time or aren’t real great 28 

fishermen and they catch a sailfish and they like to try to 29 

persuade them to have it mounted and often they find it helps 30 

when the buyer’s remorse breaks in at the end of the trip, when 31 

the $700 fee becomes a little more real in their mind, absent 32 

the excitement of the fishing. 33 

 34 

Some of the operators will keep the fish to basically be able to 35 

use to intimidate the client and if he decides he doesn’t want 36 

the mount, then they can use the fish to engender a little bit 37 

of guilt. 38 

 39 

We are, as the Billfish Foundation, are looking -- We’re also 40 

querying people, amongst our members and others, to try to come 41 

up with a recommendation as to where the U.S. might want to go.  42 

Ellen Peel, our President, is the U.S. Recreational Commissioner 43 

to ICCAT. 44 

 45 

I think any input that you all might be able to bring back into 46 

a future meeting, if you go back home and talk to people, would 47 

be helpful.  It’s something that will need to be -- The U.S. 48 
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will develop a position on it in October. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Russ. 3 

 4 

MR. HENDRIX:  Mr. Chairman, if I could direct a question to that 5 

point.  Russ, could I ask you a question?  Ed made the comment 6 

that most of the longliners don’t keep the fish.  Do you think 7 

that’s an accurate statement?  In my experience, you have a 8 

great deal of experience with billfish around the world. 9 

 10 

DR. NELSON:  The high seas longline fleets, the Koreans, the 11 

Chinese, the Japanese, the Taiwanese, tend not to keep sailfish 12 

or many billfish.  In fact, they don’t like to -- They’re not 13 

valuable enough to waste the ice on them. 14 

 15 

There are, however, artisanal fleets off the West African Coast 16 

and some of the Caribbean nations and other places that do 17 

basically catch fish and keep every fish that they can catch.  18 

The resolution that has been floated at ICCAT, that the U.S. 19 

floated last year, and I was at the meeting, was directed at the 20 

high seas fleets and not at the artisanal fleets that target 21 

sailfish and small-scale gear. 22 

 23 

MR. CUPKA:  I would be interested in any feedback you get also, 24 

Ed.  This year is the year for the South Atlantic Council to 25 

represent the councils at the ICCAT meeting and I’ll be going to 26 

that, but I know last year at the meeting this issue came up and 27 

the commissioner, Rebecca Lent, felt like it was too major an 28 

issue to take a stand on without getting the feedback.  I know 29 

they’re very interested in getting feedback so we can develop a 30 

position this year for the meeting.  Any feedback would be 31 

appreciated. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would ask council members when you go back to 34 

your constituents to see if there’s any sentiment one way or the 35 

other on that and at the next meeting, we can pass on to Ed 36 

whatever sentiments we’ve gotten. 37 

 38 

That takes care of the Other Business items on the agenda and so 39 

now we’ll move to the new ones that were added and I would kind 40 

of like to start off with Dr. Bortone and the request -- We’ve 41 

had a request from six of the seven U.S. Senators, from 42 

Louisiana through Florida, for some recommendations for long-43 

term suggestions on research activities and others regarding the 44 

oil spill. 45 

 46 

They want a quick turnaround on this letter.  Steve and I and 47 

Bob have talked about it.  We met at lunch about it and the 48 
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feeling is that we need to get something back to them by the end 1 

of next week.  Steve, I’ll let you address it and then we’ll 2 

take comments from council members. 3 

 4 

RESPONSE TO REQUEST FROM U.S. SENATORS REGARDING OIL SPILL 5 

 6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We actually got a letter from seven 7 

of the eight.  Only Vitter from Louisiana did not put anything 8 

in there, but basically, they wanted us to give them some 9 

projects to be funded or steps to be taken by NOAA to alleviate 10 

adverse economics of the oil spill, rebuild damaged fisheries, 11 

and restore the environment. 12 

 13 

I was telling Bonnie earlier that I cussed out NOAA when I 14 

realized I had to prepare this five-year research priorities 15 

plan, but it was really helpful to have that on hand, because it 16 

really covers a lot of what we’re doing. 17 

 18 

What I’ve done is I’ve asked John Froeschke and at this moment, 19 

he’s redlining that document to go through and pick out the 20 

sections and prepare a document for us that basically would 21 

address this particular issues. 22 

 23 

What I’m going to do is I’ll take any comments that the audience 24 

or obviously the council members have with regard to projects 25 

that they would like to have done.  We hope by Monday to have a 26 

draft of this sent out to you for comment.  We’ll incorporate 27 

those and I hope by next Thursday or Friday we would send this 28 

off to the Senators in response to them.  I’ll take them at 29 

their word that they’re interested in trying to help fund some 30 

of these projects. 31 

 32 

MR. PERRET:  Dr. Bortone, did they also request a guesstimate or 33 

estimate of funding costs for any of this research? 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  No, they didn’t and we discussed 36 

that a bit at lunch.  It’s going to be difficult, because a lot 37 

of these projects will involve heavy ship time and that’s very 38 

difficult to estimate, because sometimes they would be 39 

piggybacked with other projects.  What I think we’ll try to do 40 

is talk about projects and how they would fit into the scheme of 41 

the things that they queried us for. 42 

 43 

MR. PERRET:  I have with me material that I supplied to some of 44 

our elected officials right after the storm and short-term and 45 

long-term monitoring and research needs and all that.  I had it 46 

with me through yesterday for the luncheon we had, but I don’t 47 

have it with me today, but I’m going to give you a copy. 48 
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 1 

Just publicly, I’ll say one of the things I suggested and 2 

politically, Washington people I dealt with were very receptive 3 

and I strongly suggest, to the extent possible, we utilize 4 

fishermen and fishing platforms in monitoring and research and 5 

so on operations, with qualified scientists onboard and all that 6 

sort of thing, but I’ll give you a copy of what I submitted. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thanks for that and, again, anybody 9 

with any ideas at all, even if it’s repetitive of things you 10 

think we may have done, and the audience as well, let us know 11 

what you think that we would do with that.  The one area that I 12 

know is not on there is the sargassum and so we’ll make sure 13 

that’s included. 14 

 15 

MR. PEARCE:  Dr. Bortone, I understand you’re talking about 16 

research, but one of the things that’s very important to the 17 

reef fish fishery in the Gulf and to all user groups is the 18 

brand, making sure that our charterboat guys that are catching 19 

these reef fish and our commercial guys that are catching these 20 

reef fish, that the public understands that there’s a fishery 21 

down here for the charterboats and there is a fishery down here 22 

for them to consume across the country, because that’s what we 23 

do for a living.  That’s what we do. 24 

 25 

I think that part of that needs to be research on protection of 26 

the brand and where our problems might be with the brand of Gulf 27 

seafood. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thanks for that, Harlon.  Assane 30 

will be working with us on this and I’ll reiterate what they 31 

said, to alleviate adverse economic situations caused by the oil 32 

spill.  That would be in there. 33 

 34 

MR. TEEHAN:  I just wanted to agree with Corky about the 35 

platforms and I think that we’re eventually -- I’m not as 36 

optimistic as most people.  I think this is going to go on for a 37 

while and I think we’re going to have a lack of research vessels 38 

for some of these things and some of these projects can probably 39 

be done by for-hire vessels that are contracted and so forth.  I 40 

would like to see that in there. 41 

 42 

I would also like to reiterate that I think larval -- Some 43 

studies on larval -- Effects of the larvae of economically 44 

important fish is a good way to go and we already talked about 45 

that earlier.  Those are two suggestions that I would like to 46 

throw out and sargassum.  I think sargassum is very important. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got that in there. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I actually have a couple.  I agree with you about 3 

utilizing our fishermen and you’ve already suggested the for-4 

hire industry, but I would also suggest the commercial industry, 5 

because most of them have a little larger vessel and not 6 

necessarily all of them, but I think we should utilize all of 7 

our fishermen, from all sectors, wherever they can be used. 8 

 9 

Number two, and this may be far-fetched, but I’m wondering if 10 

there’s some way, since we already do it, both snapper and 11 

redfish, if perhaps maybe we should see about aquaculture and 12 

growing the fish and releasing them into the wild.  That’s sort 13 

of a stock enhancement type of method. 14 

 15 

MS. MORRIS:  It seems like you’re already going to emphasize 16 

fishery-independent data, right, because that’s in the research 17 

priorities and so our dream fishery-independent data collection 18 

program for long-term stuff would be -- It seems like the 19 

biological community at the surface of the sea -- You have a 20 

term for that, right?  Neustonic, which includes the eggs and 21 

larvae and the phytoplankton and it would be important for that 22 

to be included. 23 

 24 

It seems like sediment contamination is an important factor that 25 

we haven’t talked much about and it seems like the mollusks and 26 

the oysters could be important bioindicators, because they don’t 27 

tend to process the hydrocarbons as quickly and they tend to 28 

hang on to them longer. 29 

 30 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  That’s a group called meiofauna and 31 

they would be involved. 32 

 33 

MS. MORRIS:  Then my personal nightmare is that this mid-water 34 

and deepwater oil is going to upwell at the edge of the West 35 

Florida Shelf, upwell with the water at the edge of the Florida 36 

Shelf.  Just the models that can help us understand those 37 

currents in mid-water and deepwater and where they move and 38 

where they’re going to move the hydrocarbons and are they going 39 

to come onto the West Florida Shelf.  I think that’s a real 40 

important area of inquiry. 41 

 42 

MR. SIMPSON:  I also have a few one-pagers, information sheets, 43 

that I’ll give to you, Steve, regarding specific economic 44 

programs, fishery-independent data programs, specifically 45 

SEAMAP, as well as data program fishery-dependent programs and 46 

regional management.  I’ve already conveyed some of these ideas 47 

up there, but you can look at it and see if you want to include 48 
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it. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Just to add to conversation, some of where we have 3 

been in Louisiana, first there’s timing of the oil and it’s 4 

never correct, but coming up in September, we do have the 5 

independent data workshop, where I’m sure a lot of items will be 6 

fleshed out on what could be done and should be done. 7 

 8 

What we’re attempting to do is a sampling protocol we’ve worked 9 

out and it’s based on SEAMAP, because we have twenty-something 10 

years of this data and so we have a very strong baseline and we 11 

would just elaborate on it very highly. 12 

 13 

The vessels has always been an issue.  In our case in Louisiana, 14 

we lease a vessel for SEAMAP.  We lease the Pelican.  The 15 

Pelican was the first boat, I think, that found sub-sea plumes 16 

of oil.  They’re very capable of doing a lot of work and they’re 17 

also very booked up and you can’t get additional days on the 18 

boat. 19 

 20 

We had approved in our state, for possibly a year or more, to 21 

build a research vessel and things like this -- When money gets 22 

spent into the millions of dollars, it can get put on the back 23 

burner.  It’s been approved and this oil spill has accelerated 24 

it and instead of building, we’re going to try to buy and 25 

convert, because it will be a lot faster operation and so we’ll 26 

purchase and convert a research vessel and we will have a vessel 27 

then available for our use and possibly other uses. 28 

 29 

That is some of the offshore sampling we’re looking at.  It’s 30 

going to be, like I said, modeled after SEAMAP and the fishery-31 

independent data is one of the areas we want to target and we’re 32 

eagerly waiting for the September meeting to see what direction 33 

the whole Gulf goes. 34 

 35 

Inland, we’re just working a scheme based on our current 36 

sampling protocols, which involves every possibly type of net, 37 

from gillnet, trammel net, seine, plankton net, a six-foot 38 

trawl, a sixteen-foot trawl, oyster dredge.  We don’t know how 39 

we could build upon it.   40 

 41 

We could just expand the same type of sampling and yes, I think 42 

oysters -- At the lab, what we’ll do, we’re going to try to work 43 

on live animals, work on the adults of the commercially-44 

important species, the oysters, shrimp, finfish, blue crab and 45 

the recreationally-important also, with the finfish. 46 

 47 

We’ll look at every issue, from toxicity to total mortalities to 48 
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into tissue to what it’s going to do to the reproduction, to the 1 

eggs, fertility of the eggs.  We just mapped out very much work 2 

we could do, but what we want to do before we begin is 3 

coordinate it with other states and make sure we’re all on the 4 

same page and not duplicate each other’s work and that’s what 5 

we’re going to try to flesh out at the September meeting.  Oil 6 

is still coming out of the ground and we didn’t see a need to 7 

actually start work on these yet. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I want to wrap this up, but I want to give one 10 

shot to any of our AP members or other council members.  Ben, 11 

did you want to add something and then Tom and then Jim?  We’ll 12 

take those three and then we’re going to move on. 13 

 14 

MR. FAIREY:  Just a quick thought, but it would be a perfect fit 15 

for the charter for-hire industry to participate in some marine 16 

debris removal, because we see the images every day of stuff 17 

washing up on our beaches, plastic bottles and stuff like that’s 18 

covered with oil, and so it would be a really good fit. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ben.  Tom and then Jim and then 21 

we’re going to move on. 22 

 23 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I guess my concern is that there are going to be 24 

millions and millions of dollars thrown at this problem in the 25 

Gulf and whatever we can do to coordinate those activities so 26 

that we’re not all stumbling over each other and repeating and 27 

duplicating effort, but somehow there needs to be a mechanism. 28 

 29 

I know there are units that are currently trying to do that, but 30 

somehow, somewhere, somebody needs to come up with an overall 31 

plan. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  To speak to that, our plan is -- 34 

What we’ve been requested to do is to submit through NOAA and so 35 

that would be the coordinating group, but I’m also -- I want to 36 

focus on things that will -- That’s what they specifically 37 

asked, for us to do our council work.  There’s oceanographers 38 

involved in their sections and other things, but what do we need 39 

to do our council work that would address these particular 40 

issues. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Jim, one last shot. 43 

 44 

MR. SMARR:  The one thing that the Recreational Fishing Alliance 45 

would ask for, and I think I heard you all are doing this, but I 46 

want to make sure, and that is once we get to a stopping point 47 

on this, as far as the oil spill, that we get, as Senator Nelson 48 
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has proffered, as I understand it in Florida, one or two stock 1 

assessments that will show in concrete what the damages are and 2 

you guys and gals figure out what those stock assessments need 3 

to be, the meat in there. 4 

 5 

While we have them and they’re willing to set up programs, I 6 

think that should be in this request that goes to the members of 7 

Congress, is to make sure that we get good, solid data on the 8 

impacts to the biomass.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Jim.  I think, Steve, you’ve gotten 11 

quite a number of ideas and we should be able to flesh out a 12 

pretty concise letter.  What I would like to address next, since 13 

we still have members of the audience here and several of them 14 

addressed the concern about the possibility, the legal ability, 15 

of the emergency rule that might allow Roy to reopen the snapper 16 

or other fisheries when this crisis is passed. 17 

 18 

We got an earlier legal opinion that unless we do something that 19 

the season for red snapper closes September 30th and so I would 20 

like to start the discussion and maybe ask Shep or Roy if they 21 

know of some mechanism, emergency action or whatever, that would 22 

give you the authority to reopen if things got better. 23 

 24 

DISCUSSION OF RED SNAPPER SEASON 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me if we had an emergency rule in 27 

place that eliminated for this year at least the September 30th 28 

date and could provide for us to reopen a fishery, assuming 29 

there is quota left over and not caught, that that would do it, 30 

but I think we need to hear Shep’s comments. 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s certainly something you’re free to request.  33 

We would have to look at it and put your rationale together for 34 

why you want to do it and why you think it’s justified and ask 35 

the agency and then it would go through the review process, but 36 

emergency rule seems like that would be the only thing to do it 37 

for Fishing Year 2010. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  In terms of timing, Shep, our next meeting is 40 

August and is there anything you can suggest that we could do at 41 

this meeting, at full council, to start that process or is 42 

August time enough to do it or what do you suggest? 43 

 44 

MR. GRIMES:  I think that question is probably more for Dr. 45 

Crabtree’s staff, but I think you’re better off to get it 46 

moving.  In order to justify the emergency situation, events 47 

have to be recent and unforeseen and the longer you talk about 48 
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them before actually requesting action, the less recent and 1 

unforeseen they would tend to appear. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think if you want to do this that you need to 4 

request the emergency rule at this meeting and I think you 5 

certainly have a strong case that the oil spill and the closed 6 

areas are new and unforeseen.   7 

 8 

They’ve happened since your last meeting and so I think you’ve 9 

got a good case for those things, but to give us time to get it 10 

all done, I think you need to ask for it at this meeting and 11 

then we could talk some more about the exact timing, I guess, in 12 

August, but I think we would want to go ahead and get the 13 

rulemaking started now. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’ve got a bunch of hands.  Let’s start off on 16 

Florida and then we’ll move over to the central and western 17 

Gulf. 18 

 19 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  In light of the 20 

discussion, I would like to make a motion that the recreational 21 

harvesting season for red snapper in the Gulf of Mexico be 22 

changed from the 30th of September, 2010, to the 31st of December, 23 

2010, or however that smoothes out. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a technical problem, Phyllis?  In 26 

the meantime, while we wait for Phyllis to get the motion up, 27 

let’s go ahead and hear some of the other comments. 28 

 29 

MR. RIECHERS:  I will second it, but let us get into discussion, 30 

since we now have a second.  He seconded it already?  Okay, 31 

good.  Let me ask the question though -- We’re focusing on red 32 

snapper, because of the season which is upon us, but I will turn 33 

to Mr. Steele or Dr. Crabtree -- We don’t want to miss this 34 

opportunity, if we have an emergency rule going forward -- It’s 35 

not coming to mind what other things we may have exactly that 36 

would also fall under some sort of an emergency rule provision, 37 

openings and closings that we might need to do.  Can you all 38 

think of any others that we should include here, so that we 39 

don’t miss this opportunity, or this vehicle, if you will? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t think we have another situation 42 

comparable to this.  The only other recreational quota we have 43 

is greater amberjack and there’s no fixed season on the books 44 

for that.  Nothing else comes to my mind that’s directly -- 45 

 46 

MR. HENDRIX:  To that point, Roy, are there other sectors or are 47 

there other species that we could include in this emergency rule 48 
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to give the Regional Administrator the power to adjust those 1 

according to this current disaster we’re dealing with? 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  The regulations already have a provision in them 4 

that if we close prematurely and there’s leftover quota that we 5 

can reopen.  We did that last year, I think, with the deepwater 6 

grouper fishery and so we can do that. 7 

 8 

In this case, the only reason we need to do this is because 9 

we’ve got this fixed season on the books and Shep has advised us 10 

that any reopening would have to occur within that fixed season, 11 

which I think you believe that September 30th is not late enough. 12 

 13 

For any of the other fisheries, if it’s a commercial fishery 14 

with a quota and effort is down, then that will show up in the 15 

quota monitoring and we won’t close it.  For greater amberjack, 16 

we’ll watch it, but I can’t think of another situation that’s 17 

comparable to this exactly. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  I support the motion, but I was just going to say 20 

we’ve had public testimony of effort down and cancellations and 21 

all that sort of thing and I’m sure in our letter to whomever it 22 

goes to, if this is approved, we want to utilize as much 23 

rationale as we can to support that. 24 

 25 

The way data -- If we’ve got anything we can use, whatever 26 

information we can further our case, Dr. Bortone, I think we 27 

need to utilize it and especially the public testimony we’ve 28 

heard also. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, it came up last night and that’s why I had 31 

asked it be placed under Other Business, but the fishermen had 32 

talked about it even at the podium today.  There will be cases -33 

- You told them that you weren’t quite certain how to do it, but 34 

you thought perhaps you could, where they were going to have 35 

possibly red snapper and grouper IFQ shares left over, because 36 

of these closed areas and no fishing. 37 

 38 

They can’t carry those forward to the next year and so to say 39 

that I don’t think that they can do that is what you said, 40 

unless there’s some type of an emergency rule, which then you’ve 41 

got to work into there that that quota that was carried over 42 

would still be only based on the past year’s quota, such as if 43 

it was done in 2011, but it’s something that we would have to 44 

start working on now. 45 

 46 

That right there alone is an instance.  We know that there’s 47 

areas, especially off of Florida, in the beginning, where I 48 
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believe one of the speakers or a couple of them last night said 1 

that they weren’t able to go out and catch the red grouper, due 2 

to the areas where we had the lines drawn.   3 

 4 

I think that might have been some of your buoy gear or longline 5 

fishermen, but I’m not certain.  If we can address their issues 6 

along with this, I think now is the time to do it.  Could you 7 

talk a little bit about that? 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think you’re better off to deal with these one 10 

at a time, because all of those are different issues.  I think 11 

you ought to probably deal with them one at a time.  I do think 12 

you ought to reword this motion.  One, it should be clear that 13 

you’re requesting an emergency rule and two, you need to make it 14 

clear that you’re asking that the fishery be allowed to close on 15 

July 24th and then you want us to reevaluate how much quota is 16 

left over and reopen the fishery at some later date. 17 

 18 

I don’t know how much of that needs to be in the motion, but I 19 

think you need to be clear, but I think the motion does need to 20 

be clear that you’re requesting an emergency rule. 21 

 22 

MR. GRIMES:  I would offer a little wordsmithing for you.  I 23 

think you want to request an emergency rule to authorize the 24 

Regional Administrator to reopen the recreational red snapper 25 

season after the September 30, 2010 closure, to allow the 2010 26 

quota to be harvested.  That would be my recommendation. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Teehan, do you accept that friendly edit? 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes, I do.  Thank you, Mr. Grimes. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Who seconded it?  Joe, do you accept that? 33 

 34 

MR. HENDRIX:  Sure. 35 

 36 

MS. MORRIS:  Let’s see.  I just want it to be understood and 37 

this rewording helps.  It’s not like we’re saying we want the 38 

season to be open until December 31.  We want the season to stay 39 

open until the quota is harvested and is that the intention? 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes and if that date extends beyond September 42 

30, we want the RA to have the authority to continue to leave it 43 

open. 44 

 45 

MR. GRIMES:  Just in terms of a little additional discussion, 46 

from what I heard earlier and what I understand, you don’t want 47 

-- Right now, it’s currently set to close in July sometime.  48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  August 24th, I believe.  Isn’t that it, Phil?  I 2 

mean July 24th. 3 

 4 

MR. GRIMES:  July 24th and because of the presence of the oil and 5 

the high probability that the central Gulf areas may still be 6 

closed due to the presence of oil, you don’t want to just leave 7 

it open after that.   8 

 9 

You want to wait and reopen it once that oil is -- Hopefully 10 

those closures are no longer there and so that will allow the 11 

central Gulf states and fishermen to have an opportunity to go 12 

out and catch some share of the quota off of that area, assuming 13 

that the quota is not harvested already off of Florida and Texas 14 

by July 24th. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct and don’t you think this motion 17 

covers that, since you wrote it? 18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  Because of the way you had just said it, Bob, I 20 

was a little confused.  Are we going to close on July 24th?  Roy, 21 

do you want to speak to that? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, without a rulemaking, the fishery will close 24 

on July 24th and so what you’re asking here is that that go ahead 25 

and happen and then we will evaluate how much of the quota we 26 

think was caught and then we will determine how many fishing 27 

days could be allowed and then I would ask for some guidance 28 

from you.  It sounds like we’re talking trying to reopen on 29 

October 1st? 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think it’s clear too that a lot of that would 32 

depend on the oil situation.  Maybe it goes back to November 1st, 33 

depending on the oil, but that would give you the prerogative 34 

and the authority, using council advice, to reopen it at the 35 

optimal time.  I’ve got a whole bunch of people. 36 

 37 

MR. ANSON:  Going back to the second opening, there’s a couple 38 

of issues that we would have to deal with.  One is the oil would 39 

physically have to be gone and then there would have to be some 40 

sort of guarantee that the seafood that could potentially be 41 

consumed in those closed areas is safe to eat, which may not be 42 

happening concurrently. 43 

 44 

In light of that, this incident of national significance may 45 

continue on into next year, which would preclude us, with this 46 

motion, from going ahead and allowing harvest in the affected 47 

areas.  I’m just wondering, for the record and, Shep, we talked 48 
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about this earlier, but is there not any mechanism or are there 1 

any provisions that restrict us from taking any pounds that 2 

would be left on the table after the July 24th closure and 3 

applying them to next year, similar to what Kay brought up with 4 

the IFQs for commercial fishermen that have not been used this 5 

year, due to the closures? 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that poses difficulties, because we’ve 8 

had some big overruns for several years now, yet those overruns 9 

haven’t been deducted off the following year and so I think that 10 

creates a lot of difficulties, if we have an underrun this year, 11 

of adding that on to the next year. 12 

 13 

I think it also, and this is true in the grouper or in the 14 

commercial situation or any of these, but we have SSC catch 15 

level recommendations for specific years which we’re not allowed 16 

to exceed and if you add these fish over into the next year, it 17 

seems to me then you’re adding them to next year’s quota and now 18 

you’ve got a catch level that exceeds what you’re allowed to do, 19 

based on the science you have. 20 

 21 

I think allowing these fish to be caught within this calendar 22 

year makes a lot of sense, but I think carrying any of this over 23 

to the next year has a whole host of different problems and 24 

whether we could figure those out or not, I don’t know. 25 

 26 

MR. ANSON:  Just a follow-up then, because I’m not familiar with 27 

this procedurally.  Could there be a way to send this to the SSC 28 

then with information through the season, as if it were to close 29 

July 23rd, and then look at the situation to try to have them 30 

come up with a potential for applying any extra pounds?  It may 31 

not be the full poundage that’s remaining after what’s harvested 32 

and what was allotted for this year’s season, but -- 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  You can do that with the SSC, but what I’m 35 

telling you is there are going to be problems with carrying an 36 

underage over to the next year when we’ve never carried the 37 

overages forward to the next year and that’s going to be a 38 

problem.  I understand this is exceptional circumstances and 39 

everything, but that’s going to be a concern. 40 

 41 

MR. ANSON:  One last one.  Robin, looking at this and looking at 42 

the narrow time windows that we have to evaluate the data upon 43 

the closure, will Texas be able to supply the information to 44 

NOAA so they can make a determination as to how many pounds 45 

would be left open and to be able to close the second opening in 46 

a timely manner? 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  The second opening?  I’m not -- 1 

 2 

MR. ANSON:  Assuming it’s October 1 is the opening, they’ll need 3 

to know how many pounds Texas and Florida had harvested through 4 

July 23rd. 5 

 6 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think you’re asking about the second opening 7 

and are you saying in order for them to get the July 23rd so that 8 

they can create the second opening? 9 

 10 

MR. ANSON:  And then be able to monitor when it will close. 11 

 12 

MR. RIECHERS:  The answer is we can actually, for red snapper, 13 

provide them with the actual interview data almost instantly, 14 

frankly.  Not quite, but close.  We won’t be able to provide 15 

them the full set of pressure estimates, based on our 16 

stratification, because that’s a longer term stratification.  We 17 

do high-use/low-use season two times a year, basically, as 18 

compared to waves. 19 

 20 

Just like they’re going to have to do with waves in this 21 

situation, because I believe it’s going to be splitting a wave, 22 

if I’m thinking correctly, they’re going to have to use one 23 

month of that wave and project what the other month is doing. 24 

 25 

We’ll do the best we can with that.  We’ll be able to provide 26 

them some information and using last year’s information and this 27 

year’s, they’ll have to make an estimate, but that’s what they 28 

do now.  We’ll be okay with that. 29 

 30 

MR. PERRET:  Just a suggestion for the motion.  September 30, 31 

1010 closure to allow the remainder of the 2010 quota to be 32 

harvested and that’s just a suggestion, but, Robin and Teehan, 33 

do we have any assurance that state waters will be closed on 34 

July 23rd along with the federal closure? 35 

 36 

MR. TEEHAN:  Robin, you take it first.  I’ve got to think about 37 

that. 38 

 39 

MR. RIECHERS:  Are you asking whether state waters will be 40 

closed July 24th? 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  Whatever the date is.  I know the pressure that’s 43 

going to be on your commission and your commission with this. 44 

 45 

MR. RIECHERS:  We didn’t go consistent and so no, state waters 46 

will not be closed July 24th. 47 

 48 
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MR. TEEHAN:  We’ve already passed a regulation to go consistent 1 

with whatever it is and so we’re set. 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, I don’t understand your answer necessarily 4 

about the problems with carrying any unused quota forward, just 5 

because we did not deduct the overages or underages in the past.  6 

That’s why this is an emergency rule.  It’s an entirely 7 

different situation. 8 

 9 

When the SSC gave us our overfishing and our ABC and we set our 10 

ACTs and everything else, it was still based on a certain 11 

amount, with all of the parameters of going over and all of 12 

those things calculated in.  That’s the amount of fish that the 13 

fishermen are allowed to take. 14 

 15 

Now, if those fish stay in the water a few extra months, I don’t 16 

see that taking away from next year like you’re increasing a 17 

quota or doing any harm to the fishery and so I don’t think that 18 

rationale is just because you’ve been over before that we can’t 19 

carry it forward until the next year, because, like I said, the 20 

SSC said you can take this much out of the water.  If they don’t 21 

take it, they ought to be able to take it the next year, under 22 

these situations. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m going to let Roy answer that and then we’re 25 

going to vote this up or down. 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  There wasn’t a question there.  There was a 28 

comment. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and vote this.  We had one more.  31 

Johnny had his hand up and so we’ll hear Johnny and Bill and 32 

then we’re going to vote it up or down. 33 

 34 

MR. GREENE:  Excuse my complete ignorance on this, but just 35 

trying to look at this in a simple matter, if it comes back that 36 

we just have a small piece of the quota that’s left, would it be 37 

entirely out of order for me to ask that potentially maybe we 38 

look at a Friday/Saturday/Sunday type scenario with the 39 

remainder of the small quota that would be able to be caught? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would ask that you not overly complicate this 42 

so that we can get it done.  It may be a very small amount of 43 

quota.  I just don’t know what’s going to happen, but if you get 44 

into Friday/Saturday/Sunday openings and things like that, it’s 45 

going to get more complicated. 46 

 47 

MR. GREENE:  My sole intent was that if we have this small piece 48 
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of pie left open and we have a larger calendar year or longer 1 

period of time that we could spread it out over was my sole 2 

intent.  I understand what you’re saying and it was just a 3 

comment more than anything else. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  We can look at that if that’s what you want us to 6 

look at. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Last comment, Bill. 9 

 10 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m sorry, Mr. Chairman.  I’m not trying to drag 11 

this on, but I just want to make sure, based upon some of 12 

Kevin’s comments -- Shepherd, not having an ending date on here 13 

could, the way I’m reading this, actually cause this to continue 14 

on over into 2011. 15 

 16 

I know you’re saying that the closure to allow the 2010 quota to 17 

be harvested, but technically, the way that’s written, can’t you 18 

say that we’ll just continue to harvest whatever that number is 19 

until we catch it, which could be January or February of 2011? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, it’s an annual quota. 22 

 23 

MR. TEEHAN:  I understand that.  I just want to be clear that 24 

that’s what it says. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, it’s an annual quota and so we’re all clear 27 

that it’s going to be caught by the end of the year or it’s not 28 

going to be caught. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we require a roll call vote on this.  31 

Isn’t that right, Shep, since this is a -- No? 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  If you do, it’s in your SOPPs, but I believe your 34 

SOPPs do require that, yes. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and have a roll call vote.  I’ve 37 

alerted Dr. Bortone to this possibility and so, Steve, if you’re 38 

ready. 39 

 40 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight. 41 

 42 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Yes. 43 

 44 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 45 

 46 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 3 

 4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 5 

 6 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 11 

 12 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Ray. 13 

 14 

MR. RAY:  Yes. 15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 17 

 18 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Morris. 21 

 22 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 27 

 28 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 33 

 34 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 39 

 40 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 41 

 42 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 43 

 44 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 1 

 2 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 3 

 4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 5 

 6 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 9 

 10 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 11 

 12 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp, we have sixteen in favor 13 

and one not favoring. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think Roy’s vote is required.  Roy, do you 16 

want to explain that? 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  I have instructions to vote against emergency 19 

rules, so that there’s not a unanimous vote, because that 20 

invokes different language under the statute. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think some of us who are new on the council 23 

probably are not aware of that, but it doesn’t necessarily 24 

reflect your sentiments. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s right. 27 

 28 

MS. MORRIS:  I wanted to add something to our project list for 29 

the Senators and I don’t know if this is appropriate or not, but 30 

maybe we could ask them to speed up the recreational harvest 31 

data to one-month waves during the period of the next twelve 32 

months, to better inform our management decisions.  That could 33 

be a project we could request funding for. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that’s very appropriate.  Did you want 36 

to say something, Corky? 37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  Julie beat me to it.  I wanted to say the same 39 

thing.  Dr. Crabtree, a question now that we’ve passed this 40 

motion.  If indeed the Fisheries Service goes along with the 41 

council’s recommendation, if in the unlikely event the quota is 42 

exceeded due to the reopening of the season, does that excess 43 

come off of next year’s quota? 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, there’s no provision like that and that’s 46 

part of my concern about it.  We’ve had overages in the past and 47 

they’ve never come off the next year’s quota. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to address one more issue before 2 

we adjourn and since Harlon has prepared a motion -- The other 3 

issues we can readdress tomorrow, the new business issues, but I 4 

think five minutes is just about appropriate.  Harlon, did you 5 

give the motion to Phyllis? 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  I think it’s going to take longer than five 8 

minutes, because I’ve got to get Shep’s opinion. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We don’t have to stop right at five o’clock, 11 

but I will turn it over to you to raise this discussion of the 12 

USCG Certificate of Inspection issue, which we heard about from 13 

Mike earlier, and I want to do that now, while Mike is still 14 

here. 15 

 16 

DISCUSSION OF USCG CERTIFICATE OF INSPECTION ISSUE 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Dr. Shipp.  Basically, what we want to 19 

talk about is the ability of a vessel that’s COI might be sixty 20 

individuals, which is the capacity of that boat, according to 21 

the Coast Guard -- They have the ability to transfer a migratory 22 

pelagic fish permit or a Gulf reef fish permit to that vessel 23 

that is restricted to less COI than that.  Like if it’s a 24 

headboat, it’s twenty-five. 25 

 26 

Right now, the position of the Service is that we don’t do that 27 

and so what I would like to do is let the council hear the 28 

reasons why and why not and maybe come up with some solutions 29 

that might help.  30 

 31 

What I would like to do is maybe -- Is the Coast Guard here?  If 32 

you will start with how you handle these situations and then 33 

we’ll let Shep let us understand the differences in the two 34 

regulatory processes. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Before we go down that road, I would like to 37 

clarify something.  Do we have any authority in this?  If we 38 

pass a motion, would it simply be advice or what sort of 39 

authority do we actually have, Shep? 40 

 41 

MR. GRIMES:  The issue is with your fishery regulations and so 42 

it would take some sort of rulemaking and probably plan 43 

amendment or framework action or whatever from you to change the 44 

regulations to allow or to accommodate what Mr. Miglini has 45 

requested of you. 46 

 47 

I think I can come in -- We talked about this before and I can 48 
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go right into this.  I can explain what little bit Coast Guard 1 

will have to add, at least to the issue.  I don’t necessarily 2 

think we need to hear from you, because this is with our 3 

regulations.  It’s not with the Coast Guard. 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think it’s going to -- Like Shep said, I don’t 6 

think you can do this just by passing a motion.  I think you’re 7 

going to have to put this into a plan amendment and you’re going 8 

to have to analyze alternatives and it’s going to have to go 9 

through the whole process and everything. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  To me, this has been a very complicated issue.  12 

I have a hard time, as Bob says, wrapping my arms around it.  13 

Maybe we can at least get some preliminary discussion and then 14 

insert it in some sort of plan amendment in the future, if we 15 

want to go down that road.  Harlon, take the ball. 16 

 17 

MR. PEARCE:  Shep, why don’t you start? 18 

 19 

MR. GRIMES:  Back in whenever it was, 2003, we put in place a 20 

limited access permit system for charterboat and headboat.  If 21 

you’re a charterboat, you’re a six-pack vessel, it means you’re 22 

not an inspected vessel by the Coast Guard and you’re not 23 

authorized to carry greater than six passengers for hire.  We 24 

don’t have any problem there. 25 

 26 

The problem comes on headboats.  Headboats are inspected 27 

vessels.  In their certificate of inspection, they have a 28 

specific passenger capacity in that certificate of inspection.  29 

When the Coast Guard issues that, the passenger capacity is a 30 

safety concern.  That’s the maximum number of -- Jump in if I 31 

mess this up at all.  That’s the maximum number of passengers 32 

that the vessel can safely carry.  That’s why Coast Guard issues 33 

it as such. 34 

 35 

When we limited access to both reef fish and coastal pelagics 36 

for for-hire vessels, we limited capacity in the fishery, both 37 

in terms of numbers of vessels and a passenger capacity.  For 38 

six-packs, it doesn’t matter.  If you had a six-pack license and 39 

a permit in the past, you came in.   40 

 41 

If you had a headboat and you qualified under the original 42 

permit moratorium, which has now become a limited access system, 43 

or an indefinite limited access system, you came in and you 44 

qualified based on the vessel that you owned during the 45 

qualifying time period and your permit was limited by the 46 

capacity of that vessel. 47 

 48 
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Now, the idea behind this was that we didn’t want to issue 1 

headboat vessel permits to people who had vessels that would 2 

carry twenty passengers during the qualifying period just to 3 

have them turn around and go out and buy a boat that’s going to 4 

carry 150 passengers with it and all of a sudden you end up with 5 

a fishing capacity increased tenfold in the fishery.  That 6 

undermines the purpose of limiting access to the fishery. 7 

 8 

Therefore, when people qualified, their fishing permit had a 9 

vessel capacity on it.  Again, we’re only talking about 10 

headboats.  At that time, I had never seen a certificate of 11 

inspection with what I call conditional capacities on it.  They 12 

all had the maximum number of passengers that they could carry. 13 

 14 

I’m going to read to you the regulatory requirements right now.  15 

We can transfer a permit, but the regulations are specific that 16 

a permit cannot be transferred to a vessel with a greater 17 

authorized passenger capacity than that of the vessel to which 18 

the moratorium permit was originally issued and is specified on 19 

the face of the permit being transferred.   20 

 21 

That context that I just gave you, the regulations will not let 22 

me transfer a permit that has a fifty-passenger capacity onto a 23 

vessel that has a certificate of inspection that authorizes 24 

anything more than fifty passengers.  25 

 26 

What we have now, people are coming in and the Coast Guard has 27 

issued what I call a conditional certificate of inspection, 28 

which will say you are authorized to carry fifty passengers in 29 

federal waters and you’re authorized to carry a hundred 30 

passengers in near-shore waters or it might say you’re 31 

authorized to carry fifty passengers while fishing, but you’re 32 

authorized to carry 150 passengers while whale watching. 33 

 34 

The Coast Guard is doing this because vessel owners are 35 

requesting it.  When we get that certificate of inspection and 36 

we see it authorizes 150 passengers, I don’t care if it’s 37 

authorizing that in the Great Lakes.  It is a passenger capacity 38 

in excess of what is allowed on the permit and we will not allow 39 

the permit to be transferred to that vessel. 40 

 41 

Now, like all humans, we’ve made mistakes in the past and some 42 

permits have been transferred that shouldn’t have been allowed, 43 

based on that, but it’s water under the bridge and it has 44 

occurred. 45 

 46 

I think Mr. Miglini had come in and tried to transfer a permit 47 

in a similar situation and the transfer was denied and so what 48 
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he’s looking or what has been requested is that we change that 1 

and we change it so that we will transfer that fisheries permit 2 

to any vessel with a COI, so long as that COI does not authorize 3 

people to fish in the EEZ with more passengers than are 4 

specified on the fisheries permit. 5 

 6 

You’re right that this is a technical and complicated issue.  I 7 

guess that’s where we are now and I think the reason you 8 

originally set it up the way you did was because you did not 9 

want somebody coming in and placing -- Going out and buying a 10 

permit and I buy a permit that has a maximum passenger capacity 11 

of fifty people and I go out and buy a boat that has a passenger 12 

capacity of 150 people. 13 

 14 

I put that permit on there and I’m taking out 150 people and now 15 

we all know that we can go out -- If you’ve ever been out on the 16 

water much, it may be one out of every thousand times the boat 17 

goes out that the Coast Guard actually stops and boards them to 18 

check this, but in the meantime, they’ve been operating and they 19 

could have been operating and resulting in a much greater 20 

fishing capacity than you would envision. 21 

 22 

You wanted to avoid that problem altogether and never allow that 23 

permit to get placed on that vessel and you’re avoiding the 24 

added enforcement burden of having to go out there and monitor 25 

the vessels and having to look at the certificate of inspection 26 

and having to look at the fisheries permit and having to count 27 

people on the boat and ensuring that people aren’t fishing.  28 

That’s what you had in mind when you enacted the original 29 

provisions. 30 

 31 

If you want to revisit that, you’re free to do it.  I think it 32 

would just take a change in philosophy, if you will, in deciding 33 

that this additional enforcement burden is not going to be that 34 

much of a problem, but I will tell you that if you change it, 35 

and regardless of what anybody says, you are creating a 36 

potential problem for -- The opportunity for people to go out. 37 

 38 

Somebody could say I have a vessel that’s authorized to carry a 39 

hundred passengers while whale watching, but only twenty 40 

passengers while fishing.  I go out to sea and I have a hundred 41 

passengers onboard and they could be fishing.  That’s the 42 

question. 43 

 44 

The Coast Guard then has to board that vessel and they have to 45 

look at the vessel and they have to identify what activity is 46 

occurring and they have to identify how many passengers are on 47 

there and they then have to look at the certificate and compare 48 
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the certificate to the fisheries permit and it’s not something 1 

that’s impossible and the Coast Guard, I’m sure, will comment in 2 

a minute on how they view it, but it is definitely an added 3 

burden. 4 

 5 

It’s something else we have to look at and to be honest with 6 

you, I don’t really know how big of a problem it is now.  To 7 

kind of bring that all around, you have the option of addressing 8 

this and it is somewhat of an issue to people.  It’s preventing 9 

some people from transferring these permits to new vessels that 10 

they’ve acquired. 11 

 12 

I don’t know how significant of an issue that is, but if you 13 

address it to allow for it, you are going to create somewhat of 14 

another problem, although maybe not that significant either.  15 

That is really the decision that’s before you. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I have one arm wrapped around it.  I still 18 

don’t have both of them, but, Harlon, let me turn it over to 19 

you.  Obviously we’re not going to make any final decisions.  I 20 

think the purpose of this dialogue is to let the council members 21 

understand, or begin to understand, the problem and then 22 

ultimately we may want to address it. 23 

 24 

MR. PEARCE:  Also, I wouldn’t have brought it up, but Mr. 25 

Miglini said there’s multiple individuals that have this problem 26 

and so I want to address it and talk about it.  The Coast Guard, 27 

he’s going to talk now, but his main job is safety and he wants 28 

to make sure it’s safe and if somebody wants to take a COI and 29 

drop it down provisionally when he’s fishing in federal waters 30 

to a lesser number, that’s fine with him, but go ahead. 31 

 32 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Shep, you said it beautiful.  Basically, the 33 

issue here is not the adjustment of the certificate of 34 

inspection.  That’s not the issue at hand here.  That’s easy.  35 

The captain of the port can adjust the certificate of inspection 36 

and downgrade it or add an amendment to it.  That’s not the 37 

issue. 38 

 39 

The issue is really going to come down to enforcement.  If the 40 

Coast Guard approaches a vessel that has a -- In this type of a 41 

scenario, where the vessel operator has an amended certificate 42 

of inspection, where maybe one time they’re whale watching and 43 

the next time they have these transferred permits and they’re 44 

fishing, it’s going to be imperative that the Coast Guard knows 45 

what mode that vessel is operating in at the time of boarding, 46 

whether they’re following the first lane, which would maybe be 47 

whale watching, or they’re fishing.  It needs to be separate and 48 
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distinct, so we know what enforcement posture to take and what 1 

part of the COI to follow. 2 

 3 

On the front part of the COI, it might say this vessel is 4 

authorized to carry 100 people when whale watching, but if they 5 

have this permit, this HMS permit or whatever it would be, 6 

they’re allowed to carry fifty people. 7 

 8 

If the Coast Guard comes up to board the vessel, we need to make 9 

sure that we know that there’s seventy-five people on here and 10 

what’s going on and we see some fishing poles and we see some 11 

people whale watching and is this person just trying to beat the 12 

system by putting more fishermen on the boat under the hundred 13 

person part of the inspection or -- You know what I’m saying?  14 

There’s opportunities to circumvent the system. 15 

 16 

Is it overly burdensome?  No.  We’re going to do the boarding no 17 

matter what, but it’s going to require -- I guess the best way 18 

to say it is there’s opportunity for circumvention.   19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, sir.  Myron, did you want to 21 

comment? 22 

 23 

Mr. FISCHER:  I have a solution possibly, at least something to 24 

bring up.  On charterboats, for-hire vessels, and I don’t know 25 

what’s on commercial vessels, but you do have a custom decal 26 

that either has -- I don’t remember if it’s your document number 27 

or your permit number.  Obviously that decal was printed for 28 

you. 29 

 30 

If you would have your maximum capacity stamped on it and upon 31 

getting boarded, the boarding officer sees you have your decal 32 

and hopefully they check to see if the boat is a legal 33 

charterboat and they see your decal and they see the number 34 

stamped on it and that’s the maximum amount of passengers he 35 

could have and it has nothing to do with the certificate of 36 

inspection. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t think that’s the point, Myron.  The 39 

point is if it’s certified for a hundred passengers and the 40 

fishing is for only fifty, what is your decal going to tell 41 

them? 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  Fifty, because it’s our permit. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s no problem if they don’t carry more 46 

than the fishing authority is.  The problem is -- 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  But he could still carry a hundred on his other --1 

Because we didn’t change his certificate of inspection. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Your solution, they can’t go whale watching 4 

with a hundred people. 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  They don’t need a permit from us to go whale 7 

watching.  That permit is only for fishing. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That goes back to the Coast Guard problem of 10 

what are they doing.   11 

 12 

MR. HENDRIX:  Just to clarify things, as Shep said, we’re going 13 

to have to go beyond this too, because Commander DeGeorge -- If 14 

you find a fishing rod onboard, any fishing equipment, then 15 

they’re going to be in fishing mode and is that correct? 16 

 17 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  That would probably have to be defined here, 18 

because it would have to be very clear what mode that person is 19 

in and then what defines that mode.  If the person is -- I’m 20 

going to use the example of whale watching. 21 

 22 

If they’re out in whale watching mode, maybe they would have to 23 

leave all their gear behind or all the gear would have to be 24 

stowed, so when the Coast Guard came on, we would know they’re 25 

in whale watching mode and they’re under this part of the COI.  26 

Let’s say we board them again and they have fishing gear onboard 27 

and we flip to the back and they’re under the amended part of 28 

the COI and they’re fishing. 29 

 30 

MR. HENDRIX:  We’re going to have to include the restrictions 31 

along with any changes.  Is that correct? 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ultimately, would this go to the Law 34 

Enforcement Committee or Administrative Policy?  Obviously we’re 35 

not going to solve it today, but we can continue to have 36 

dialogue and then assign it to the appropriate committee for 37 

further discussion and at that time, decide whether that 38 

committee and full council want to address it. 39 

 40 

MR. RIECHERS:  I was just going to say that one of the ways we 41 

could do it is have no fishing gear stored on deck and that 42 

would be one way to help solve that issue of what are they are 43 

doing.  There’s some things we can talk about with enforcement 44 

and ways to do this, but I think we do have to recognize that 45 

people change businesses and they change vessels. 46 

 47 

When we put the rule into place, we wrote it the best we knew 48 
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how.  It now, because of some shifting of vessels, has hamstrung 1 

some folks and we let some folks get through and now we’ve 2 

hamstrung some other ones and so I think we need to look at this 3 

as we move forward and assign it to the appropriate committee 4 

and put it on the agenda next time. 5 

 6 

What we probably should do is get the verbiage of the rules in 7 

front of us and maybe have some options of what we might be able 8 

to do from a law enforcement standpoint and start the work 9 

through a notion of an alternative that may make some sense and 10 

have a little more discussion about it there. 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just going to say that what I recall of why 13 

we did this is back when they developed this for-hire 14 

charterboat permit is that they wanted to make sure in order to 15 

cap effort that if somebody went out and bought a vessel that 16 

they would not go and buy a hundred-foot vessel, to where they 17 

could carry more people and increase effort, when they maybe had 18 

a fifty-foot vessel.  That’s why we did it, back when they did 19 

the whole charterboat/headboat type permit system. 20 

 21 

It was to cap effort.  They didn’t want them growing upward and 22 

it had all to do with fishing and as far as all of this other 23 

that you’re talking about, the COI, I don’t remember any of 24 

that. 25 

 26 

MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Hendrix asked my precise question.  What we’re 27 

talking about is not running concomitant types of trips.  That’s 28 

an understood thing. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My suggestion then is that we ask staff to 31 

include this in the next meeting of the Enforcement Committee.  32 

I think that’s the appropriate committee.  Bob, do you want to 33 

add to that? 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  If we’re going to go that route, 36 

it would seem to me that an analogous issue is the crew size 37 

issue that we’ve been talking about and it ought to go along at 38 

the same time, since it’s similar but a different problem. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree and so we’re going to fatten up the 41 

agenda for that committee and if there’s no further urgent 42 

business, we’re going to -- 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  It’s not urgent, but I’m just curious.  In your 45 

wisdom, do you think we’ll go the whole day tomorrow, now that 46 

we seem to be way ahead of schedule? 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re not really ahead of schedule, because 1 

these are additional items.  My best guess is it’s probably 2 

going to go between three and four tomorrow, but who knows?  We 3 

may just sail right along.  In any case, we’re going to recess 4 

now until 8:30 tomorrow morning, when Dr. Bortone is going to 5 

give us a lesson in Fisheries 101.  If you want to sleep a 6 

little late tomorrow, it’s probably the time to do it. 7 

 8 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:15 p.m., June 16, 2010.) 9 

 10 

- - - 11 

 12 

June 17, 2010 13 

 14 

THURSDAY MORNING SESSION 15 

 16 

- - - 17 

 18 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 19 

Council reconvened in the Coastal Ballroom of the Courtyard 20 

Marriott, Gulfport, Mississippi, Thursday morning, June 17, 21 

2010, and was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Chairman Bob 22 

Shipp. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We will return to the agenda as printed.  We’re 25 

going to defer the Other Business items that we did not get to 26 

until the end of the meeting today and so that means we’ll 27 

return to the agenda as printed and the next item on the agenda 28 

is Fisheries 101, Tab H, Dr. Bortone. 29 

 30 

FISHERIES 101 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thanks a lot, Dr. Shipp.  What I’ve 33 

put together here is just an introduction of what we had planned 34 

to do on the staff.  It occurred to me, because I’ve attended 35 

the orientation in D.C., and what seems to be missing in the 36 

orientation packages of everything that everybody puts together, 37 

feds and at the council level, is that we’re not really 38 

introducing fisheries to anybody.   39 

 40 

You’re being taught and told about Magnuson and there’s law 41 

enforcement and process and procedure, but there’s this giant 42 

gap where there’s just a little bit of fisheries biology taught 43 

and yet the votes are basically fisheries biology and fisheries 44 

management. 45 

 46 

We thought staff would put together a primer, if you will, and 47 

the plan is to do a little bit each week and the purpose is to 48 
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give background materials for fisheries.  We’re going to borrow 1 

from some of the work that already is out there.  Rick Wallace 2 

has done a couple of things that we’re going to use and I’ve 3 

done something and then there’s some newer things out there that 4 

are a little more sophisticated, but we figure we can put them 5 

in a more digestible and easily understood manner. 6 

 7 

For example, I was attempting to put together a flow chart for 8 

my staff and realized that there really wasn’t a very good one 9 

sitting around anywhere and some of the things have even changed 10 

in that since some of these have been put together and so, 11 

again, we’ll be looking at that sort of thing and just talking 12 

about some of the basic biology, things that are going on. 13 

 14 

Some of it will be a little on an easy scale and it won’t be too 15 

in depth, but still to go through the rationale and reasons for 16 

some of the data that are being collected.  Talking about energy 17 

and growth, I think that’s going to come up in terms of our oil 18 

effects here in the long run, because that’s going to be the 19 

bigger issue that we’re going to see impacted, I think. 20 

 21 

Looking at growth and otoliths and that sort of thing and 22 

environmental stress and we all know what that will have some 23 

potential to do, but the idea is to give everybody a bit of a 24 

background and bring them up to speed. 25 

 26 

Probably what we’ll do is like fifteen minutes or twenty minutes 27 

at each council meeting for next say ten or twelve council 28 

meetings and try to put this together, so eventually there will 29 

be a package, if you will, a series of PowerPoint and talking 30 

points that when new members come in they can sit down go 31 

through this whole thing. 32 

 33 

We’ll start out with all of you being the participants and then 34 

we’ll get comments back and refine in and then we’ll have it 35 

down pat.  This is near and dear to Bob’s heart and mine, is the 36 

artificial reef issues, but we’ll get into some of that. 37 

 38 

Then looking into management as well and that includes things 39 

like stock abundance and recruitment and explaining that in a 40 

hopefully digestible way and then maybe some of the more 41 

sophisticated interpretations and maybe even how to read some of 42 

these things that we’ve been presented that a lot of times 43 

people just assume you know what they’re all about, but 44 

hopefully we can interpret them a little better. 45 

 46 

Some of the modeling that goes in -- You’ve probably heard of 47 

some of these terms that are out there, but we’ll go into the 48 
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derivation of some of these at a level that I hope will be 1 

meaningful. 2 

 3 

The real point is to get this across to everybody and to aim at 4 

all of you with the idea that we can in fact build up some 5 

better communication.  The audience is everybody and it’s not 6 

just council members.  I hope that the audience that attends 7 

these meetings, the public, will be involved as well and so we 8 

hope in the long run we’ll build up a better communication 9 

system. 10 

 11 

This is something that we’re -- Part of the reason for some of 12 

this is sort of to build up this flow of information.  We look 13 

at the council as sort of a waypoint between the public and the 14 

government, or National Marine Fisheries Service, and if we can 15 

do anything to help communicate those ideas better, I think 16 

that’s important. 17 

 18 

I think some of us get into this mode, that the public certainly 19 

sees us in this view and we want to try to avoid that.  As I 20 

said, one of the outcomes of this will be an electronic form of 21 

this, so that we’ll have it readily available and we can send it 22 

to new people and it will be out there for the public and I 23 

suspect at some point we’ll get the other councils involved with 24 

this as well. 25 

 26 

We’re starting out and you’re probably seen our new website, but 27 

it will all be located up on there, but I just wanted to give 28 

you a brief introduction to this.  We’ll have new members at our 29 

next meeting and we’ll be presenting some of this orientation 30 

material and that’s -- I’ve got one speaker lined up who is 31 

going to come in and talk about some issues and so hopefully 32 

that will get us started. 33 

 34 

I just wanted to take a few minutes this morning to kind of give 35 

you a heads-up and if you would give us, me or the staff, some 36 

topics that you might like to see covered and explained as we 37 

explore this over the next couple of years.  Thanks. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Bortone.  Any comments for 40 

Steve? 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I’m happy to see the human element in your biology 43 

presentation. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next item on the agenda is the Reef Fish 46 

Management Committee Report.  It’s Tab B and I think Trish sent 47 

it to everybody late yesterday afternoon and you should have it 48 
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and so I’m going to turn it over to Mr. Gill. 1 

 2 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I will not be reading the 5 

entire committee report directly.  I’ll summarize some and read 6 

what I believe to be the germane aspects.  We did meet and we 7 

did the agenda and then the minutes were passed. 8 

 9 

Dr. Koenig gave us a PowerPoint presentation looking at the 10 

history around the Madison-Swanson Reserve and found that things 11 

had improved slightly and not in abundance, but in male to 12 

female gag ratio, but poaching was a major issue. 13 

 14 

He had three points that if we’re going to achieve anything that 15 

we need to close major gag spawning areas for a ten-year 16 

experimental period, make the enforcement really accountable and 17 

workable, and make trolling illegal. 18 

 19 

The SSC report provided ABCs for gag and red grouper for 2011 20 

and 2012 and the ABC for gag was 1.17 million pounds gutted 21 

weight and 2012 was 1.64 million pounds.  Red grouper was 6.31 22 

million pounds for 2011 and for 2012, it was 6.32 million 23 

pounds. 24 

 25 

We then worked on Amendment 32 Options Paper for gag and red 26 

grouper and reviewed action-by-action and there were no changes 27 

in Action 1, Rebuilding Plan for Gag.  We discussed the length 28 

of the rebuild program, but we made no suggestions and I would 29 

pause at this point to ask if there’s any discussion by council 30 

on Action 1 in Amendment 32.  Seeing none, I’ll move on to 31 

Action 2. 32 

 33 

In Action 2, Discussion of Annual Catch Limits and Annual Catch 34 

Targets, we had just two alternatives, no action, which is not 35 

viable, because overfishing would continue, or an alternative to 36 

set ACL equal to ABC and ACT equal to OY, in accordance with the 37 

protocol established in Amendment 30B. 38 

 39 

The committee felt that since the protocol for setting gag and 40 

red grouper ACL and ABC was already established and there was 41 

only one viable alternative in the section that this section did 42 

not need to be an action item with alternatives, but rather a 43 

notice and discussion of the updated ACL and ACT values.  By a 44 

voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, and I 45 

so move, that Action 2 be modified into a discussion. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 48 



86 

 

discussion?  Is there any objections?  Hearing none, the motion 1 

passes. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  That completes Action 2, unless there’s further 4 

discussion by the council.  Seeing none, we’ll go to Action 3, 5 

which is Gag, Red Grouper, and Shallow-Water Grouper 6 

Accountability Measures. 7 

 8 

Steven Atran reviewed the differences between the three 9 

alternatives outlined in Table 2.3.1 on page 35.  I’ll skip down 10 

to the second paragraph.  Roy Crabtree noted that the 11 

accountability measures currently apply on a sector level.   12 

 13 

It is possible that a sector may have such a large overage that 14 

the entire ACL is exceeded.  In such a case, he felt that no 15 

sector should be allowed to increase its next year’s catch 16 

level.  Dr. Crabtree began to make a motion that quota increases 17 

in the following year are contingent upon the current year’s 18 

total catches not exceeding the combined allowable catch levels, 19 

but a question arose as to whether the motion should apply to 20 

exceeding the ACL or ABC.  Rather than misstate the motion, he 21 

suggested that staff develop the appropriate wording. 22 

 23 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 24 

and I so move, that staff develop a solution to the problem of 25 

quota increases and ACLs and present it to the council. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  28 

Any objections?  The motion passes. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  We have, following that motion, on the third page of 31 

the committee report, staff suggested wording to add the 32 

following as Alternative 5 to Action 3: If, for a given species 33 

of species group, the catches of all sectors in aggregate exceed 34 

the aggregate of all sector ACLs, the target catch levels for 35 

each sector for the following year will remain at the previous 36 

year's level.  In addition, any applicable overage adjustment 37 

will be applied to the sector or sectors that exceed their 38 

respective ACLs. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, would you like to make a motion to adopt 41 

that language or would you prefer to continue on and allow the 42 

staff to refine it even further or are you content with this? 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  Is the language in the report or -- 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  The language is in the report. 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  Where is it? 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  On page 3, two-thirds of the way down, right below 3 

the motion in bold. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  After the committee made the motion for the 6 

staff to recommend wording, they went ahead and did recommend 7 

the wording and inserted it in the committee report and so we 8 

can either address it now or defer, but anything we can get down 9 

now, the better. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems right.  That seems to address it.  I 12 

don’t know what you need exactly, Bob. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  We’ll try and get it up on the board and it seems to 15 

me that we ought to make a motion and move it if that’s what the 16 

council wishes, or modify it or change it or delete it. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are you all working towards putting the 19 

verbiage up?  Great.  The verbiage is up and I would entertain a 20 

motion to adopt that language. 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  I move we adopt that language. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  There is a second.  25 

Discussion?  Any objections?  The language is adopted. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  That completes committee action on Action 3 and if 28 

there’s no further discussion by council, we’ll move on to 29 

Action 4.  Action 4 was Adjustments to Multiuse IFQ Shares and 30 

no motions were made.  They were discussed and we did add new 31 

alternatives the last meeting, but no further action by the 32 

committee on Action 4.  Is there discussion by the council?   33 

 34 

Seeing none, Action 5, Recreational Bag Limits, Size Limits, and 35 

Closed Seasons, Andy Strelcheck reviewed the gag recreational 36 

management decision spreadsheet and we had considerable 37 

discussion on attaining the reductions needed. 38 

 39 

Following down to the bottom of Action 5 on page 4, by a voice 40 

vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, and I so 41 

move, that in Action 5, an alternative be added that would 42 

exempt spear fishermen from the multispecies closure of shallow-43 

water grouper and only apply the gag closure to them. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 46 

 47 

MS. MORRIS:  Was this actually adopted in the South Atlantic?  48 
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It’s hard for me to figure out how this would work and it would 1 

be good to know more about how the discussion of this unfolded 2 

in the South Atlantic. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  The South Atlantic last week took final action on 5 

Amendment 17A, which was a red snapper rebuilding plan.  In it, 6 

they put in place a closed area and I think it was, in the end, 7 

something over 4,000 square miles that was closed to all bottom 8 

fishing, but they exempted spear fishermen from the closure. 9 

 10 

The reason was the purpose of the closure was to avoid bycatch 11 

of red snapper while fishing for other bottom fish and the 12 

council felt that spear fishermen were unlikely to inadvertently 13 

shoot a red snapper while spearfishing for other things and so 14 

they exempted spear fishermen. 15 

 16 

They also allowed black sea bass pots to be fished in the area, 17 

because the evidence was there was very little red snapper 18 

bycatch in those.  I think the rationale here would be the same.  19 

We’re closing these other species of grouper in order to avoid 20 

gag discards and so in the end, it comes down to do you believe 21 

that spear fishermen would have a bycatch issue with gag or do 22 

you believe that they can selectively remove the other species 23 

without having any bycatch of gag. 24 

 25 

I think also complications to this are concerns about spawning 26 

season closures and things like that, where clearly you may want 27 

to prohibit spearfishing.  I think there are a lot of things you 28 

need to weigh here.  My concern with this was just to make sure 29 

that we fully considered all of this and discussed it. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Julie, this is added as an alternative for 32 

public comment and so forth and so does that discussion satisfy 33 

you? 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  I can’t say I’m for or against this motion.  I’m 36 

not sure what it says.  Does that mean spear fishermen are still 37 

able to spearfish for other species other than gag?  Is that 38 

what we’re trying to say? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think what this means is if we had a shallow-41 

water grouper closure that spear fishermen would be able to fish 42 

for other species of shallow-water grouper, but not gag. 43 

 44 

MR. ATRAN:  I just wanted a little clarification.  Is this 45 

intended to apply only to seasonal closures or should it apply 46 

to time/area closures as well? 47 

 48 
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DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s something we would have to figure 1 

out. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dave Cupka, did you have a comment? 4 

 5 

MR. CUPKA:  I was just going to add that because of the severe 6 

impact on this closed area we were looking at that we wanted to 7 

mitigate some of that impact somehow and felt that giving people 8 

the opportunity to spearfish would help to mitigate some of 9 

those economics from closing that area.  That was one reason why 10 

we did it. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Again, a reminder that -- 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  It seems like the closed areas that we’re talking 15 

about in Amendment 32 are designed to protect gag specifically 16 

and so it doesn’t seem like it would make sense for this action 17 

to address closed areas like the Edges and any additional closed 18 

areas that we might establish through Amendment 32. 19 

 20 

It seems like in the situation in Amendment 32 that we’re 21 

talking about seasonal closures of shallow-water grouper, in 22 

order to reduce the harvest of gag overall.  That’s a different 23 

purpose than the closed areas that we were talking about. 24 

 25 

It might make sense to change the motion so that it would be not 26 

-- We don’t intend this to apply to closed areas, but to 27 

seasonal closures.  Is that the right language to make the 28 

differentiation? 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The closed areas, Julie, I believe are so deep 31 

that I can’t imagine anybody spearfishing there anyway.  I would 32 

rather not complicate the issue if we don’t need to.  What are 33 

we talking, forty fathoms, 240 feet?  Who is going to spearfish 34 

there?  I don’t know. 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  Number one, we haven’t decided on the closed 37 

areas yet and so it’s hard to say.  I agree with you though the 38 

ones we’re looking at are awfully deep for spearfishing.  On the 39 

other hand, if they are that deep, I don’t see much reason that 40 

we ought to apply an exemption for them in those areas. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My thought is that this is an alternative that 43 

we will get some discussion on and perhaps then if we need to 44 

refine the language, we can do it.   45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  It seems to me that that should be some of the 47 

options under this alternative that staff can flesh out when 48 
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they edit it and bring it back to us in August. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN GILL:  Agreed. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  I agree with Bob.  I think the key thing here is 5 

just to make sure we provide a sound rationale for whether we’re 6 

going to prohibit spearfishing or not prohibit it, just to show 7 

we considered it and here’s why we decided what we did. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I interpret that as no objection to this motion 10 

as written and the motion passes, with instruction to council 11 

staff to address the verbiage.  Bill, do you want to drag it out 12 

some more? 13 

 14 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes, I do.  I have no intention of going home 15 

today.  Just a quick question for Bob or any of the other 16 

committee members.  I thought during this period that we had 17 

some discussion about direction to staff to try to lay out 18 

options to avoid total closure.  Was I imagining that or is that 19 

something anybody else remembers? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, we absolutely asked staff, I think at the 22 

end of Dr. Strelcheck’s presentation, to take a look at putting 23 

together some alternatives for us that combined area closures 24 

and some closed seasons and try to come up with some way to 25 

avoid a total closure. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  That discussion is in the report under Action 8, 28 

because we hit it later on in the committee. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much, Robin.  Again, I view this 31 

motion as passed, the one regarding spearfishing.   32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  That concludes our discussion on Action 5.  Action 6 34 

is Bycatch Issues.  Action 6.1 is Commercial Bycatch.  A motion 35 

was initially made to move Alternative 2, which is establish a 36 

commercial gag bycatch quota, and Alternative 3, which is 37 

establish an electronic or video monitoring system, to 38 

Considered but Rejected. 39 

 40 

Alternative 2 would require 100 percent observer coverage to be 41 

effective and both alternatives would have lag time in making 42 

the data available, which would preclude real-time monitoring.  43 

In addition, there would be a high cost for the amount of 44 

bycatch being monitored.  However, Shepherd Grimes cautioned 45 

that the council needed to look at a broad range of 46 

alternatives. 47 

 48 
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Roy Crabtree stated that Alternatives 2 and 3 should have 1 

options to achieve 71 or 75 percent bycatch reduction, since 2 

that is the target reduction level in 2011.  Steven Atran added 3 

that for the commercial sector that the objective wasn’t so much 4 

to reduce current bycatch, but to mitigate any increase in the 5 

gag bycatch from the reduction in IFQ. 6 

 7 

Dr. Crabtree noted that observer data showed a much higher 8 

bycatch level than that used in the 2009 SEDAR update 9 

assessment, on the order of a two-to-one ratio of landed to 10 

discarded fish.  This difference in bycatch levels would likely 11 

affect the options in Action 6.1. 12 

 13 

There is a note that the SEDAR assessments calculated dead 14 

discards as a function of size-at-depth data from the TIP 15 

survey, estimated release mortality at depth, and the frequency 16 

size distribution of fish caught that were below the current 17 

minimum size regulations during 1984 to 1989. 18 

 19 

Following this discussion, the motion to remove Alternatives 2 20 

and 3 was withdrawn and the issue of observer bycatch levels was 21 

referred to the IPT.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the 22 

committee recommends, and I so move, that the dead discard 23 

estimates in the alternatives in Action 6.1 be reevaluated in 24 

the context of the observer data and that expected increases in 25 

commercial dead discards through the actions in this Amendment 26 

32 be projected. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just have a question.  I’m not certain, and I 31 

would like for someone to take a look, but I don’t think we’re 32 

having some of the issues as far as problems that we think that 33 

we have with both gag and red. 34 

 35 

In some of our own documents, it states that 830,000 pounds 36 

hasn’t even been harvested in the last two years by some of 37 

those shareholders and are not expected to be.  Some of the 38 

boats were inactive for two years.  If you go and you look at 39 

the number of your people that actually holds the ITQ shares, 40 

there were like 191 people that received ITQ shares that weren’t 41 

even active.  That’s over a million pounds when you do the 42 

percentages and stuff in here. 43 

 44 

I think a lot of the information that has went into our 45 

assessment perhaps could be incorrect on their assumptions, 46 

according to the language that I’m reading on the groupers.  I 47 

spoke with Andy yesterday and, Andy, did you ever find the 48 
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information where it was stating that there was more gag from 1 

Alabama to Texas caught than in Florida?  Would you mind coming 2 

up here and just saying a little something about that? 3 

 4 

MR. STRELCHECK:  What you’re speaking about is totally 5 

independent of the assessment process and so that pertains to 6 

the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment and we’re looking into the 7 

errors in possibly one of the tables, in terms of how data was 8 

summarized.  That’s all post-assessment analytical work done for 9 

economic analyses. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  But they also refer to different other things, 12 

such as a lot of the vessels are not active.  I wasn’t aware 13 

that 191 people received shares that hadn’t even fished in two 14 

years and they’re not really even looking to continue to fish 15 

and I don’t know, in your assessments, if all of that was taken 16 

into account.  Could you answer that for me? 17 

 18 

MR. STRELCHECK:  The key factors in the assessment are going to 19 

be the abundance indices, which are all consistently showing 20 

declines in abundance of the population, as well as the age of 21 

the population, which showed that the age structure of the 22 

population had been truncated and was showing high levels of 23 

fishing mortality for gag grouper. 24 

 25 

Those are the two primary pieces of information.  It also takes 26 

into account reductions in landings, for whatever reason that 27 

occurred, whether people are fishing or not fishing. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The reason I’m asking is because in some of the 30 

literature that I’ve read from the SSC, they were making 31 

assumptions and they weren’t really sure why the landings were 32 

down in some areas and even though the information was collected 33 

for a totally different reason, I think that would shine a light 34 

on some of this, because I do know that in the assessment the 35 

indices and the effort, all of that that’s taken into the 36 

picture, even though this was done for a totally different 37 

reason, would answer those questions and probably give them a 38 

different outcome.  That’s what I’m concerned about.  Am I 39 

wrong? 40 

 41 

MR. STRELCHECK:  I’m not going to stand here and say you’re 42 

right or wrong here.  What you’re discussing is potentially 43 

effects that could be considered or taken into account in the 44 

management process if things have changed since the stock 45 

assessment and those adjustments should be factored into future 46 

management actions. 47 

 48 
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For instance, Amendment 31, which implemented longline 1 

restrictions for endorsements, that will now change the behavior 2 

of the fishery, where they fish, when they fish.  Those things 3 

have to be accounted for obviously as we proceed forward in 4 

terms of future management, but just because landings are below 5 

the quota, it doesn’t mean there’s been a net savings to the 6 

population if the population has declined in abundance to the 7 

point where they can’t actually harvest the quota because 8 

there’s less fish out in the water. 9 

 10 

You can’t actually link the two together and have that one-to-11 

one correlation that just because landings are down that it’s 12 

solely because people aren’t out there fishing for the actual 13 

grouper in the water. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion?  Any 16 

objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Action 6.2 is Recreational Bycatch.  Committee 19 

members noted that alternatives in this section for size and 20 

slot limit overlap the management scenarios in Action 5.  It was 21 

felt that this is because the amendment is too compartmentalized 22 

and an initial motion was made to move Alternatives 3 and 4 and 23 

the related discussions into Action 5. 24 

 25 

However, a substitute motion was made to move the entire Action 26 

6.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee 27 

recommends, and I so move, that Action 6.1 and Action 6.2 be 28 

removed from the options paper and that those recreational 29 

alternatives be embedded into Action 5 and either create a new 30 

action for commercial management measures or move it into the 31 

appropriate existing action. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 34 

discussion?  Is there opposition?  The motion passes. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  That completes Action 6 on bycatch.  Action 7 is 37 

Recreational Data Collection and Monitoring Programs.  We did 38 

not make any changes.  We did discuss about fish tags and how 39 

they might be incorporated and that will be on the agenda for 40 

the next Reef Fish Committee and Data Collection Committee 41 

meetings.  Any other discussion? 42 

 43 

MS. MORRIS:  On that issue, it seems like the discussion you 44 

have in August on this would benefit from some background work 45 

and maybe some work, some cooperative work, among the state 46 

directors and Gulf States Commission prior to the August 47 

meeting.  I guess I’m just offering that as a suggestion. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  I think it’s a good one.  Any other discussions under 2 

Action 7?  Moving on to Action 8, Time and Area Closures, Andy 3 

Strelcheck gave a presentation on the reductions and we did not 4 

-- 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  We had an interim rule request.  If the full 7 

council is going to vote on that, we need a roll call vote, I 8 

believe. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  That’s coming up a little later.  I haven’t gotten to 11 

that yet, sir.  We made no motions on time and area closures, 12 

though the committee did request that the IPT examine areas that 13 

could be closed in order to provide significant reductions for 14 

the commercial and/or recreational sectors. 15 

 16 

These alternatives would probably be best presented as a suite 17 

of alternatives and they agreed that they would like the IPT to 18 

assess the impacts of different geographic closures on each 19 

sector, based on red grouper and gag habitat differences 20 

presented by Andy Strelcheck.  That completed discussion on 21 

Amendment 32.  Before we go further, is there any further 22 

discussion by the council on Amendment 32? 23 

 24 

The next section then was precisely the one Dr. Crabtree just 25 

mentioned, which was consideration of a request for an interim 26 

rule for gag.  Steven Atran referred to the interim rule 27 

management scenarios in the last table in Tab B-6(a) and noted 28 

that the 71 percent reduction in gag removals needed for 2011 29 

could not be achieved without a shallow-water grouper closure.  30 

However, reductions of 60 to 63 percent were achievable. 31 

 32 

Roy Crabtree stated that if an interim rule were proposed at 33 

this meeting that the NMFS public comment period may or may not 34 

be closed by the August council meeting.  The interim rule would 35 

need to consider three things: 1)recreational gag management 36 

measures; 2)the commercial quota; and 3)adjustment of multiuse 37 

IFQ shares. 38 

 39 

Steve Atran stated that the 2011 commercial gag quota would be 40 

390,000 pounds gutted weight at the ACT level and 460,000 pounds 41 

at the ACL level. 42 

 43 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 44 

and I so move, that the council request an interim rule that 45 

reflects setting the commercial quota at 390,000 pounds for 2011 46 

and closes the recreational harvest of gag. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My understanding is that this will require a 1 

roll call vote, but let’s have discussion first. 2 

 3 

MS. MORRIS:  I wanted to offer an amendment to the motion and it 4 

would say, at the end of the motion, “and closes the 5 

recreational harvest of gag for the interim rule period with the 6 

expectation that recreational management defined in Amendment 32 7 

will define what recreational harvest is allowed during the 8 

balance of 2011”. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a second. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  That was one point I wanted to make, what was the 13 

period of time on this recreational thing.  I think Julie’s 14 

amendment handles that, but are we -- It’s still legal to catch 15 

recreationally a gag, but we just can’t retain them.  That’s 16 

what we’re doing.  We’re not stopping recreational fishing, but 17 

we’re stopping retention, if this passes.  I’m just wondering if 18 

“harvest” should be changed to “retention” or if everyone 19 

understands it as retention, I guess it’s okay. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  We have a subsequent portion of a motion in committee 22 

to add to the interim rule and my suggestion is when we get done 23 

with this motion that we consider adding that, so we have one 24 

interim rule and one roll call vote. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t understand.  In other words, are you 27 

saying we’re going to have multiple motions? 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  We had two motions in committee relative to -- 30 

Perhaps I shouldn’t have done it that way, but relative to 31 

establishing the interim rule.  Since we require a roll call 32 

vote, we ought to wrap both into one and have one roll call vote 33 

for an interim rule. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That would mean we would have to roll both 36 

motions into one. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Yes, sir. 39 

 40 

MR. RIECHERS:  If the maker of this motion would like to 41 

include, “after 2011”, “and to suspend red grouper multiuse 42 

shares”, I think that gets it. 43 

 44 

MS. MORRIS:  An excellent suggestion. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s gotten a little bit complex, but I think -47 

- 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  It needs to be “and to suspend red grouper multiuse 2 

shares”. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is everyone clear where we are and what we’re 5 

going to do, because we’re going to take a roll call vote on 6 

this.  Phyllis, could you kind of merge the -- We need to pass 7 

the amendment first. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  What is the anticipated dates of the interim rule? 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think our intent was to have it effective 12 

January 1. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  For 180 days, normally? 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes and then it could be extended for 186. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Less it becomes forgotten, Andy did pass around, I 19 

think it was after the committee, that there were red grouper 20 

multiuse shares that could be utilized as some low percentage, 21 

and I think it was less than one-and-a-half, but I just mention 22 

it so that we don’t get hung up on whether we necessarily want 23 

to suspend or allow some very modest amount. 24 

 25 

MS. MORRIS:  It’s just wordsmithing again.  We need to add 26 

“recreational harvest” at the beginning of the amendment.  It’s 27 

just repeating what’s already in this amendment.  The committee 28 

motion says “and closes the recreational harvest of gag” and 29 

this just says “and closes harvest of gag” and so I want the 30 

word “recreational”. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, do you feel that we need to suspend the red 33 

grouper multiuse shares? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, I think we do. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the amendment? 38 

 39 

MR. SAPP:  I just want to go on record as making the point of 40 

how uncomfortable I am with an interim rule that’s going to 41 

allow commercial harvest for six months, yet not allow 42 

recreational harvest during that six-month period. 43 

 44 

I understand the urgency and the need for the interim rule and I 45 

understand the constraints of what has to happen within the 46 

recreational fishery and I certainly appreciate Julie’s 47 

amendment that clarifies for anybody that’s reading that that it 48 
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is in fact our intention to allow harvest during 2011, based on 1 

whatever management rules we can come up with that will permit 2 

that harvest. 3 

 4 

I just wanted to be on record that there will be a lot of 5 

pushback from the recreational community because of the way this 6 

thing is structured, but that being said, I will support it, 7 

because I see the urgency of the measure. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If we’re ready to vote first on the amendment 10 

and then we’ll incorporate the amendment into the original 11 

motion and take a roll call vote on that.  For the amendment, 12 

all in favor of the amendment, signify by saying aye; opposed.  13 

Hearing none, can we then incorporate the amended portion into 14 

the original motion?  Any further discussion on this motion 15 

before we take a roll call vote?  Hearing none, is everybody 16 

clear with the verbiage as it’s on the screen?  Let’s go ahead 17 

and take a roll call vote. 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 20 

 21 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 28 

 29 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 32 

 33 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Morris. 40 

 41 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 42 

 43 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 48 
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 1 

MR. FISCHER:  No. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 10 

 11 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 14 

 15 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Ray. 20 

 21 

MR. RAY:  Yes. 22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight. 24 

 25 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  No. 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  Abstain. 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 36 

 37 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The tally is it is passed.  It’s 40 

three no, one abstain, and thirteen yes. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion passes. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  The second motion under the interim rule passed by 45 

the committee we just addressed.  The next action we took was 46 

Final Action on a Framework Amendment to Adjust Red Grouper TAC.  47 

Steven Atran reviewed the alternatives in the Red Grouper 48 
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Regulatory Amendment and noted that Alternative 3, which would 1 

set TAC at the OY level, is consistent with the previous policy 2 

in Amendment 30B. 3 

 4 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 5 

and I so move, that in the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment, 6 

Action 3.1, that Action 3 be the preferred alternative.  7 

Alternative 3 is to set the 2011 total allowable catch based on 8 

the yield projection for fishing at FOY, using the projection 9 

scenario recommended by the Scientific and Statistical Committee 10 

for setting the acceptable biological catch.  Total allowable 11 

catch would be 5.68 million pounds gutted weight for 2011.  12 

Based on the 76 percent/24 percent commercial to recreational 13 

allocation of red grouper, the commercial quota would be 4.32 14 

million pounds gutted weight and the recreational allocation 15 

would be 1.36 million pounds gutted weight for 2011.  The total 16 

allowable catch and commercial quota would remain at the 2011 17 

levels until modified by a subsequent amendment or framework 18 

procedure. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 21 

discussion?   22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve Atran, the SSC, I was reading where there 24 

was quite a bit of discussion on setting the OFL and even 25 

setting the OFL at the ABC and then a little later -- This is 26 

the gag and then the red grouper, it went on to say and you 27 

suggested that the overfishing limit was going to be based on -- 28 

The overfishing limit was based on the Science Center providing 29 

a corresponding Fmax to use as the overfishing limit.  Did the 30 

SSC come up with all of this or did the Science Center or did 31 

you or where did the actual figures come from? 32 

 33 

MR. ATRAN:  We got two different sets of yield streams for gag 34 

and red grouper.  For gag, we got an F rebuilding yield stream 35 

and an FOY.  For red grouper, we got an MSY yield stream, which 36 

is equivalent to OFL, and an OY yield stream.  We didn’t get an 37 

ABC yield stream and so the SSC decided to set ABC at 85 percent 38 

of the MSY level.  The OFL did come from the Science Center.  39 

The OY came from the Science Center.  The ABC was decided by the 40 

SSC for red grouper. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I question the need for the last sentence, total 43 

allowable catch and commercial quota is going to stay at the 44 

2011 levels.  My concern is what’s going on out there with the 45 

spill and if indeed this thing continues and we have problems in 46 

larger areas of the Gulf and because of that, we may want to 47 

reduce the take.   48 
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 1 

How long would it take to get an amendment or a framework in 2 

place to have to do that if we have what we perceive as a 3 

biological problem?  Do we have to go through a whole amendment 4 

process to reduce a TAC and commercial quota? 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  I think you could do a framework or an emergency 7 

rule, but understand if you’re talking about the commercial IFQ 8 

fishery, that’s got to be at the beginning of the year.  Really 9 

once the quota is out, it’s probably not practical to try to 10 

take what you’ve issued back. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Do we need that last sentence I guess is my 13 

question. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Ed, I don’t know if you want to answer that or 16 

if you have other comments. 17 

 18 

MR. SAPP:  I certainly don’t want to answer that. 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  I think it’s superfluous in that it’s going to 21 

happen whether you state it that way or not.  Until you change 22 

it, it’s what you set it at most recently. 23 

 24 

MR. SAPP:  I want to pile on to the issue that Corky is raising 25 

here and I want to throw out a question for discussion that I 26 

know that there’s no answer to and the question is, is it not 27 

appropriate for us, in this situation, to come in and at least 28 

consider applying some management uncertainty to this ABC, to 29 

arrive at an actual catch target? 30 

 31 

It seems like we’ve gotten the assessment and we’ve gotten the 32 

report from our SSC and we’ve gotten an ABC recommendation and 33 

all that transpired before the oil spill. 34 

 35 

It seems like it’s incumbent upon us to take into consideration 36 

anything that’s happened in the fishery subsequent to that 37 

report that we got from the SSC.  I can’t imagine any situation, 38 

any scenario, that introduces more management uncertainty than 39 

what this oil spill has introduced to us. 40 

 41 

Now it sounds like is the time for having those discussions and 42 

I certainly don’t have any solutions.  I don’t know if it’s 43 

appropriate to shut down fisheries or to apply a 5 percent 44 

correction to the ABCs that we got from the SSC, but I can’t 45 

imagine that we’re not even going to talk about it. 46 

 47 

MR. GRIMES:  I think Mr. Sapp is absolutely correct in that 48 



101 

 

everything we do for the foreseeable future is going to have to 1 

have some consideration of the impacts of the oil spill.  That’s 2 

definitely the case and I would be interested in hearing 3 

discussion from others, but my understanding of the 4 

consideration of management uncertainty is more related to the 5 

ability of management to effectively constrain harvest to your 6 

targets. 7 

 8 

I think in this case the effects of the oil spill aren’t 9 

increasing effort and making it more difficult for you to 10 

constrain fishing or harvest in the fishery to the targets.  11 

Maybe it’s moving it around and making it geographically a 12 

little bit different and I’m not discouraging you from 13 

incorporating management uncertainty.  It’s actually in the 14 

report that I had commented during committee that it’s something 15 

we need to make sure that we address. 16 

 17 

I don’t view it, in this instance, as being -- The oil spill 18 

itself isn’t going to create the kind of management uncertainty 19 

that’s going to require you to further reduce the harvest 20 

targets or implement more restrictive measures in order to 21 

prevent harvest from exceeding those targets. 22 

 23 

I would think that it might introduce some scientific 24 

uncertainty as to the impacts on the stocks and perhaps that 25 

might argue for a more precautionary harvest target, but that’s 26 

the scientific uncertainty versus management uncertainty and I 27 

would see this more as a scientific uncertainty issue. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would agree and I’m not sure what we can do 30 

at this juncture, other than proceed. 31 

 32 

MR. TEEHAN:  I agree that it’s a scientific uncertainty and I’m 33 

not convinced that it’s something that is going to be immediate.  34 

If you think along the lines of larval issues and recruitment, 35 

we may be seeing the impact of this oil more three years down 36 

the road, when these fish would recruit into the fishery.  I’m 37 

not sure how to proceed on this either, whether we need to make 38 

an adjustment now, but we certainly need to keep our eyes on it. 39 

 40 

DR. PONWITH:  I certainly see an introduction of scientific 41 

uncertainty in the scenarios and I know when the stock 42 

assessments are run that they’re run based on some 43 

understandings of natural mortality and fishing mortality and I 44 

can see, under the current circumstance, where we would have 45 

changes to those assumptions, that the fishing patterns and 46 

overall fishing pressure would change, which influences the 47 

fishing mortality rates that stock assessments were based on and 48 
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that also the impacts of oil to different phases of the life 1 

history of those animals, ranging from eggs all the way up to 2 

the adults, would have some as yet undetermined impact on the 3 

natural mortality, which also influences assumptions that were 4 

used in the stock assessments. 5 

 6 

Those are the things that we’re trying to work with now to set 7 

monitoring programs in place to actually quantify, but there 8 

will be a lag between the onset of the event and our ability to 9 

actually capture a quantitative look with good expressions of 10 

uncertainty to be able to inform your decisions. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Ed summarized it up pretty well and I concur and 13 

I’m like him and I don’t have the answers, but there’s a lot of 14 

other uncertainties.  In talking to Myron Fischer, currently 15 

there’s an elevated level of shrimping effort in the western 16 

Louisiana area, because that’s the only area that’s open right 17 

now. 18 

 19 

You see the frustration on television of the fishermen, the 20 

mayors, the coastal counties, and so on and so forth.  One of 21 

the first meetings I ever had to go to for the Gulf Council was 22 

an emergency meeting held Christmas week of 1969 to come up with 23 

something because of a shooting between a shrimper and a stone 24 

crabber over a stone crab line. 25 

 26 

We’re facing a lot of uncertainties in this fisheries management 27 

and the human uncertainties I think are going to begin to play.  28 

Texas is going to have a shrimp opening and I imagine the effort 29 

off of Texas is going to probably be higher than it has ever 30 

been, which could increase bycatch problems and all sorts of 31 

things.   32 

 33 

There’s a lot of unknowns we’re all facing and I don’t know if 34 

we can take any action to try and be able to handle these type 35 

of things at this time, but who knows what the future is going 36 

to hold because of this tragedy going on right now? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I totally agree, but we’re faced with two 39 

alternatives.  We either proceed as we are or we can just shut 40 

down completely because there’s so much that’s going to change 41 

in the next couple of months and I guess my preference is to go 42 

ahead and proceed, being aware that everything may change 43 

completely in the next couple of months, but I don’t think that 44 

should stop us from moving ahead. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, I went back and looked at some of the 47 

figures and I just went and spoke with Steve Atran, because I 48 
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needed some clarity on the red grouper TAC.  The figures that 1 

was given in our documentation for red grouper was 7.42 and they 2 

said the ABC was 6.31, which is 85 percent of the overfishing 3 

level. 4 

 5 

Steve has told me, and I was questioning him, why is that 5.68 6 

instead of 6.31 and he said because we have factored in -- 7 

That’s actually the ACT.  I didn’t think we were doing ACT on 8 

the commercial industries that was under IFQs and when I went 9 

back and read some of the discussion where we were discussing 10 

our SSC talking about who sets the ABCs and the ACL, I even saw 11 

where the South Atlantic has even said if you’re under an IFQ 12 

there’s no reason to have an ACT.  Can you tell me why we’re 13 

setting this level at an ACT instead of an ACL? 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess you could have set the ACL at this level, 16 

but that’s not what we did in Amendment 30B.  We set it up where 17 

the ACL was at the OFL level and the ACT was at the optimum 18 

yield level.  If you wanted to reduce the ACL, I guess you 19 

could, but that’s not what we did in Amendment 30B. 20 

 21 

MS. MORRIS:  I’m back on the question of how do we continue to 22 

do our work with uncertainty regarding both the science and the 23 

management related to the deepwater disaster.  It seems like you 24 

could request kind of an update in August on what do we know 25 

scientifically about how the disaster is affecting red and gag 26 

grouper, both in terms of science and in terms of effort. 27 

 28 

You could just try to have that be part of each of your 29 

management committee meetings, because I’m sure there will be 30 

information, new information, available every couple of months.  31 

To the extent that anyone knows how effort is changing or how 32 

either the adults or the reproductive capacity of our managed 33 

species, you could try to be updated about that frequently. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I totally agree and, Roy, I think you want to 36 

follow-up on that? 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  The one thing I can think of that the Center 39 

might be able to give us, depending on timing, would be the 40 

preliminary results from the video survey.  Remember we have a 41 

fishery-independent video survey that does grouper and red 42 

snapper and other things and we could look at what that showed 43 

for this year and compare it to past years and see if we see an 44 

abrupt change. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, it was actually our SSC that chose the 6.31 47 

and so I don’t understand why we’re going with the 5.68.  I know 48 
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you said it’s because of something we did in another amendment, 1 

but I also thought there was discussion at that time that if you 2 

were under an IFQ that you did not have to set an ACT for the 3 

commercial sector and that they could harvest at the ACL and 4 

that’s set at the ACT. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  Then you would likely set the ACL at the same 7 

level you’ve set the ACT and they would have the same amount of 8 

fish, because we’ve set it at the level that we’ve defined to be 9 

the optimum yield level, which is 75 percent of MSY.  That’s the 10 

target and objective we’ve set up for the fishery and that’s 11 

reflected in these targets. 12 

 13 

Now, if you didn’t want to have a target, you could call it the 14 

ACL, I guess, but that means you would be more likely to trigger 15 

accountability measures, particularly on the recreational side, 16 

and I think part of the reason we went with ACTs was to avoid 17 

having accountability measures kick in. 18 

 19 

It could also, I guess, kick them in on the commercial side, 20 

although it’s very unlikely, because they’re not likely to 21 

exceed it, but that was the strategy we set up and then you 22 

could change it, Kay, but I don’t think you’re going to get any 23 

more fish unless you want to go in and redefine optimum yield 24 

somehow for these fisheries. 25 

 26 

We’ve got to remember that we have, I think, almost without 27 

exception, defined optimum yield as the yield fishing at 75 28 

percent of the MSY level, which is going to correspond roughly 29 

with the overfishing level.  Whether you call it ACL or ACT, 30 

we’re going to end up setting these things at that optimum yield 31 

level or we’re going to need to come back in and make 32 

adjustments to optimum yield. 33 

 34 

That’s how all of this happened and the council could change 35 

some of that, but we haven’t changed it and even in Amendment 32 36 

we’ve elected not to change it and so that’s just the decision 37 

that was made. 38 

 39 

MR. GRIMES:  I just wanted to respond very briefly that we had 40 

some discussion of this before and it’s not totally 41 

inconceivable that just because a commercial fishery is managed 42 

under an IFQ that it would still exceed the quota.   43 

 44 

We have multiuse shares that we’ve built in to allow some 45 

flexibility and if everybody decided to use those multiuse 46 

shares and everybody shifted over and used their multiuse in 47 

addition to a 10 percent overage provision, it is very possible 48 
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that they would exceed their ACL, resulting in triggering an 1 

accountability measure. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s vote this one up or down, even if there’s 4 

some superfluous language.  All in favor of the motion on the 5 

board signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  The staff was given editorial license to discuss 8 

management uncertainty in the document, which was brought up by 9 

Mr. Grimes.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee 10 

recommends, and I so move, that the council submit the Red 11 

Grouper Regulatory Amendment to the Secretary of Commerce and 12 

that the council deems the rules as necessary and appropriate. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This is a roll call vote.  Any discussion on 15 

this before we take a roll call vote? 16 

 17 

MR. GRIMES:  In light of some of the discussion we’ve already 18 

had, and I know you usually give staff editorial license, but 19 

we’re going to have to add some discussion to the document in 20 

terms of NEPA and oil spill and what the likely effects are. 21 

 22 

We’ve already had some of that discussion here today.  It’s 23 

going to have to be very general, because nobody knows, but that 24 

needs to be included in the document and it will be before it’s 25 

finalized and transmitted to the Fisheries Service. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Grimes, you don’t see a necessity for that 28 

language to come back to the council though for approval? 29 

 30 

MR. GRIMES:  No, sir.  We can include it. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other discussion before we take a roll call 33 

vote on this?  Hearing none, Dr. Bortone. 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight. 36 

 37 

MR. MCKNIGHT:  Yes. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 40 

 41 

DR. SHIPP:  Yes. 42 

 43 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 48 
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 1 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Ray. 8 

 9 

MR. RAY:  Yes. 10 

 11 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 12 

 13 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 14 

 15 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Morris. 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes. 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 28 

 29 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 42 

 43 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 44 

 45 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 4 

 5 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp, the vote passes 8 

seventeen to zero. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Bortone.  11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  The next item on the agenda was Final Action on 13 

Greater Amberjack Framework Action.  The recreational council 14 

members were asked for their opinions as to the best time of 15 

year to have a closed season for greater amberjack, but there 16 

was no consensus. 17 

 18 

One suggestion was to close greater amberjack when red snapper 19 

is open, but another suggestion was to have at least a one-month 20 

overlap when both fisheries are open.  After the motion below 21 

was made, a substitute motion to set the greater amberjack 22 

closed season at June 1 to July 1 failed by a vote of three to 23 

four. 24 

 25 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 26 

and I so move, that for Action 1 of the Greater Amberjack 27 

Regulatory Framework Action that Alternative 3 be the preferred 28 

alternative.  Alternative 3 is establish a recreational seasonal 29 

closure May 1 through June 30. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion and I’m sure we’re 32 

going to have some discussion. 33 

 34 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m going to make a substitute motion, much like 35 

I did in committee, and I don’t remember which alternative it is 36 

and I was trying to get to it, if someone has that greater 37 

amberjack, but I’m making the motion that we select the 38 

alternative that would have the season -- It’s the June 1 39 

through July 31 season.  Closed, I’m sorry. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That would be the closed season.  In other 42 

words, it would not overlap and it would provide a fishery for 43 

both red snapper and amberjack at different times, so they would 44 

have something to fish for. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  Due to environmental issues, none of us have any 47 

idea what’s going to happen with the oil spill and where is it 48 
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going to move and what areas it’s going to shut down, the fact 1 

that we may be shut down for the remainder of this year and we 2 

may be shut down January, February, and March of next year.  I 3 

move we table this entire discussion until the next meeting, 4 

until we can determine further what’s happening with the oil 5 

issue. 6 

 7 

MR. PERRET:  Second. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  A motion to table is not debatable.  It has 10 

been seconded.  If we want discussion, you need to vote down the 11 

motion to table.  The motion to table is on the board.  It’s to 12 

move to table to the August meeting, but, again, if you want 13 

discussion, you can vote this down.  Let’s have a show of hands 14 

and all in favor of tabling the motion raise your hand; all 15 

opposed.  The motion fails and so we go back to the previous 16 

motion. 17 

 18 

MR. GREENE:  I think I’ll second the motion, number one, but for 19 

discussion, I think it’s paramount that for the recreational 20 

fishery and the charter fishery that this will apply to -- We’re 21 

trying to close down amberjack during the red snapper fishery.  22 

I’m trying to keep a trophy fish available for people that can 23 

fish during that. 24 

 25 

Now, I understand we’re doing this as a result of a stock 26 

assessment that’s forthcoming later on.  Now, I agree with Mr. 27 

Fischer that we have no idea what’s going to happen in the 28 

future, but taking the information that we have to work off of 29 

with everything coming forth in the stock assessment, I think 30 

that we need to go ahead and do something regardless. 31 

 32 

As we talked about in the committee session, we may have to come 33 

back and knock this out of the way.  I still think that we need 34 

to do this, because having the month of May without anything to 35 

fish for, a grouper, a snapper, an amberjack, is just not a very 36 

good move, in my opinion. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  I wanted to make you aware that the Wave 2 MRFSS 39 

landings came out yesterday and that for greater amberjack the 40 

landings so far, Waves 1 and 2 for this year, were 390,492 41 

pounds. 42 

 43 

Remember Waves 1 and 2 is January, February, March, and April 44 

and so all of this is prior to any closed areas or oil spill 45 

impacts.  Last year during the same period, those landings were 46 

232,067 pounds.  I think you need to be aware that we’re -- Now, 47 

let me point out that this includes Monroe County in its 48 
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entirety and so the actual Gulf landings will be less, but 1 

that’s usually not that large an amount. 2 

 3 

I think the point is that we’re roughly -- At the end of Wave 2, 4 

we were 100,000 pounds ahead of where we were last year at that 5 

time and we’re fishing on a reduced quota this year because of 6 

the overrun and so just be aware of that. 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  In relation to Myron’s move to table, there was 9 

discussion in the committee about not selecting a preferred, but 10 

we thought it best to go ahead and select a preferred so that we 11 

at least signal to some folks kind of what our thinking is on 12 

that one, because we hadn’t selected the preferred before. 13 

 14 

We discussed these different alternatives, but I will say that 15 

yesterday Ms. Anderson said it in public testimony and several 16 

other people said it in public testimony, but this notion of 17 

trying to keep something open year-round is what we really are 18 

trying to achieve, so that charterboat folks, recreational 19 

folks, have an opportunity or something that they can go fish 20 

for. 21 

 22 

That’s the reason for the motion shift and the substitute motion 23 

is just trying to move that window so that when red snapper is 24 

open that greater amberjack is closed. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I see no further hands and so if we’re ready to 27 

vote -- Go ahead, Myron. 28 

 29 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s two points.  One is I agree with Roy that the 30 

catch in the first two waves was probably up, but the majority 31 

of the fish are caught in the third wave, which I would suspect 32 

with the majority of the Gulf Coast closed, that wave is going 33 

to be significantly lower. 34 

 35 

The other thing and it’s just -- I agree with Mr. Greene and I 36 

agree with the dates.  The fear I have is we would close down 37 

June and July, but we also end up closing January, February and 38 

March because of environmental issues and now we’re closed five 39 

months and not just two. 40 

 41 

I just wanted to wait and see and get further information, 42 

rather than hastily make a closure in the summertime, because we 43 

may also have a winter closure. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further comments?  Shep, would you like to 46 

comment to that likelihood or possibility? 47 

 48 
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MR. GRIMES:  I think Mr. Fischer is right in terms of when the 1 

harvest occurs and I’m probably going to get waylaid for saying 2 

this, but keep in mind -- The oil spill is a terrible thing, but 3 

even your own literature out front says 70 percent of the Gulf 4 

of Mexico is still open. 5 

 6 

There’s a huge closure in the central Gulf, but you have the 7 

entire West Florida Shelf at this point and you have all of 8 

Texas and there’s still fishing occurring in those areas and so 9 

just so the record is clear on that.  I’m not downplaying the 10 

effects of the spill, but there’s a lot of Gulf still open and a 11 

lot of fishing still occurring. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  70 percent of the entire Gulf of Mexico EEZ to 14 

seventy miles may be open.  However, from Cocodrie, Louisiana, 15 

to Panama City, there’s not much amberjack fishing taking place 16 

and that’s where a lot of the harvest takes place. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand, Myron, and I’ll vote in favor of 19 

the motion to set the preferred alternative, but I think when we 20 

come to deciding whether to vote to submit this to the 21 

Secretary, in that case, I think there we ought to wait until 22 

the August meeting and see where we stand. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree and obviously we are going to have some 25 

options further on down the line and so this is, again, an 26 

alternative vote.  Anybody else?  All in favor of the motion 27 

signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion carries. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  By consensus, the committee recommends that the 30 

council defer final action on the Greater Amberjack Regulatory 31 

Amendment until August.  It’s not written as a motion, but my 32 

memory was that it was a motion. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s consider this, the committee recommends 35 

that the council defer final action on the Greater Amberjack 36 

Regulatory Amendment until August, as a committee motion.  Does 37 

anyone object to the motion or is there any discussion?  I think 38 

we’ve already had the discussion on that.  Hearing no objection, 39 

the motion passes. 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  The next section is buoy gear definition and we 42 

revisited the new definition of buoy gear that we received at 43 

the last council meeting.   44 

 45 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 46 

and I so move, that the council accept the buoy gear definition 47 

as described in the Tab E Handout.  Buoy gear means fishing gear 48 
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intended to fish vertically in the water column that consists of 1 

a single drop line suspended from a float, from which a limited 2 

number of hooks are suspended, and the terminal end of the drop 3 

line contains a weight that is no more than ten pounds.  The 4 

drop line can be rope (hemp, manila, cotton or other natural 5 

fibers; nylon, polypropylene, spectra or other synthetic 6 

material) or monofilament, but must not be cable or wire.  The 7 

gear is free-floating and not connected to other gear or the 8 

vessel.  The drop line must be no greater than two times the 9 

depth of the water being fished.  No more than ten hooks can be 10 

connected to the drop line between the buoy and the weighted 11 

terminal end.  All hooks must be attached to the drop line no 12 

more than thirty feet from the weighted terminal end.  These 13 

hooks may be attached directly to the drop line; attached as 14 

snoods (defined as an offshoot line that is directly spliced, 15 

tied or otherwise connected to the drop line), where each snood 16 

has a single terminal hook; or as gangions (defined as an 17 

offshoot line connected to the drop line with some type of 18 

detachable clip), where each gangion has a single terminal hook. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  21 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  The next section was Reef Fish Permit Income 24 

Requirement.  The reef fish permit income requirement was 25 

originally established in Amendment 1 as a method which imposes 26 

the least regulation and imposition while still maintaining the 27 

catch within established quotas.   28 

 29 

However, under the IFQ system, fishermen must meet several 30 

criteria and quotas are effectively controlled.  Furthermore, 31 

due to the Deepwater Horizon oil spill and subsequent area 32 

safety closures, some fishermen may have difficulty in meeting 33 

the 50 percent earned income requirement from commercial or 34 

charter fishing in one of the last two years.  35 

 36 

The Regional Administrator does not have the authority to waive 37 

the income requirement for a year.  An emergency rule could be 38 

used for a one-time lifting of the requirement, but it may be 39 

difficult to qualify as an emergency, given that fishermen have 40 

two years to meet the income requirement.  The current reef fish 41 

framework procedure does not provide for changed to the income 42 

requirement and so any changes would have to be through a plan 43 

amendment. 44 

 45 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 46 

and I so move, that staff add an action to Reef Fish Amendment 47 

32 to allow the Regional Administrator under certain conditions, 48 
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such as, but not limited to, hurricanes and oil spills,  to 1 

temporarily suspend the earned income requirement for reef fish 2 

permit renewal. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, do you want that much leeway? 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s not really a matter of how much leeway I 9 

want.  It’s a matter of how much leeway NOAA General Counsel 10 

feels like I can have and so we’ll have to see about how 11 

specific this needs to be. 12 

 13 

The problem is if I have a whole lot of discretion, they’re 14 

going to want us to go through an evaluation of alternatives and 15 

NEPA and public comment and all that kind of thing.  I think it 16 

is going to need to be pretty specific and I think we’ll have to 17 

get Shepherd to give us some advice on that and then come back 18 

to it at the next meeting. 19 

 20 

MR. PERRET:  I agree with your response, but my suggestion would 21 

be, rather than say hurricanes and oil spills, or oil spills and 22 

storms are the intent, I’m sure, but I would just say, “but not 23 

limited to natural and manmade disasters”.  There’s a lot more 24 

than an oil spill that could happen. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do you want to offer that as an amendment? 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  A friendly amendment, natural and manmade 29 

disasters. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’re going to have to vote on that.  32 

Phyllis, would you put that as an amendment or, Corky, do you 33 

want to -- 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  My amendment would be, rather than “not limited to 36 

hurricanes and oil spills”, just replace “hurricanes and oil 37 

spills” with “natural and manmade disasters”. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 40 

 41 

MR. GRIMES:  I don’t want to undermine the efforts of my good 42 

friend Mr. Perret there, but I would encourage you not to engage 43 

in a bunch of discussion of this right now.   44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  I withdraw. 46 

 47 

MR. GRIMES:  This is to direct staff to include an action and 48 
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when we develop that action, it’s going to have a range of 1 

alternatives and I think we’ll come back and you can have a much 2 

more meaningful discussion once you have that. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Perret agrees with counsel and has 5 

withdrawn his amendment and so we’re back to the original 6 

motion, which it sounds like we don’t need any discussion on, 7 

given Shep’s comments.  Any objection to the original motion?   8 

 9 

MR. GREENE:  How about a motion to table this until the August 10 

meeting? 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, we don’t need a motion to table.  Remember, 13 

we’re just adding this as another alternative to the document 14 

and so we need to pass it and add it to the document and then 15 

let staff work it up and we’ll come back and probably we’re not 16 

going to take final action on Amendment 32 until I would say 17 

October at the earliest.  We’ll have a couple of meetings to 18 

work on this. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion or objections?  Hearing 21 

none, the motion passes. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  It was pointed out that the Mackerel FMP also has an 24 

earned income requirement that is different from reef fish, 25 

i.e., 20 percent or $10,000 from fishing in one of the last 26 

three calendar years.  Steven Atran noted that the Mackerel FMP 27 

is a joint amendment and modifying that income requirement would 28 

require a separate joint action. 29 

 30 

The next item on the agenda was Crew Size Limit on For-Hire 31 

Vessels when Fishing Commercially.  The committee took no 32 

action, but Robin Riechers suggested that the council look for 33 

an appropriate vehicle to address that issue.  Is there council 34 

discussion on that?  Seeing no discussion, we went to Other 35 

Business. 36 

 37 

There was discussion of the red snapper season.  We discussed 38 

the authority of the Regional Administrator to reopen the season 39 

in red snapper and we have that as an Other Business item and so 40 

unless we want to discuss it here, I’ll move on. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Move on. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  The next Other Business was South Atlantic Council 45 

Letter on Black Grouper.  Carrie Simmons reviewed a letter that 46 

the council received from the South Atlantic Council on 47 

allocation of black grouper between the two jurisdictions.  48 
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 1 

Black grouper is a single stock with an ABC that crosses 2 

jurisdictional boundaries.  The South Atlantic Council has 3 

recommended the following formula for allocating the stock ABC 4 

between the two councils and I would note that they call it 5 

Boyle’s Law.  It’s a different Boyle’s Law from the real Boyle’s 6 

Law. 7 

 8 

Allocation by jurisdiction equals one-half of the catch history 9 

plus one-half of the current trend, whereby catch history equals 10 

1986 onward and current trend equals 2006 through 2008 for this 11 

amendment and three years rolling forward for future amendments 12 

addressing black grouper.  We took no action on that at the 13 

committee and so it’s a council discussion. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  David, I wonder if you could clarify for us what 16 

the part of this that says three years rolling forward for 17 

future amendments means.  I don’t think that’s entirely clear to 18 

the council. 19 

 20 

MR. CUPKA:  The intent here was to come up with an average of 21 

catch history for both councils’ area of jurisdiction using a 22 

formula that equally weights both historical catches and current 23 

catches.  Current catches is defined as the three-year period, 24 

the most recent three-year period, for which we have catch 25 

history and that’s how the ABC would be divvied up, using that 26 

formula. 27 

 28 

The intent is in a future amendment, if we want to come back and 29 

look at the ABC and split it up again, that we would use -- The 30 

current history would involve the three most current years that 31 

was available, data available, to go into that assessment. 32 

 33 

The intent is not to look at this every year, but to give the 34 

councils the opportunity in the future, if they want to look at 35 

this issue again, to use this formula and base it on three 36 

years.  It’s not a three-year rolling average that would be used 37 

to look at it every year, but just have the opportunity, after a 38 

future assessment, if we want to revisit this issue, to use that 39 

most current three-year period. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think revisiting it is fine.  I think the only 42 

thing I would be careful of is the way it’s described, it could 43 

result in a situation where if one council exceeded their share 44 

of the allocation and then you took that into account in setting 45 

the allocation, that you would reward that sector of the fishery 46 

for going over, which I don’t think we would want to do.  We 47 

would have to be careful about that. 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  It would be helpful to see what kind of result this 2 

formula would lead to.  Is this something that we’ll return to 3 

in August or is it more urgent than that?  In August, could we 4 

see what the actual share for the Gulf and South Atlantic would 5 

be if we followed this formula? 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  My sense is we haven’t developed our own ACLs, et 8 

cetera, which this would be part of, and so August would be fine 9 

and we should review it at that time.  David, do you disagree 10 

with that? 11 

 12 

MR. CUPKA:  Our intent right now is to devote a large part of 13 

our September meeting to our Comprehensive ACL Amendment.  We 14 

would like to get this settled so that we could move on.  If you 15 

all have a different approach you want to recommend, I can 16 

always take that back to the council, but we would like to get 17 

this settled so that we can move forward with our amendment.  We 18 

don’t want to hold it up. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  You’re looking for, from this council at this 21 

meeting, a general agreement or other suggestions as to how we 22 

proceed using Boyle’s Law or not.  Is that correct? 23 

 24 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes, we would prefer to do that.  We’ve already 25 

decided.  We did come up with a different ABC, our SSC did, but 26 

we decided to go along with you all’s SSC recommendation for ABC 27 

and so it’s just a matter of splitting up that ABC that your SSC 28 

came up with. 29 

 30 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think, just in general terms, the notion of 31 

weighting over the overall historical period, as well as using 32 

the most current trends, probably is a reasonable approach.  I’m 33 

kind of like Julie though.  Without the actual figures in front 34 

of us, I don’t know how we can necessarily agree to that.  I 35 

don’t know whether it hurts us or helps us or whether we’re both 36 

about the same and it doesn’t really matter one way or the 37 

other.  Has staff had a chance to look at that or in the letter 38 

that came, was it provided? 39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  I just wanted to point out that in my experience -- 41 

I understand this isn’t recreational/commercial allocation, but 42 

it is allocation between councils and allocation always seems to 43 

result in some pretty heated discussions and it doesn’t seem to 44 

me to be that great of an idea to set up so that you’re 45 

necessarily going to revisit what the allocation between 46 

councils is every so many years. 47 

 48 
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As Dr. Crabtree pointed out, it seems to create a rather 1 

perverse incentive when it comes to a council establishing 2 

regulations that are effective at constraining harvest to their 3 

prior allocation.  As you said, if you exceed it and you 4 

reevaluate every few years, that could lead to your council 5 

getting more of the stock and I just think those are issues that 6 

you’ll address and you certainly need to think about as you move 7 

forward. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  Shepherd, wouldn’t we have to evaluate a range of 10 

alternatives on this and put it into an amendment as well? 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, I think that’s correct. 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  It seems like we should request then that our staff 15 

develop a range of alternatives to be reviewed at your August 16 

meeting and do you want a motion along those lines? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let me ask Rick to address first and then we’ll 19 

see if it’s appropriate. 20 

 21 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  I think what Julie is suggesting is exactly 22 

right, because I was talking to Carrie and I think there’s a lot 23 

of problems with this.  We need to have some other alternatives.  24 

The jurisdictional boundary between the two councils would split 25 

Monroe County and I doubt seriously that the data that we’ve 26 

got, both commercial and recreational, is sensitive enough to 27 

determine where those catches occurred. 28 

 29 

I suspect that there would be some very, very large variation in 30 

what those may be and so I think that’s exactly what we need to 31 

do.  We need to have our staff and South Atlantic Council staff 32 

look at the data and see how sensitive it may be to being able 33 

to do something and come up with a couple more alternatives. 34 

 35 

MR. CUPKA:  I agree with that.  I think we do need to look at 36 

this and certainly our intent is to work with you on this and 37 

given that you all’s next meeting is in August, which will be 38 

before our September meeting, we would have time to look at what 39 

you all came up with, after the two staffs had a chance to work 40 

together and do that. 41 

 42 

The only thing I would ask is that we find out what the action 43 

is that you take at your August meeting so that we can 44 

incorporate that during our September meeting, when we look at 45 

alternatives for this particular action. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It sounds to me like we’re going to ask staff 48 
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to generate some alternatives on this for the August meeting and 1 

so you will have that. 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think the key is, Rick, is you guys need to 4 

work closely with the South Atlantic Council so we’re both 5 

looking at the same suite of alternatives and then even though 6 

this isn’t a joint plan, obviously both councils are going to 7 

need to select the same preferred alternative or this won’t 8 

work. 9 

 10 

I guess if you select different alternatives, then the Secretary 11 

will have to pick one over the other, but the best solution is 12 

somehow that we come to the same conclusion on this in the end. 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  The motion would be to request that the Gulf 15 

Council and South Atlantic Council staff work together to 16 

develop alternative methods for allocating black grouper catch 17 

between the two council areas and those be reviewed at the 18 

August Gulf Council meeting. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second to that? 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Second. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Discussion?  I think we’ve had the discussion.  25 

Any objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  I would like to thank the council for their 28 

efficiency in handling the Reef Fish Committee Report.  We’re 29 

handing forty-four minutes back to the Chair and that concludes 30 

my report, Mr. Chairman. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  I’m going take fourteen 33 

of those minutes back in terms of a break.  Let’s resume at 34 

10:15. 35 

 36 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If council members would return to their seats, 39 

the next agenda item is the AP Selection Committee, Tab M, Mr. 40 

Perret. 41 

 42 

AP SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The Advisory Panel 45 

Selection Committee met as a council of the whole and so the 46 

action has already been taken and I would like to announce the 47 

results of that full council meeting. 48 
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 1 

We met on June 14th and fifteen council members were present for 2 

the meeting.  During the closed session, the council discussed 3 

appointing people to fill vacancies on various advisory panels.  4 

The persons selected for these panels are as follows. 5 

 6 

For the Ad Hoc Mackerel Limited Access Privilege Program 7 

Advisory Panel, Mr. David Krebs was reinstated.  He’s a 8 

commercial representative.  Mr. Scott Hickman was appointed.  9 

He’s a charterboat representative from Texas and Mr. Troy 10 

Williamson, a recreational fisherman, was also appointed and he 11 

is from Texas. 12 

 13 

For the Ad Hoc Reef Fish Limited Access Privilege Program 14 

Advisory Panel, Captain Benjamin Fairey, a charterboat operator 15 

out of Alabama, was appointed and Mr. Scott Hickman, a 16 

recreational fisherman from Texas, was appointed. 17 

 18 

For the Stone Crab Advisory Panel, Mr. Bill Kelly from Florida, 19 

a commercial representative, was appointed.  For the South 20 

Atlantic Council representatives on the Ad Hoc Mackerel Limited 21 

Access Privilege Program Advisory Panel, contingent upon a 22 

positive enforcement background check, the appointees are David 23 

Stead, a commercial representative from Florida, and Jim Reeves, 24 

a commercial representative from Florida. 25 

 26 

There was one additional item.  Mr. Karl Lessard was removed 27 

from our Spiny Lobster and Stone Crab Advisory Panels, due to a 28 

fishery violation.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Perret.  Any comments or 31 

questions?  This full council has already taken action on that 32 

and so we don’t need to take any further action and therefore, 33 

the next agenda item is the SEDAR Selection.  I am on the agenda 34 

to chair that, but I was incapacitated and so Mr. Gill took that 35 

over and, Bob, if you will address this one.  This is Tab N. 36 

 37 

SEDAR SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  The SEDAR Selection Committee also met as a committee 40 

of the whole and made decisions to appoint the following persons 41 

to the SEDAR-23 Goliath Grouper Review Workshop: Luiz Barbieri, 42 

Shannon Calay, Ben Fairey, Barbara Dorf, and Kay Williams was 43 

selected as the council representative.  44 

 45 

We also appointed the following persons to the SEDAR Spiny 46 

Lobster Review Workshop: Doug Gregory, Rene Buesa, and Walter 47 

Keithly.  That concludes my report, Mr. Chairman.   48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  The next agenda item is 2 

the Coastal Migratory Pelagics, or Mackerel, Committee, Tab C, 3 

and Mr. Fischer. 4 

 5 

COASTAL MIGRATORY PELAGICS (MACKEREL) COMMITTEE REPORT 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  This is going to be an 8 

interesting report.  There was a joint committee meeting last 9 

week.  It occurred not at this meeting, but last week with the 10 

South Atlantic group. 11 

 12 

It’s a thirty-five-page report.  If you want, I’ll sit and read 13 

it verbatim.  If not, I’ll tell you the highlights, because all 14 

it is is creating an options paper and there were about four 15 

alternatives that were altered and all the rest remained the 16 

same. 17 

 18 

If anyone wants to go to it at the very beginning, on Action 19 

Item 1, it was to remove Alternative 2 and 3 from the document 20 

and what 2 and 3 refer to is what to retain and what species to 21 

exclude and it was status quo, to keep Atlantic and Gulf king 22 

and Spanish mackerel and cobia in the unit, to retain that.   23 

 24 

Alternative 4 was to remove all other species other than those 25 

and that was the first motion.  I don’t know if I should bring 26 

these up as a motion and discuss them.  I don’t know if the 27 

council as a whole has to vote on these.  I would like to ask 28 

your advice on how to proceed, because it’s just creating -- It 29 

has to go back to the IPT to put the Gulf’s alternatives and the 30 

South Atlantic’s alternatives -- Put every one in a bundle and 31 

then bring it back to the council as an options paper. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My initial reaction is we would not need to 34 

vote on these motions, since we’re going to address them again, 35 

but I would defer to Shep.  Do you have an opinion on that, 36 

Shep?  Are you following along here? 37 

 38 

MR. GRIMES:  Actually, Mr. Chairman, I was trying to dig up the 39 

committee report, which I can’t seem to find. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  It’s C-1. 42 

 43 

MR. GRIMES:  I didn’t think the committee met. 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  The committees met jointly last week and it’s 46 

titled as C-1. 47 

 48 
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DR. LEARD:  Mr. Chairman, I think what we need to do is the same 1 

thing that the South Atlantic Council did for the joint motions 2 

or the motions for actions that affect both councils and for the 3 

actions that we have just for the Gulf and if you look at the 4 

report, you’ve got, in very, very large font, to remove 5 

Alternatives 2 and 3, and this is on the first action, and move 6 

them to Considered but Rejected.  It’s been approved by the Gulf 7 

Council committee. 8 

 9 

That is, in a normal sense of the way we do things, that is a 10 

committee motion.  That’s a committee motion to remove those two 11 

alternatives and so now, just as the South Atlantic Council did, 12 

we would need a motion to approve that committee motion and then 13 

underneath the “Approved by the Gulf Committee”, then all we 14 

would do is add “Approved by the Gulf Council”. 15 

 16 

I don’t think we really need to go into the South Atlantic 17 

Council actions that they took until we move both of these 18 

documents together.  What the committees jointly considered were 19 

basically two separate documents, one created by the South 20 

Atlantic Council dealing only with South Atlantic Council 21 

species and one dealing with the Gulf. 22 

 23 

We just need for the council to approve the actions of the 24 

committee with regard to these actions that relate to the Gulf 25 

Council and to both councils. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  In that case then, we will proceed, identifying 28 

the Gulf Committee actions and treat those as committee motions 29 

and full council will vote on those.  Is that what I’m hearing 30 

you say? 31 

 32 

DR. LEARD:  That would be my suggestion, unless Mr. Grimes has 33 

some differing opinions. 34 

 35 

MR. GRIMES:  No, I think that’s excellent guidance. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Fischer, we will rely on you then to parse 38 

out those ones that we need to take the motions on. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:  It would be Action 1, that the Gulf Committee 41 

remove Alternatives 2 and 3 from Action 1 and move them to the 42 

Considered but Rejected Appendix.  It was approved by the Gulf 43 

Committee and, Mr. Chairman, I so move. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 46 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  Also on Action 1, the Gulf Committee was to add 1 

individual alternatives or options to remove the individual 2 

species that are currently listed in the management unit for 3 

data collection purposes.  It was approved by the Gulf Council 4 

and, Mr. Chair, I so move. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 7 

discussion?  Is there objection?  The motion passes. 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  This is where it’s going, is with the third motion 10 

relating to Action 1.  The Gulf Committee passed that any of 11 

these species currently listed in the management unit for data 12 

collection purposes, before they are added to the plan, should 13 

be assessed by a SEDAR assessment approved by the Gulf 14 

Committee.  Mr. Chairman, I so move. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Is there discussion? 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  It seems to me that as we go through these joint 19 

committee meeting motions that our druthers are to be consistent 20 

with the South Atlantic Council and clearly when they’re not, 21 

then we’ve got some issues that we need to talk a little 22 

further.  I think this is one of those that they made no action 23 

on and is that correct, Myron? 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  The South Atlantic? 26 

 27 

MR. CUPKA:  Our council approved that.  In this case, the order 28 

has been changed and the South Atlantic actions are above the 29 

Gulf actions, but on all these actions, the first three that 30 

were joint actions, we approved exactly the same thing that your 31 

committee did. 32 

 33 

MR. SAPP:  I might clarify for the council just exactly the way 34 

things worked at that joint meeting.  We all sat together in the 35 

same room and we talked about each of the individual issues and 36 

motions, but then we, in effect, convened the South Atlantic to 37 

allow them to vote, which they did, and then we convened the 38 

Gulf Council committee to vote and we did. 39 

 40 

Instead of one of us going first all the time, they flipped the 41 

order and so as you read through this document, it’s a little 42 

bit confusing, but for the issues that were joint issues, they 43 

voted and we voted and they voted and we voted and we voted and 44 

they voted and eventually we got to the end of the list and so 45 

that’s what you’re seeing and that’s what Myron is going through 46 

there right now. 47 

 48 



122 

 

MR. GILL:  To expound a little bit further, and I assume it’s 1 

the same in Mackerel, but in Spiny Lobster, that was preceded by 2 

each AP weighing in on that subject and then voting separately 3 

and so both APs weighed in and voted and then the committees 4 

went, as Ed described.  It was a full fleshing from beginning to 5 

end. 6 

 7 

MR. SAPP:  In this case, we didn’t have it further confused by 8 

the APs there.  It was just the two council committees. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If everyone understands, then we do have a 11 

committee motion.  Any further discussion?  Any objection?  The 12 

motion passes. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chair, Action Item 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 had no 15 

changes.  Can we accept those?  Those were what we originally 16 

wrote and there were no changes to them. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is that the motion to accept the alternatives 19 

as presented and approved by the Gulf Committee? 20 

 21 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes.  It was accepted by both committees. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That is a committee motion, but go ahead, Bob. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Myron, is the South Atlantic Council consistent with 26 

our committee on those actions as well? 27 

 28 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes, sir. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have then a committee motion.  Is there any 31 

further discussion?  Objections?  The motion carries. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  I think the board should -- Yes, that’s 34 

Alternatives 2 through 7. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It looks like 1 through 5. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  My notes could be in error.  Evidently you’re 39 

right. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Myron, it’s Alternative 1 through 5, but the 42 

South Atlantic did adopt one as a preferred option and so what 43 

are you suggesting here as your committee’s recommendation? 44 

 45 

MR. FISCHER:  We will go 1 through 5, to satisfy this, and then 46 

worry about Number 6.  I move. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The committee motion is to accept Alternatives 1 

1 through 5.  Any objection to that?  The motion passes. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  Action Item 6 was on the AMs for cobia.  Where the 4 

Gulf of Mexico accepted alternatives for Action 6 as presented 5 

and those were approved by the Gulf Council and it was for Gulf 6 

cobia and the South Atlantic, if I’m not mistaken, had no 7 

comment.  Would that be right, David? 8 

 9 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  What you have is the first 10 

three actions in this document are joint actions that both 11 

committees had to approve and both committees did approve it and 12 

our council approved it and now your council has approved it, 13 

but starting with Action 4, 2.4, there’s a whole series of just 14 

Gulf alternatives that you all have to approve and we haven’t 15 

approved yet, but we’ll do that after the options paper gets put 16 

together. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  That is correct.  That’s why I thought we could 19 

skip all the way through to Action 7, but we’ll do them 20 

individually, to satisfy the chair.  On Action 6, the Gulf 21 

Council Mackerel Committee accepted it with no changes.  Mr. 22 

Chair, I so move. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m not sure I know where you are. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  We accepted Actions all the way up to 5 and so I’m 27 

going through 6 and 7 so we can get to 8, which does have 28 

changes. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  It’s a committee motion.  Any discussion 31 

or objections?  Hearing none, I rely on Mr. Fischer. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, sir.  On Alternative Number 7, the Gulf 34 

Committee accepts the three alternatives for Action 7 and it was 35 

approved by the Gulf Committee and so I move.  I’m on Action 7 36 

on page 7. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  On page 7?  Okay.  I’m finally caught up.  It’s 39 

a committee motion.  Discussion?  Objections?  The motion 40 

passes. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  Now we’ll get to Action 8, where there’s two 43 

motions.  One is to accept the alternatives for Action 8 44 

approved by the Gulf Council and so I’ll move that as the first 45 

motion and then we’ll get into the second committee motion. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  This is to accept 48 
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the alternatives for Action 8.  Any discussion or objection?  1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  One small discussion.  If it’s possible to put 3 

the actual motion on the board, I think that would be helpful 4 

for the public, as far as following along, other than just what 5 

was approved, if it’s possible.  It may not be possible. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  We can, but we’re almost finished.  We only had 8 

twelve Gulf motions, although it’s a thirty-five-page document. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion or objections?  The 11 

motion passes. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  Regarding Action 8, the Gulf Committee chose to 14 

add an alternative that matches what is listed for Spanish 15 

mackerel in Action 11.  This was approved by the Gulf Committee 16 

and I’ll let Dr. Leard explain this.  The committee so moves. 17 

 18 

DR. LEARD:  With Spanish mackerel, we had an additional 19 

alternative that would set an ACT something less than the ACL, 20 

but when we were putting together the alternatives for ACLs for 21 

king mackerel, we didn’t have an alternative that would have an 22 

ACT less than ACL, which was also less than an ABC. 23 

 24 

It’s really all it is is just to make the alternatives for Gulf 25 

group king mackerel and Gulf group Spanish mackerel consistent 26 

and so that’s all we’re doing, is just adding an alternative to 27 

king mackerel that we already had for Spanish mackerel, which 28 

makes them consistent. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  Was this the 25 percent buffer? 31 

 32 

DR. LEARD:  Yes. 33 

 34 

MR. FISCHER:  It was 75 percent of the ABC.  It’s to add that 35 

alternative.  Mr. Chairman, I would so move. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 38 

discussion or objections?  The motion passes. 39 

 40 

MR. FISCHER:  On Action 9, the Gulf Committee was to accept the 41 

alternatives for Action 9, with the intent to add a 42 

subalternative for runaround gillnets.  This was approved by the 43 

Gulf Committee and so, Mr. Chairman, I so move. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got a committee motion.  Is there 46 

discussion or objections?   47 

 48 
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DR. LEARD:  I just wanted to point out that really that motion 1 

will be changed slightly, because I think it was suggested by 2 

Dr. Crabtree that that’s really -- It’s to add an alternative 3 

for a payback provision for the gillnet fishery, specifically 4 

for the gillnet fishery.  That’s what that will be.  It will be 5 

a payback. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  What are the implications for us voting on this 8 

motion right now as is? 9 

 10 

DR. LEARD:  I don’t know if you want to clarify that with a 11 

motion or with an amendment.  That’s fine and if not, if it’s 12 

just understood that that’s what we’re going to do, then we’ll 13 

make that change, that minor change, when we bring it back to 14 

you in August. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Staff will do that? 17 

 18 

DR. LEARD:  We can do that, yes. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  With that, any further objections or discussion 21 

of this Action 9 motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 22 

 23 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, Action Items 10, 11, and 12 had no 24 

change from the previous document.  I would like them to be 25 

added as written and our committee would so move. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The committee motion is Actions 10, 11, and 12 28 

be accepted with no changes.  Any further discussion or 29 

objections?  It passes. 30 

 31 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, I think I’ll have to defer to Rick 32 

to assist.  I don’t know what further Gulf Committee actions 33 

were handled.  Obviously I was not at that meeting. 34 

 35 

DR. LEARD:  At this stage, I don’t think there’s anything else 36 

that really needs to be done.  The South Atlantic Council took 37 

up the actions that their committee approved and approved them 38 

and now we have approved the actions that the Gulf Council -- 39 

That pertain to us. 40 

 41 

Both councils have approved the three actions that pertain to 42 

both of us and so where we’re at right now is we need to check 43 

some numbers, particularly with regard to Gulf Spanish and Gulf 44 

cobia, because those assessments and the SSC’s approval of the 45 

ABCs that came out of those assessments, which were done under 46 

the old process and not SEDAR, we’ve got to recheck those 47 

numbers a little bit, as to what the SSC actually approved and 48 
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kind of clean that up a little bit and then merge the documents 1 

that the South Atlantic approved, which are all the rest of the 2 

motions and everything in this report, with our motions and then 3 

just bring it back to you as a revised either very rough draft 4 

amendment or a very good options paper at our August and the 5 

South Atlantic Council’s September meeting. 6 

 7 

Our intent, time-wise, is to have a public hearing draft for our 8 

October meeting and for the South Atlantic Council’s December 9 

meeting and to go to public hearings sometime, for the Gulf 10 

Council, probably sometime in late November to early December 11 

and then possibly final action in February or April, if it 12 

slides a little bit further. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  What you’re saying is that completes the action 15 

on this document?  Does the committee have additional business? 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  I was going to recognize Mr. Sapp, as he was at 18 

the meeting and he could put further light on it. 19 

 20 

MR. SAPP:  When we were in closed session choosing AP members, 21 

we started to have a discussion about where is it that we need 22 

to go with our Mackerel LAPP Advisory Panel.  It was pointed out 23 

that it would not be appropriate to have those discussions in 24 

the closed session and we decided that we would defer those 25 

discussions to full council, when the public was here. 26 

 27 

The issue is I think there’s a consensus, and I want to get Dave 28 

Cupka, the South Atlantic liaison, to weigh in and Rick to weigh 29 

in also.  The South Atlantic, and correct me if I’m 30 

characterizing this wrong, Dave, but the South Atlantic is not 31 

of the mindset to move forward with a catch share program for 32 

mackerel at this point. 33 

 34 

I think that we’ve concluded that in order for it to happen that 35 

it has to be done jointly between the two councils.  What we 36 

certainly agreed on at that joint committee meeting that we had 37 

last week was that if at some point in the future we decide to 38 

go through with some kind of a catch share program in the 39 

mackerel fishery that we need to rethink the makeup of the 40 

advisory panel. 41 

 42 

What the South Atlantic was pretty insistent on is that there be 43 

equal representation for all of their fishermen and that there 44 

also be equal representation for the different gear types on 45 

that panel. 46 

 47 

The question is probably nothing is going to happen in the 48 
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immediate future.  It might be that the sentiment of the 1 

industry will change and they’ll decide among themselves that 2 

they feel like it’s appropriate to move forward with some kind 3 

of a catch share program and maybe it’s appropriate for the 4 

industry to come back to us and tell us that. 5 

 6 

The question is, do we want to maintain the LAPP AP that we’ve 7 

got set up, and I know we just agreed to add a couple of South 8 

Atlantic members to that advisory panel, but I don’t think that 9 

at this point the South Atlantic would be comfortable with just 10 

the makeup that we’ve got now, if in fact that’s the panel that 11 

we want to use. 12 

 13 

The question is, do we want to disband and try again later if 14 

the industry requests or do we want to maintain the advisory 15 

panel that we’ve got in place now? 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dave, first you address it and then Bob and 18 

then Kay. 19 

 20 

MR. CUPKA:  I don’t think we insisted that it be equal, but I 21 

did report to them that you all had had discussions where you 22 

were willing to set up a committee that at least was equal in 23 

numbers. 24 

 25 

That was a good thing, but most of the input we’ve gotten so far 26 

from the fishermen indicates that they don’t want a LAPP right 27 

now, but if you all decide to move ahead, we need to be a part 28 

of that process, but this happens with a lot of these catch 29 

share things.  It’s kind of a chicken-and-an-egg thing.  You 30 

almost have to put one together so that fishermen have something 31 

to react to before they decide whether or not they want to do it 32 

or not. 33 

 34 

I think that’s kind of the approach that we want to take.  If 35 

you all decide to move ahead and develop one, of course we want 36 

to be involved in that, but until we actually give the fishermen 37 

something to react to, we’ve had them tell us before that it’s 38 

hard for them to make a decision, because they don’t know what 39 

the impact is going to be on them personally until you actually 40 

put together a strawman program. 41 

 42 

I think at that point if we did something like that, working 43 

with you all, and then the fishermen said they weren’t 44 

interested, then we wouldn’t move ahead, but I think there is 45 

some value in at least putting together a strawman to see how it 46 

might impact fishermen and give them information where they 47 

could really make a better decision on whether it’s something 48 
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they’re interested in or not. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  I think I’m hearing a presumption that we’re 3 

operating on the basis that because it’s a joint amendment that 4 

unless we both agree and both do catch shares that we shouldn’t 5 

consider it. 6 

 7 

I would argue that catch shares are a management action and that 8 

in the mackerel plan we have different management actions in the 9 

Gulf than we do in the South Atlantic.  I’m not convinced at 10 

this juncture that we could not establish, if that’s the way it 11 

went, and I’m not suggesting we necessarily should, but that the 12 

Gulf could be operating under a catch share program and the 13 

South Atlantic not.  That doesn’t preclude that discussion and 14 

so my comment would be that we ought to keep the LAPP AP 15 

together to have those discussions. 16 

 17 

We certainly have had a request in the Gulf to consider it, 18 

which is what the origin was, and perhaps that’s the way it goes 19 

and perhaps there isn’t a catch share program in the Gulf, but 20 

we’ve had that request and we set it up and it’s not precluded 21 

that that’s the endpoint, the endpoint being the Gulf has catch 22 

shares and the South Atlantic not. 23 

 24 

Maybe the South Atlantic does do it and I think South Atlantic 25 

representatives, since it’s a joint amendment, ought to be on 26 

this panel and if there is concern on the South Atlantic side 27 

that perhaps it’s not appropriate for them, then there may be an 28 

appropriate point where we split and we have two APs, one South 29 

Atlantic and one Gulf, to discuss that, if that’s the way it 30 

ultimately goes, because if they’re all against it, adding folks 31 

that are against the AP panel, all that does is dilute the 32 

recommendation, whatever that happens to be, and I don’t think 33 

that’s helpful to the council. 34 

 35 

We certainly want the input and we certainly want the 36 

coordination, but I think we need to leave the AP in place, 37 

probably as is, and see how it fleshes out, but I would not 38 

dismiss the AP and I would not dismiss the notion that we might 39 

have catch shares in the Gulf and not have them in the South 40 

Atlantic in the mackerel fishery. 41 

 42 

MR. CUPKA:  I agree with you on that, Bob.  I think it could be 43 

set up where one could have it and not the other, but even if 44 

you all were to move ahead and we weren’t, it’s still going to 45 

impact some of the fishermen that are in our area and they’re 46 

the ones who say if the Gulf is going to proceed then they would 47 

like to be involved, because it will still impact them, even 48 
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though we may not set up a program like that. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  To that point, David, I agree, but at the end of the 3 

day, both councils have to agree on what the amendment has to be 4 

and so we’re at the early stages of the process and the 5 

fishermen need to discuss it and see how this is going to go, 6 

whether it’s going to split out or not, and yes, you definitely 7 

need to be involved in that process and we need to see how this 8 

flows. 9 

 10 

I think what we want from the AP, assuming we keep it, because 11 

that’s the issue on the table that Ed has raised, is some solid 12 

advice as to what they would like to see, so that we consider 13 

it.  Although Robin and I tend to disagree, when we get these 14 

split decisions, yes, that’s advice, but it’s not very helpful 15 

in telling us how we ought to proceed or proceed at all. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I agree mostly with everything that Mr. Gill 18 

said.  In the past, with the mackerel -- To me, catch shares in 19 

the Gulf has to do with management, how our fishermen would like 20 

for us to help manage so that they can have a yearly fishery or 21 

depending on which IFQ or catch share that it is that they would 22 

make the recommendations for the management measures as to how 23 

they would like to be managed. 24 

 25 

In the past, like I said, the South Atlantic manages theirs and 26 

the Gulf manages their way.  We have not always met jointly with 27 

the Mackerel Committee of the South Atlantic and one reason is 28 

because yes, you have committees and then when they bring the 29 

information back, yes, you do vote on it, but you miss a lot of 30 

the discussion and you’re not available to hear what the 31 

committee was able to hear. 32 

 33 

Sometimes some of the recommendations may change.  I wouldn’t 34 

have a problem if the South Atlantic would like to have some of 35 

their fishermen come and sit in on our LAPP panel.  I still 36 

think that it’s still an individual choice and if the South 37 

Atlantic wants them or doesn’t want them, that’s their decision.  38 

If the Gulf does, then I think that’s our decision. 39 

 40 

I would be in support of keeping the LAPP panel the way that we 41 

have, but in saying that, I want to ask Roy one question.  Roy, 42 

is it possible -- Are we allowed to set some type of a catch 43 

share program for the Gulf in mackerel and the South Atlantic 44 

not? 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  There’s certainly nothing in the statute that 47 

would keep you from doing that that I’m aware of. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’ll be brief.  Remember the AP, the Gulf AP for 2 

mackerel, asked to have the LAPP set up as a precautionary or 3 

futuristic sort of thing, figuring that it would take the Gulf 4 

Council a couple of years to put together a mackerel LAPP and 5 

they just wanted to get a jump start on it. 6 

 7 

I don’t think they actually are all agreed that a LAPP is 8 

necessary and the other point I wanted to make was I was at the 9 

South Atlantic Council meeting last week and there seems to be a 10 

large contingent of misinformed individuals on that coast as far 11 

as what the LAPP is and what the intent of it is. 12 

 13 

I had one fisherman come up to me and he told me that he had 14 

been told that the LAPP was already in place in the Gulf.  I 15 

think what David proposed, and I’ll finish, is go ahead and move 16 

ahead with development of something, so there’s at least 17 

something on paper that people can look at and then make an 18 

informed decision.  I’m in favor of keeping the AP. 19 

 20 

MR. FISCHER:  Bill, I’m very cautious about going back home and 21 

stating that half of our state is very uninformed, with the 22 

repercussions.  But if they are, possibly your outreach 23 

department has to extend a little further to that east coast. 24 

 25 

One thing we have to be very cautious about on this committee, 26 

if we retain the committee, is the composition, the makeup, 27 

because anything has to be approved by the South Atlantic 28 

Council.  If it appears we’re shutting them out, the South 29 

Atlantic Council doesn’t have to agree with us and we’re voted 30 

out.  It has to be agreed upon by both councils. 31 

 32 

DR. LEARD:  I believe I suggested, and this has been in 33 

conversation with my counterpart, Gregg Waugh, on the South 34 

Atlantic Council staff, is that we put this small group of our 35 

Ad Hoc LAPP together and as soon as we get Amendment 18 pretty 36 

much put together, which will be probably the August or early 37 

part of September timeframe, that we get them to meet and do 38 

exactly, I think, what most of you are talking about. 39 

 40 

We’ll look at the pros and cons of a LAPP program for king 41 

mackerel and develop some recommendations back to both councils 42 

and also, during that timeframe between now and then, to have 43 

our outreach people, Charlene and the South Atlantic Council’s 44 

Kim Iverson and maybe even Roy’s people, try to get some sense 45 

from the permittees as to whether or not they’re actually 46 

interested in a LAPP program. 47 

 48 
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The difference is the South Atlantic Council doesn’t have to 1 

have a referendum, but the Gulf would have to have a referendum 2 

in order for a catch share program to be approved.  We need to 3 

have some sense, I think, from at least the fishermen in the 4 

Gulf, as to whether or not they’re at least receptive to the 5 

idea of even starting one before we go through all the work of 6 

trying to develop it. 7 

 8 

That was kind of our game plan that we put together, was to kind 9 

of do a little public relations campaign, as well as having this 10 

LAPP group put together to provide some recommendations.  11 

Currently, we have five people, one from Texas and one from 12 

Naples, Florida and one from Summerland Key, Florida and one 13 

from Grand Isle and one from Pensacola. 14 

 15 

Then with the two additional South Atlantic Council people, 16 

we’ll have a nice small group that can probably -- I think if we 17 

bring them together, like I said, sometime in late August maybe, 18 

that they could probably give us some advice.  I just wanted to 19 

point out that that was our game plan that we were going to 20 

bring back to you in August. 21 

 22 

MR. SAPP:  I’ll say the same thing here that I said at the South 23 

Atlantic and I think if there is any fishery anywhere that begs 24 

for a catch share system, it’s the commercial king mackerel 25 

fishery in the Gulf of Mexico. 26 

 27 

If at some point in the future it looks like there is interest 28 

in this council developing something, then I’m absolutely in 29 

favor of us doing it.  I evidently was unaware of what the 30 

correct answer was about whether or not we had to do a catch 31 

share system jointly and I think Roy just clarified that. 32 

 33 

I didn’t even realize it was in the realm of possibilities for 34 

us to do something independently here in the Gulf and I 35 

certainly wasn’t suggesting that we disband that LAPP AP that 36 

we’ve got set up already and based on the conversations I’m 37 

hearing, it sounds like it would be appropriate for us to go 38 

down the path that Rick just suggested to us here. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’ve had a good discussion on this.  41 

I’m not sure that we need to take any action.  It seems like we 42 

have the AP in place and unless we do something contrary, it 43 

will stay in place and we will convene them -- Did you say in 44 

late August, Rick? 45 

 46 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, I think we would.  At least I would like to at 47 

least have the council’s permission to convene them sometime in 48 
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late August, whenever we are pretty comfortable that Amendment 1 

18 is put together.  That’s the main thing.  That’s the one that 2 

we’ve got a deadline that we’ve got to meet, which is 2011. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I will entertain a motion to that effect. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  I move we convene the Mackerel LAPP AP at a 7 

convenient time relative to Amendment 18. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second to that?  Is there further 10 

discussion? 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Rick, will your outreach program have started prior 13 

to this group meeting? 14 

 15 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, we would definitely plan to do that almost 16 

immediately.  I think Charlene has already been doing a little 17 

bit, but I think we would want to find ways to contact fishermen 18 

and not only educate them as to a little bit more about what the 19 

program might be, but also to get their opinions on it. 20 

 21 

MR. PERRET:  Okay, because it would be fruitless to have the 22 

meeting if we didn’t have this other process in place. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It would be appropriate at this 25 

time to make the announcement that we’ve hired an additional 26 

outreach person, Emily Muhlestein, who will be starting in a 27 

couple of weeks, and this will add to our outreach capability. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion on the board.  Any further 30 

discussion on the motion?  Any objections to the motion?  The 31 

motion passes. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, we have nothing further on the 34 

committee report. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Fischer.  On the agenda, we left 37 

out one committee, the SSC Selection Committee.  Larry, are you 38 

ready to address that? 39 

 40 

SSC SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 41 

 42 

MR. SIMPSON:  The SSC Selection Committee did meet on Monday in 43 

closed session and we reviewed candidates from our SSC to attend 44 

I believe it’s the third national workshop, the Scientific and 45 

Statistical Committee Meeting.  It allows the groups to get 46 

together across the councils to share ideas about protocol and 47 

how things work.  Our selections are, for that meeting coming 48 
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up, Harry Blanchet from Louisiana State, a Louisiana State 1 

employee; Joe Powers from Louisiana, who is a university 2 

professor; Sean Powers from Alabama; and one Gulf Council staff 3 

person.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and that concludes my report. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Simpson.  That’s completed in 6 

full council in full session and so we don’t need to take any 7 

further action here.  That moves us on to Spiny Lobster/Stone 8 

Crab, Tab L.  Mr. Teehan, you’re allocated an hour and what is 9 

your prediction on the time needed? 10 

 11 

SPINY LOBSTER/STONE CRAB COMMITTEE REPORT 12 

 13 

MR. TEEHAN:  We can do this in probably much less than that.  14 

I’m just going to run through the motions that the council 15 

committee did.  I would like to point out that Trish just sent 16 

out an email saying that the hotel will let us check out without 17 

an early departure fee if we do it by noon.  That’s an hour 18 

away. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and complete your report and 21 

then we’ll adjourn for checkout and lunch and maybe convene a 22 

little earlier, if you are honest in your prediction. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Have I ever lied to you, Bob?  The Joint South 25 

Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico Spiny Lobster Advisory Panels and 26 

Committees met at Orlando, Florida last week, June 7, and in a 27 

much similar situation as Mr. Fischer has described for the 28 

joint mackerel meetings. 29 

 30 

Everyone was in attendance except for we had one absentee in the 31 

Gulf Spiny Lobster Advisory Panel and two absentees in the South 32 

Atlantic Spiny Lobster Advisory Panel.  What you have in the 33 

document that’s before you, which is L-2, goes through -- Let me 34 

back up for a second. 35 

 36 

We had a fairly lengthy and comprehensive presentation by John 37 

Hunt and Bill Sharp from the FWC on all aspects of lobster, life 38 

cycle, biology of the fishery, and they handled quite a few 39 

questions from the audience and I think it was a very, very good 40 

presentation and everyone learned something from it. 41 

 42 

Then we had Carrie Simmons and Gregg Waugh and Sue Gerhart from 43 

NOAA Fisheries go through the Amendment 10 and what you’ve got 44 

in this document here is Mark Robson was the overall chair and 45 

he asked the APs to comment -- He kind of shuffled it up, just 46 

like the mackerel thing did, and you’ll see the AP 47 

recommendations and you’ll see the South Atlantic Committee 48 
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recommendations. 1 

 2 

What I’m going to do here is just go ahead and read, unless 3 

there’s some objection and somebody wants me to get further into 4 

this, I’m just going to read what the Gulf Council Committee 5 

recommended and the motions that they put forth that we have to 6 

vote for. 7 

 8 

Action 1 was Delegate Management of the Spiny Lobster to Florida 9 

and we’ve already had that discussion.  It was unanimous with 10 

the APs and the committees to go ahead and take that action and 11 

move it to the Considered but Rejected Appendix.  The Gulf 12 

Committee recommends, and I so move, that Action 1, Delegate 13 

Management of the Spiny Lobster FMP to Florida FWC, be moved to 14 

the Considered but Rejected Appendix. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 17 

discussion?  Objections?  The motion passes. 18 

 19 

MR. TEEHAN:  On Action 2, which was to consider other species of 20 

spiny lobster, namely the smoothtail spiny lobster and the 21 

spotted spiny lobster, in the management plan, the Gulf 22 

Committee had two recommendations or two motions. 23 

 24 

The first one is that the committee recommends, and I so move, 25 

Option A, which is smoothtail spiny lobster, and Option B, which 26 

is spotted spiny lobster, under Alternative 2 for setting ACLs 27 

and AMs be moved to the Considered but Rejected Appendix. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 30 

discussion? 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  This is one of those that the South Atlantic 33 

Committee did not address and so we have, if you will, a 34 

difference and I guess I would ask David if he would comment as 35 

to his reaction to making this change that is different, one 36 

more difference yet to be ironed out. 37 

 38 

MR. CUPKA:  We did address it or our council did and they 39 

approved -- Instead of moving it to the Considered but Rejected, 40 

they selected a preferred alternative, which was to list these 41 

other minor species as ecosystem component species.  I don’t 42 

know where that leaves us, but I don’t know why -- I guess we 43 

could have different alternatives under these actions in the 44 

plan.  I don’t know that it makes a difference. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the committee 47 

motions?  Any objections?  The motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  When I gave you my optimistic time series on this, 2 

I didn’t anticipate Mr. Gill’s comments coming in from left 3 

field.  The committee also recommends, and I so move, that our 4 

preferred option be to list these species as an ecosystem 5 

component species, Option A, smoothtail lobster, and Option B, 6 

spotted spiny lobster. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s a committee motion.  Any discussion?  9 

Any objections?  The motion passes. 10 

 11 

MR. TEEHAN:  We moved on to Action 3, which was to modify the 12 

current definitions of maximum sustainable yield, optimum yield, 13 

overfishing threshold, and overfishing threshold for Caribbean 14 

spiny lobster.   15 

 16 

The Gulf AP discussed this and the South Atlantic AP discussed 17 

this and the South Atlantic Committee discussed this and the 18 

South Atlantic Committee moved that Alternatives 2.3.4, which is 19 

to adopt the Gulf Council overfishing threshold definition, be 20 

moved to the Considered but Rejected Appendix.  This was 21 

approved by the South Atlantic Committee.  The Gulf Committee 22 

had no recommendation at this time, Mr. Chairman. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Carry on, Mr. Teehan. 25 

 26 

MR. TEEHAN:  Moving on to Action 4, this is, once again, 27 

establish sector allocations for Caribbean spiny lobster in 28 

state and federal waters from North Carolina through Texas.  We 29 

had lively discussion on an allocation that was proposed by an 30 

ad hoc working group that the State of Florida had put together 31 

that would be setting allocations based upon historical landings 32 

amongst the trap fishery, the commercial divers, the 33 

recreational, and bully netters.  The Gulf Committee had no 34 

recommendation on setting allocation at this time. 35 

 36 

Then moving on down to Action Number 5, which is allowable 37 

biological catch, ABC control rule, ABC levels, annual catch 38 

limits, and annual catch targets for Caribbean spiny lobster, 39 

the Gulf Committee stated that they may get another control rule 40 

alternative from the Gulf SSC and preferred to wait on making 41 

any decisions on those particular options.  Once again, if 42 

anybody has any questions, please feel free to stop me. 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  Back up to the alternative.  The South Atlantic 45 

passed an alternative to put a subalternative in to not 46 

subdivide the commercial allocation.  I guess the Gulf didn’t do 47 

that? 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  Which one are you looking at, Roy?  Is it Action 5? 2 

 3 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, it was the one above, on the sector-specific 4 

stuff. 5 

 6 

MR. TEEHAN:  No, we had no recommendation. 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would like to make a motion, if I could, to add 9 

a subalternative in that that would give us an option of not 10 

subdividing the commercial allocation. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is that your motion, Roy? 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second?  Second by Mr. Gill. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  The reasoning is if you look at the way it was 19 

laid out, there’s bully net catches, 1 percent, and if you know 20 

what a bully net is, it’s basically a dip net with the handle 21 

bent around and it’s entirely a state water fishery and the 22 

proportion that would be allocated to it is too small to monitor 23 

anyway, I think. 24 

 25 

I think we need to consider whether we want to have these gear-26 

specific allocations or we just want to have a recreational and 27 

a commercial and that’s what this alternative would do.  It 28 

would give us those options to choose later on. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m a little confused, Roy, but we don’t 31 

subdivide it anyway, do we? 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, but there’s options in the alternative that 34 

would. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I got you. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Roy, it seems to me that’s status quo, which is no 39 

action.  Isn’t it already covered?  Isn’t that really redundant? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would say status quo is to not even have an 42 

allocation and to have just a single ACL for the whole fishery, 43 

recreational and commercial, but the way I recall it being set 44 

up is that all the ones that establish sector-specific 45 

allocations had the commercial subdivided up into those three 46 

groups and my intent was to give us the ability to not subdivide 47 

so much. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the motion?  Any 2 

objections?  The motion passes. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  Thank you, Mr. Teehan.  That was quite gracious 5 

of you. 6 

 7 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree, for extending my 8 

presentation length.  The next motion that the Gulf Committee 9 

had was the committee recommends, and I so move, Alternative 2, 10 

set an ACL for the entire stock based on the acceptable 11 

biological catch, Option A, ACL equals ABC, be our preferred. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any objection?  14 

The motion passes. 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  The next motion comes under set annual catch 17 

targets for Caribbean spiny lobster and the committee also 18 

recommends, and I so move, Alternative 1, no action, do not set 19 

ACTs, be our preferred.  One member did not vote, Mr. Chairman. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion on the board.  Any 22 

objections?  The motion passes. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Action 6 was accountability measures and there 25 

doesn’t appear to be any Gulf Committee action, although the 26 

Gulf AP did add a new Alternative 4, undersized spiny lobsters 27 

not exceeding fifty per boat and one per trap aboard each boat 28 

used, if exclusively for luring, decoying, or otherwise 29 

attracting non-captive spiny lobsters. 30 

 31 

What this is is there’s a disconnect between the federal 32 

regulations and State of Florida regulations regarding the 33 

amount of undersized lobsters that can be used as attractants in 34 

spiny lobster traps.  That’s how they attract adults into the 35 

traps. 36 

 37 

In Florida, we allow fifty per boat and then plus for every trap 38 

you have onboard the vessel, you can have another lobster.  If 39 

you’ve got your fifty and you’ve got twenty-five traps, you can 40 

have seventy-five.  The federal regulations are it’s either 41 

fifty per boat or one per trap and so you can’t have both. 42 

 43 

There was some lively discussion about whether the use of 44 

undersized lobsters should be even considered as allowable 45 

anymore and I believe the South Atlantic AP put forth a notion 46 

to make their preferred option to prohibit the possession and 47 

use of undersized Caribbean spiny lobsters.  The Gulf Council 48 
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did not weigh in on that and so there is no motion here. 1 

 2 

Action 9 was modifying the tailing requirements.  Because of the 3 

time factor that was involved, Mr. Robson, who was the über 4 

chair, if you will, just wanted AP discussion on that.  There 5 

wasn’t time for either one of the council committees to discuss 6 

that, but the tailing permit is essentially a federal permit 7 

that allows lobsters to be separated from the head and stored 8 

strictly as a tail onboard vessels.  It’s a federal permit. 9 

 10 

The State of Florida does not allow tailing in state waters.  It 11 

does, however, allow you to transit state waters if you have the 12 

permit.  This has been an issue in the commercial fishery 13 

because there’s been some abuse and they feel like the issuance 14 

of that permit ought to be tied to more commercially oriented 15 

paperwork so that recreational people can’t get a hold of these 16 

things. 17 

 18 

However, the Gulf Council Committee did not have time to discuss 19 

this.  The Gulf Council AP recommended a federal spiny lobster 20 

permit or Florida restricted species endorsement and all 21 

Caribbean spiny lobster landed must be either landed whole or 22 

all tailed.  They approved that.  There is no motion, as I say.  23 

If anyone cares to make a motion based upon the Gulf AP, I will 24 

entertain that.  Nope?  Okay. 25 

 26 

Then we’ll move on to -- The only other issues that were in 27 

Amendment 10 that we did not get to was limiting spiny lobster 28 

fishing in certain areas of the EEZ off of Florida to address 29 

the Endangered Species Act concern for Staghorn and Elkhorn. 30 

 31 

Action 11 was to require measures to identify ropes associated 32 

with spiny lobster traps in the EEZ off of Florida and Action 33 

12, which is allowing the public to remove trap lines, buoys, 34 

and otherwise make unfishable any spiny lobster gear found in 35 

the EEZ off of Florida.  That, Mr. Chairman, concludes my 36 

report. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  I have a question and a comment.  The first question 39 

is we still have a number of items that are different than the 40 

South Atlantic Council at this point, some of which we haven’t 41 

addressed.  Could you elucidate on the timeline?  Are we going 42 

to revisit this in August again, to start to meld these things 43 

together so that we can come up with a common document? 44 

 45 

MR. TEEHAN:  Are you talking to me? 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Absolutely, Mr. Teehan. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  Once again, this probably ties in a little bit to 2 

any discussions we may have at the FWC level next week that may 3 

make this entire thing moot.  I’m sorry this is dragging out 4 

like it is, but we’re dealing with two councils and a state 5 

management agency. 6 

 7 

We will be discussing the whole delegation thing, or repeal of 8 

FMPs, with my commission next Thursday and they may, depending 9 

upon which way they decide -- If they decide they’re willing to 10 

take over the fishery, this whole thing may be moot.  As to what 11 

the timeline for the council is, I would defer to either Carrie 12 

or Rick on whether we’re bringing this back in August or not.  13 

The FWC meeting is somewhere down around Orlando or Lake Wales 14 

or -- Where is it? 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Lake Mary.  I’m happy to keep you on track, Mr. 17 

Teehan. 18 

 19 

MR. SAPP:  Since Mr. Teehan allowed us to have a few extra 20 

minutes at the end, I think there’s something important that’s 21 

going on within the spiny lobster fishery that we ought to be 22 

reporting back to the council and it has to do with the problem 23 

that’s going to be created in that fishery because of the 24 

requirement that we implement ACLs and AMs.  I don’t know if you 25 

want to address that, Bill.  You’re probably better able to do 26 

it than I am, but I think it’s something that we ought to 27 

report. 28 

 29 

MR. TEEHAN:  The ACLs and AMs for spiny lobster could be 30 

problematic, just as they would be in stone crab.  If the 31 

fisheries management plan, the joint fisheries management plan 32 

between the South Atlantic and the Gulf of Mexico, is repealed, 33 

then Florida would likely take over the management of spiny 34 

lobster within our state waters and without our state waters off 35 

the coast of Florida, in which case ACLs and AMs would no longer 36 

be an issue. 37 

 38 

However, we’re still dealing, within spiny lobster, that issue 39 

about the import size limits and until we can figure out a way 40 

or NOAA Fisheries can figure out a way to move that out of an 41 

FMP for lobster into some other place, thus preparing the way to 42 

repeal the joint management plan, ACLs and AMs will have to be 43 

worked out and they’ll have to be worked out by 2011.  I know 44 

the industry is very nervous about that. 45 

 46 

MR. SAPP:  That was a problem, but that wasn’t the problem that 47 

I was referring to and so let me tackle it and you can jump in 48 
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when I misrepresent this.  The nature of that fishery is that 1 

all of the lobster that are in Florida, the recruitment actually 2 

occurs someplace else in the Caribbean. 3 

 4 

There’s no necessity at all to limit the harvest of those 5 

crawfish, because by nature of how that fishery works, if you 6 

harvest every legal size crawfish and you never allowed even one 7 

to repopulate, it’s not going to have any effect, because in 8 

effect what happens is any eggs, larvae, crawfish, get out into 9 

the cold waters and basically die someplace. 10 

 11 

Florida crawfish do not contribute to recruitment of Florida 12 

lobsters and so it doesn’t make any sense for us not to harvest 13 

all of the legal crawfish that are in Florida waters and the 14 

problem is when we come in and set ACLs, what we’ve seen is 15 

they’ve got to have some way to establish what the ACL is going 16 

to be. 17 

 18 

If you look at the historical landings, they remain pretty level 19 

and then they’ve sloped off over the last few years and they’re 20 

not exactly sure what the reason for that reduced harvest is, 21 

but what they suspect is it’s the result of a virus. 22 

 23 

Whatever the cause of it is, if we set ACLs down at this level 24 

and then for whatever reason we get better recruitment into 25 

southern Florida of those crawfish, if they start to harvest 26 

back to what used to be the historical level, they’re going to 27 

exceed the ACLs and they’re going to come under the 28 

accountability measures. 29 

 30 

I don’t know what the solution is, other than to just not worry 31 

about it, because most of the fishery occurs in Florida anyway 32 

and there’s not necessarily any likelihood that they’re going to 33 

pay any attention to what we set as ACLs, but potentially it is 34 

going to create a problem.  35 

 36 

The logical thing is to set the ACLs up high enough that you’re 37 

never going to exceed that as harvest, but I don’t anticipate 38 

that’s going to be the final outcome of this thing when we get 39 

ABC recommendations from the SSC after they take a look at it.  40 

It’s not something that I’ve got a solution for or anybody 41 

suggested a solution, but it’s just a problem that we’re going 42 

to have to deal with as we manage these things. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  My comment relative to the format and process of the 45 

spiny lobster combined meetings -- It was my first experience 46 

with a joint meeting and in fact, it was joint not only with the 47 

South Atlantic Committee, but also with the APs of the 48 
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respective councils and so we basically had four groups meeting 1 

at once. 2 

 3 

Perhaps it could work, but my reaction from this first 4 

experience is that it’s functionally unwieldy and we would be 5 

advised to hold either joint committee meetings and separate 6 

joint APs or joint committee and AP meetings of the respective 7 

councils or something, but it’s very difficult to get all the 8 

information and handle all the questions and have everybody up 9 

to speed when you have four of these groups trying to all do the 10 

same thing at the same time.  Unless you’ve got a teeny agenda, 11 

my recommendation is we don’t repeat that experience at this 12 

point in time. 13 

 14 

MR. CUPKA:  I agree with you on that, Bob.  We talked about it 15 

afterwards and it was an unwieldy situation and we said probably 16 

what we should have done in this case is have the APs meet 17 

separately from the committees.  They ran out of time and it was 18 

just too unwieldy.  We certainly agree with that. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re at a point where we need to make a 21 

decision on the remaining schedule.  My suggestion is that we 22 

break now until 12:30.  That gives people time to check out 23 

before the twelve o’clock deadline and perhaps grab some lunch 24 

and that will still put us an hour ahead.  Does anybody object 25 

to that plan?  We will recess until 12:30. 26 

 27 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 11:20 a.m., June 17, 2010.) 28 

 29 

- - - 30 

 31 

June 17, 2010 32 

 33 

THURSDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 34 

 35 

- - - 36 

 37 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 38 

Council reconvened in the Coastal Ballroom of the Courtyard 39 

Marriott, Gulfport, Mississippi, Thursday afternoon, June 17, 40 

2010, and was called to order at 12:35 p.m. by Chairman Bob 41 

Shipp. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we have a quorum.  Mr. Pearce has a few 44 

comments to make about the Coast Guard. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  In our ever-increasing effort to ensure the public 47 

that all seafood is safe and no product is coming out of the 48 
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precautionary closed area, our good friends at the Coast Guard 1 

are doing some things that I think are very important to all of 2 

us here and I would like to turn it over to the Coast Guard to 3 

explain to you what he’s got going. 4 

 5 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Just to highlight to the council a little bit 6 

about what we have going on offshore right now, in an attempt to 7 

reassure the council of our enforcement efforts, we do have a 8 

very robust presence out in the closed area right now.  It’s 9 

made up of several surface assets and continuous flights of the 10 

closed area. 11 

 12 

Make no mistake that the Coast Guard is definitely committed to 13 

seeing this through.  We’re going to maintain a very strong 14 

presence offshore and just in light of our seizure over the 15 

weekend, we’ve even reallocated some assets to bolster the 16 

region.  We’ve pulled from some other areas to really maintain a 17 

strong presence there.  We’re going to see this through and 18 

we’re going to maintain a really strong presence out there. 19 

 20 

MR. PEARCE:  As part of our discussions with the Coast Guard and 21 

NOAA, as I’ve been talking to them at the meeting, they’re going 22 

to be ramping up to assure us that what’s going on and moving 23 

more assets from other areas is really important to the Gulf of 24 

Mexico, to make sure that we have a strong presence of 25 

enforcement here.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce.  Ms. Morris, are you 28 

ready to move ahead with your Administrative Policy Committee, 29 

Tab E? 30 

 31 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT 32 

 33 

MS. MORRIS:  This is Tab E and everything that we’re talking 34 

about relates to the document at Tab E-4, which is the revised 35 

SOPPs.  Not everything, but the stuff that we begin with.  The 36 

committee was convened and the agenda was approved and the 37 

minutes were approved, but we did have to change the word 38 

“bottom” to “bottle”. 39 

 40 

We first started with the travel guidelines and that is Tab E-3 41 

and you should be looking at that if you care to.  At the April 42 

meeting, the committee drafted a motion for council 43 

consideration regarding the fifty-mile minimum requirement for 44 

approval of lodging. 45 

 46 

The motion was presented to the council and after deliberating, 47 

the council tabled the motion and directed staff to develop 48 
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revised language for review at the June meeting.  The language 1 

at Tab E-3 is the staff’s proposed language. 2 

 3 

Ms. Williams referred to the discussion at the April meeting and 4 

felt that some members opposed the fifty-mile restriction.  The 5 

committee reviewed the motion that was tabled by the council at 6 

the last meeting: Lodging will not be authorized if commuting is 7 

fifty miles or less, except for council meetings. 8 

 9 

Mr. Riechers pointed out the staff’s proposed language states: 10 

“Lodging may not be authorized if commuting is fifty miles or 11 

less unless approved written justification is received”.   12 

 13 

On behalf of the committee, I so move to adopt the following 14 

language in Section D of the Travel Guidelines in place of the 15 

highlighted language in Tab E-3: Lodging will not be authorized 16 

if commuting is fifty miles or less, except for council meetings 17 

(committees and council of the whole) and other council related 18 

meetings as approved in advance in writing. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Is there any 21 

discussion? 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  Just for clarity, the approval in advance in writing 24 

is for the entire exception or just the other council-related 25 

meetings? 26 

 27 

MS. MORRIS:  I think to clarify the intention, it relates -- The 28 

last “as approved in advance in writing” relates to the other 29 

related council meetings portion. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Any objections?  32 

Hearing none, the motion is adopted. 33 

 34 

MS. MORRIS:  Then we moved to Tab E-4, which is the revised 35 

council SOPPs.  She related that the outline is designed to 36 

parallel the draft NOAA SOPPs template and the document headings 37 

that are highlighted in gray are headings that are included in 38 

the draft template.  The committee reviewed the proposed 39 

revisions in Tab E-4 and, except as noted, approved the 40 

revisions suggested by staff.   41 

 42 

We’re going to go through motions that changed the draft that 43 

was distributed with the briefing book and then at the end of 44 

that, we’ll ask you if you’re ready to approve the new SOPPs as 45 

amended. 46 

 47 

On behalf of the committee, I so move that on page 11, the list 48 
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of current management committees of the council will include the 1 

seven fishery management plans in the list 1 through 7; add an 2 

eighth item entitled “Other Management Committees Approved by 3 

the Council”; remove “Marine Reserves” and “Sustainable 4 

Fisheries/Ecosystem” from the list of committees; and remove the 5 

word “Current” and replace it with the word “Fishery” in this 6 

section. 7 

 8 

The point here is instead of having to change our SOPPs every 9 

time we add a new management committee by listing it by name, 10 

this would allow us to have the standard management committees 11 

listed and then anything that’s in this other management 12 

committees category would be covered by that in the SOPPs and we 13 

wouldn’t have to make a lot of amendments to the SOPPs. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Julie, I’m puzzled.  Why are eliminating the 16 

Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee? 17 

 18 

MS. MORRIS:  We’re not eliminating the committee.  We’re going 19 

to not list it as a specific committee in the SOPPs and the 20 

thinking is that some of these committees come and go because 21 

they’re not related to a particular fishery management plan that 22 

we’re working on and this allows us more flexibility to approve 23 

other committees without having to amend our SOPPs every time we 24 

approve or change one of those other kinds of committees. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other comments? 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  On page 5 of this document, I believe Mr. Gill 29 

had some discussion.  There’s a new section that was added that 30 

I would like to discuss.  It’s not on the board and are we going 31 

to be able to go back, Julie?  Is that your intent, after we go 32 

through all of these and make changes? 33 

 34 

MS. MORRIS:  We can return to that as soon as we dispense with 35 

this motion. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Any other discussion on the motion on the board?  The 38 

motion is on page 11 that the list of current management 39 

committees of the council will include the seven fishery 40 

management plans in the list 1 through 7; add an eighth item 41 

entitled “Other Management Committees Approved by the Council”; 42 

remove “Marine Reserves” and “Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem” 43 

from the list of committees; and remove the word “Current” and 44 

replace it with the word “Fishery” in this section.  All those 45 

in favor say aye; all opposed like sign.  The motion passes. 46 

 47 

MS. MORRIS:  Then let’s return to the issue that Kay just raised 48 
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on page 5 of the E-4 revised SOPPs document.  This is a section 1 

that discusses officers and terms of office and there’s a 2 

paragraph that’s been inserted there, highlighted in red type, 3 

that we discussed but did not make any decisions about and Kay 4 

has a comment about that. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The comment is that I didn’t feel comfortable 7 

doing it just in committee, because I wanted to make sure that 8 

we did pay some attention to this, in case there was some 9 

objection.  I know Mr. Gill had a little bit of concern, because 10 

it is a totally new paragraph that deviates from how this 11 

council has always operated. 12 

 13 

It reads: The Chair, or in the Chair’s absence the Vice Chair, 14 

of the Council has authority to convene and adjourn meetings and 15 

public hearings and designate members of the Council, Scientific 16 

and Statistical Committee, and Advisory Panel to attend meetings 17 

and public hearings.  The Chair will control meetings and 18 

hearings by recognizing speakers, establishing the order of 19 

business, and designating members of the Council and its 20 

advisory bodies as members of committees and working groups. 21 

 22 

In the past, if you go back and look through our SOPPs, the 23 

council approves some of this and the Chair does some of this 24 

and then in others, the Chair does it after the council approves 25 

it.  That’s just some discussion that was brought up when we 26 

were reviewing this. 27 

 28 

MS. MORRIS:  Kay, do you want to offer a motion to change this 29 

or is there something in particular that you think needs to be 30 

changed about it? 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like someone to explain why they feel 33 

that it was necessary to add this new paragraph to change the 34 

way that the council operates or has been operating in the past, 35 

if staff could clarify why. 36 

 37 

MS. CATHY READINGER:  As we were going through, Kay, a line-by-38 

line review, we noticed that we didn’t have any provision in 39 

there that specified the Chair’s authority and responsibility 40 

and so I developed this language, partly from the South Atlantic 41 

Council SOPPs, and what I understood how we operated. 42 

 43 

I had Rick review it and so did Steve and so if there’s anything 44 

that needs to be changed, if you’ll let me know, we can make 45 

that change, but my understanding is it is how we operate. 46 

 47 

MS. MORRIS:  Once again, is there a motion, Kay, that you would 48 
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like to make to change this section? 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would make the motion to just leave this 3 

particular new paragraph out of this section.  The reason why is 4 

as you go through this, this is talking about -- It’s under the 5 

heading of “Officers and Terms of Office” and what this says 6 

really has nothing to do with the terms of office, in my mind.  7 

I would make a motion to just eliminate that paragraph. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  We have a motion on the board.  Is there a second?  10 

The motion dies for lack of a second. 11 

 12 

MS. MORRIS:  If there’s not anything else regarding this section 13 

-- It looks like there is though. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a question on page 7.  Under the Personnel 16 

Files, it says a file for each employee containing appointment 17 

information, security information, and so forth and so on will 18 

be maintained by the Executive Director under security and 19 

safeguard conditions required of files subject to the Privacy 20 

Act.  Before, it’s stated in the Executive Director’s office and 21 

it doesn’t state where these papers will be and is there a 22 

reason for that? 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  They’re actually physically kept in 25 

the Administrative Officer’s office and we felt it didn’t matter 26 

where it was as long as it was locked up. 27 

 28 

MS. MORRIS:  Anything else before we get back to page 12 of the 29 

document?  Okay.  Then on page 12, in order to avoid a specific 30 

reference to a staff position, by consensus, the committee 31 

approved changing the word “habitat support specialist” to 32 

“staff” on page 12, Habitat Protection, third paragraph, and on 33 

behalf of the committee, I so move. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  36 

Is there any objection?  The motion carries. 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  The committee then discussed whether it was 39 

necessary to include the “Council Coordination Committee” (CCC) 40 

in the listing of council committees.  Mr. Grimes noted that the 41 

CCC was initially included in the SOPPs because it originally 42 

did not have a FACA exemption and each council was advised to 43 

add it to the SOPPs.   44 

 45 

The reauthorization of the Act now includes a FACA exemption for 46 

the CCC and so it is no longer necessary.  On behalf of the 47 

committee, I so move to remove the reference to the “Council 48 
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Coordination Committee” (CCC) from the list of committees on 1 

page 13. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  I have 4 

a bit of discussion.  It seems to me that there’s some -- I 5 

don’t have the document in front of me, but there’s discussion 6 

regarding the Council Coordination Committee later in the 7 

document and if we do pass this motion, then we ought to remove 8 

that reference as well. 9 

 10 

MS. MORRIS:  Would you like to add that?  The amendment would be 11 

to add to this motion what language? 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  “And remove further references to the Council 14 

Coordination Committee”. 15 

 16 

MS. MORRIS:  I would move that as an amendment. 17 

 18 

MR. SAPP:  Second. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  We have an amendment on the board to modify the 21 

motion to add “and remove further references to the Council 22 

Coordination Committee from the SOPPs”.  It’s seconded and is 23 

there further discussion? 24 

 25 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m a little concerned that we’re removing that 26 

in places where it shouldn’t be removed.  We were removing it 27 

from the list of committees because it no longer needs to be 28 

there, but you’re basically now removing it from anywhere it’s 29 

in text with that motion. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  True. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I think that’s my concern.  I think 34 

we wanted this document to be read and understood by the public 35 

and if we do that, they wouldn’t have any reference to the 36 

Council Coordinating Committee. 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  Should I withdraw the amendment? 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  If you would like. 41 

 42 

MS. MORRIS:  I will withdraw the amendment. 43 

 44 

MR. SAPP:  The seconder agrees. 45 

 46 

MR. SIMPSON:  Is the purpose of the document for the public or 47 

us? 48 
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 1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I think both, but I think we should 2 

be transparent and I think they should be able to read it and 3 

understand what we do. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  To that point, I found it.  It’s on -- It’s Paragraph 6 

10 on page 13 and it goes into a description of the Council 7 

Coordination Committee, acting as though it’s our committee by 8 

defining who shall be members and who shall not be members of 9 

the committee, and that’s not our purview.   10 

 11 

Perhaps if we do it just on the basis to give staff license to 12 

modify the write-up to reflect the intent that it’s not our 13 

committee and it could use explanation, but not treat it like 14 

it’s one of our committees and so revise that section 15 

accordingly. 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  Bob, the committee motion addresses this paragraph 18 

on page 13. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  I apologize.  I was thinking it did it back in the -- 21 

 22 

MS. MORRIS:  Maybe when we get to that place in the document it 23 

will -- As we move through these motions, it will pop up again.  24 

We still have a committee motion we need to vote on, right? 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Yes, the motion is on the board.  Is there further 27 

discussion?  The motion is to remove the reference to the 28 

“Council Coordination Committee” (CCC) from the list of 29 

committees on page 13.  All those in favor say aye; all opposed 30 

like sign.  The motion passes. 31 

 32 

MS. MORRIS:  There was discussion of the language on page 14, 33 

Advisory Panels, second paragraph, regarding violations.  Ms. 34 

Williams expressed concern with the words “any felony offense”.  35 

Mr. Grimes felt the language did not involve a substantive 36 

change.   37 

 38 

The council would not want felons on its APs, regardless of 39 

whether it is related to a marine issue.  The phrase “determined 40 

to have violated” is an attempt to clarify or add a great deal 41 

of specificity to the original language of what constitutes a 42 

violation.   43 

 44 

The only substantive change is including the word 45 

“automatically” before the word “removed” so that the council 46 

does not have to debate over whether a member should be removed.  47 

It also takes out the exception relative to individuals who, in 48 
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the name of their corporation or business, have been charged. 1 

 2 

Dr. Bortone commented that in some cases staff had to become an 3 

investigative body respective to AP member violations.  He is 4 

working with NOAA law enforcement personnel to receive 5 

information on advisory panel member violations so as to avoid 6 

problems in the future. 7 

 8 

It was suggested that on page 16, XII.A.  General, the word 9 

“Chair” should be removed.  Mr. Gill felt that approval to 10 

schedule meetings of the council’s SSCs and APs resides with the 11 

council versus the council chair.  The committee took no action. 12 

 13 

On behalf of the committee, I so move to delete the second 14 

sentence, “Ordinarily a meeting will be held each two months” on 15 

page 16, XII.C., Frequency and Duration. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 18 

discussion or objections? 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It’s really not to this motion, but it’s actually 21 

to what was read into the record as to what I said.  I wasn’t 22 

saying that I supported anyone that had a felony to serve on any 23 

of our panels.  What I was concerned with was the way it was 24 

worded.   25 

 26 

I had concerns such as if someone had a violation, perhaps 27 

because maybe they didn’t have enough life jackets on the vessel 28 

or something like that, just because it was a violation and not 29 

necessarily harvesting or anything like that, but just it could 30 

be a very minor technical thing and I just wanted to make sure 31 

that we weren’t trying to exclude those individuals, but that 32 

was actually my comment. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  So noted, Kay.  So noted.  Any discussion or 35 

objections to this committee motion?  Hearing none, the motion 36 

is adopted. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  I would like to reintroduce the comment that I had 39 

made to the committee that I was not part of, just to see 40 

whether the council agrees or disagrees.  I would move that we 41 

delete the word “Chair” from Section XII.A, the first sentence, 42 

page 16.  It’s under Meetings of the Council Committees and 43 

Advisory Groups, Subparagraph A, General, the first sentence, 44 

and merely reflects how we operate in convening SSCs and APs. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  The motion dies for lack of 47 

a second. 48 
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 1 

MS. MORRIS:  The next committee motion is page 19 and it has to 2 

do with setting the locations of public hearings.  It’s in 3 

Section XIII.A and we want to add the word -- The committee 4 

approved adding the word “geographic” before the word “location” 5 

on page 19, XIII.A., and on behalf of the committee, I so move. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  8 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion is approved. 9 

 10 

MS. MORRIS:  Next, there was discussion of whether to retain the 11 

language on pages 20 through 23 regarding confidentiality of 12 

statistics.  However, no action was taken.  Ms. Readinger noted 13 

that at this point, the language is not in the handbook because 14 

staff is required to complete the Confidentiality of Statistics 15 

form when hired and the form contains the same language.  On 16 

behalf of the committee, I so move to recommend to the council 17 

that the SOPPs be adopted as amended. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 20 

objections or discussion?  The motion is approved. 21 

 22 

MS. MORRIS:  That is very lovely, to have an amended, up-to-date 23 

set of SOPPs.  Thank you all for your patient work on this over 24 

several meetings and thank you particularly to Cathy and the 25 

staff for working with the council on revising the SOPPs. 26 

 27 

During the discussion of the SOPPs, Mr. Grimes pointed out that 28 

the Act requires the council to meet jointly with the SSC, to 29 

the extent practicable.  Staff has since determined that this 30 

requirement is not stated in the SOPPs.  Although the committee 31 

did not make a motion to include the provision, I move to add 32 

the following underlined sentence on page 16 of the SOPPs -- We 33 

just adopted them, but now we have another amendment and I’m 34 

sorry. 35 

 36 

On page 16 of the SOPPs, XII., A., Meetings of the Council, 37 

Committees, and Advisory Groups: “A. General, The Council will 38 

meet at the call of the Council Chair or upon request of a 39 

majority of its voting members.  Meetings will ordinarily be 40 

held in plenary sessions, but may be in subgroups or in 41 

individual sessions.  The Council’s SSC and APs will meet with 42 

the approval of the Council Chair.  The SSC shall hold its 43 

meetings in conjunction with the meeting of the Council to the 44 

extent practicable.  All participants are to keep electronic 45 

devices on silent or vibrating mode during Council meetings.” 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  I guess the question I would ask is that language is 48 
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identical to the language in the Act, Shep? 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, I believe so. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ll tell you, and David might want to comment on 5 

this too, but we just went through I think a year or more where 6 

the South Atlantic Council met in conjunction with the SSC.  7 

They met in one room and we met in another. 8 

 9 

It did not work and the problem was the council members couldn’t 10 

be in the room and really participate or listen to the SSC and 11 

the SSC Chair would come in at some point in the day and report 12 

to us, but we didn’t get a report and what we did get was very 13 

hastily put together. 14 

 15 

We decided that it’s not practical to do that very often and the 16 

spirit of what I think the Act was getting at was to have the 17 

SSC and the council meet together and talk about things and I 18 

think that is a worthwhile thing to do from time to time, but to 19 

just have us both meet at the same time is not a practicable 20 

thing to do and really doesn’t work. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t think the sentence that we’ve added 23 

precludes that either.  It just says in conjunction with and so 24 

whatever turns out to be the most workable is what we would do.  25 

Any further -- 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  As you may know, some councils 28 

automatically the SSC meets with their council and we are well 29 

aware of this provision and we have sincerely tried to meet 30 

together and we will, under that spirit that Roy indicated, when 31 

we can, but our attempts at trying to get the SSC together with 32 

our council has not been successful to date, nor has there been, 33 

other than the camaraderie aspect, any real reason to do that, 34 

but we will try to meet when we can. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  I’m going to speak in opposition to this motion.  I 37 

agree with Roy and the concern that I have -- Obviously the 38 

intent today, I think we’re on the same page, but down the road, 39 

keeping that intent intact, in conjunction with this sentence, 40 

suggests that they’ll try to go to that mode.  I’m thinking that 41 

this sentence inclusion will tend to mislead, downstream, folks 42 

as to what our real intent is.  I could handle a rewording, but 43 

I will speak in opposition. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  You know the wheel just keeps going around and 46 

around.  We tried this twenty-five years ago and it didn’t work 47 

and I agree.  I don’t think it’s a good idea. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  2 

 3 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just like to comment that I guess it is a 4 

little bit troubling to me to hear you speak against doing 5 

something that the law requires.  This is straight out of the 6 

statute.  I guess I don’t see the problem with it. 7 

 8 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t have any problem putting this into the 9 

SOPPs, but I don’t think we’re talking about not doing something 10 

the law requires.  The law requires us to determine to what 11 

extent it’s practicable to do this and there are a lot of 12 

complications that you have to take into account. 13 

 14 

I think we do need to meet with them periodically, but my point 15 

is it’s not practicable to have it as a regular, every time kind 16 

of thing.  It’s something that’s going to occur periodically. 17 

 18 

MS. MORRIS:  I wanted to point out that this is not a committee 19 

motion and it has not been seconded. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Was this your individual motion?  Is there a 22 

second?   23 

 24 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll second it. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Further discussion? 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Something that Shep said, there are areas also in 29 

Magnuson that says the council will do certain things and in our 30 

SOPPs, we have changed “will” to “may” and so there’s been a 31 

discrepancy there too and I’ll show that to you later, Shep. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Because of the dissension in the ranks, Corky, 34 

one more time and then we’re going to vote on this. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  I just read the last sentence.  If I don’t keep it 37 

on silent, what are you all going to do to me? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Throw your butt out. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  If we don’t keep electronic devices silent, what is 42 

the penalty?  We make a statement, but what are you going to do 43 

if somebody doesn’t follow it? 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s already in there, Corky.  You’re out of 46 

order.  Let’s go ahead and vote this up or down.  The 47 

underscored sentence is the suggested addition to the SOPPs.  48 
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All in favor of adding the language signify by raising your 1 

hand, eight; opposed, eight.  The motion fails eight to eight. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Let me just add something here.  4 

When the councils and the SSCs meet together, those meetings 5 

with other council are eight days long and so you might want to 6 

-- 7 

 8 

MS. MORRIS:  Ms. Readinger referred to Tab E-5, Draft 9 

Administrative Handbook, and she advised the committee that the 10 

language in italicized font is language that is also included in 11 

the SOPPs.  The yellow highlighted headings were items that were 12 

also included in the former 2003 Administrative Handbook. 13 

 14 

Mr. Steele felt that given the time constraints, the committee 15 

should review topics that are of importance to the members and 16 

address the remaining issues at the August meeting. 17 

 18 

Ms. Morris referred to page 62, Policy on Minority Reports, and 19 

she felt minority reports were sometimes counterproductive.  Mr. 20 

Grimes noted that the filing of a minority report is stated in 21 

the statute.  Ms. Morris felt the provision for staff to assist 22 

council members in drafting a minority report could slow the 23 

process.  She felt that if it is not a requirement, it should be 24 

removed.  Ms. Williams felt staff should be allowed to assist 25 

members in filing minority reports. 26 

 27 

On behalf of the committee, I so move to remove the third, 28 

fourth, and fifth sentences on page 64 of the Draft 29 

Administrative Handbook, Policy on Minority Reports, which are:  30 

“If voting members are to utilize staff assistance in 31 

preparation of a minority position on an FMP or amendment, they 32 

must declare their intent to do so at the time the majority 33 

approves the FMP or amendment.  The Council Chair will ask for a 34 

statement of such intent immediately following the roll call 35 

vote on the plan or amendment.  If such members request staff 36 

assistance, where possible the Council Chair shall provide time 37 

during the course of that meeting for minority members to meet 38 

with staff to outline, verbally or in writing, the minority 39 

position and discuss (and record) supporting rationale.”   40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 42 

discussion on this? 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  I just want to be clear that we’re removing the 45 

fact that they have to notify staff immediately or we’re 46 

removing the fact that they can get staff help?  I want to know 47 

what exactly is taking place.  I find it’s worded ambiguously.  48 



154 

 

 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think all the above and I would like to 2 

comment.  Years ago, my first term on the council, minority 3 

reports were almost a regular occurrence and since this time, 4 

I’ve hardly seen any of them.  I just we’ve just evolved in that 5 

direction. 6 

 7 

I speak against the motion, because I do think there are times 8 

when minority reports are important and need to be made aware to 9 

NMFS and so any further discussion on this issue? 10 

 11 

MR. RIECHERS:  Let me just clarify, because I’m not certain -- 12 

The sentences removed is the notion of asking for help right at 13 

that moment in time and then receiving that help, but it doesn’t 14 

remove the option for a minority report, because, of course, as 15 

Shep pointed out, we have to have the option for minority 16 

reports. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s just the protocol that’s stated in the 19 

handbook that you’re concerned about, whether it’s required that 20 

it be -- 21 

 22 

MR. RIECHERS:  And how much staff support would be provided.  23 

What we’re doing here is removing that option for that continued 24 

staff support as we move through time.  There obviously has to 25 

be some staff support in handing over the amendment and some of 26 

the background materials, but the notion was that in the past 27 

staff wrote some of those minority reports and were used to do 28 

so and I think that’s what we were trying to remove here. 29 

 30 

I would remind everyone we’re working in the handbook now and 31 

this is the first draft of the handbook and so we’re going to 32 

get another shot at this or maybe more than one more shot at 33 

this. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  Having submitted the first minority report ever by 36 

a Gulf Council member and being unsuccessful, I did the entire 37 

work myself.  I think if members want to write a minority 38 

report, if it’s that important, they should do their own work.  39 

Now, if they need particular records or so on from staff, fine, 40 

but I don’t think staff should be writing a member’s minority 41 

report. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If you read -- We’ve had this discussion before 44 

and we actually changed the language to do somewhat of what 45 

you’re saying and somewhat of what Dr. Shipp said.  If you go 46 

and read what’s in there now, the last minority report staff, 47 

that I recall, they didn’t write it. 48 
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 1 

But we did say, and that’s what it says and so I don’t know why 2 

they’re wanting to change it, is you have to declare that you’re 3 

going to submit a minority report and you are supposed to write 4 

it, but if you need help, then you are allowed to contact staff 5 

and have them supply you with some information or look over your 6 

rough draft, but the way that I read the language, as it 7 

presently is in this administrative handbook, before the 8 

suggested changes, staff isn’t writing it. 9 

 10 

Staff is there and available to help you if you need some help, 11 

but they’re not writing it and so I don’t understand why they’re 12 

wanting to go in and change anything. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  I thought it might be helpful, since it somewhat 15 

convoluted, to read what results with the deletion of this, 16 

because it seems to be we’re not coalescing on a position.  What 17 

results, if this motion passes, is that it starts with: “The 18 

council has approved the following policy in regard to minority 19 

positions (reports) on FMPs or amendments submitted to the 20 

Secretary for implementation. 21 

 22 

During the period the FMP or amendment is being completed, staff 23 

will provide technical assistance on preparation of the minority 24 

position and submit it to the members for editorial suggestions, 25 

all of which shall be included and resubmitted to the members.  26 

In cases of dispute over the language in the minority position, 27 

it’s incumbent on the members and not staff to resolve the 28 

issue.  The minority report will be submitted to NMFS with the 29 

FMP or amendment or if delays in approval occur, as soon as 30 

possible thereafter.”  That’s what remains if we take this out 31 

and hopefully that will clarify where we are. 32 

 33 

MR. FISCHER:  I just want to be certain.  We’re taking out the 34 

portion about staff assistance. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re taking out the protocol that you request 37 

it at that time. 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  I’m for that change, because sometimes at the 40 

moment of the vote, sometimes you don’t think minority report, 41 

but when you get back home and you think about it -- I’m correct 42 

that you request staff assistance at a later time? 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The way I interpret this is if you’re going to 45 

need staff assistance, you need to let the Chair and the ED 46 

know, but that doesn’t preclude you from going back and 47 

developing your own minority report, as I understand it.  Let’s 48 
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go ahead and vote this up or down.  We’re losing traction here.  1 

All in favor of this motion signify by raising your hand; all 2 

opposed.  The motion carries. 3 

 4 

MS. MORRIS:  Back to the committee report.  On behalf of the 5 

committee, I so move to request that the Habitat Protection 6 

Committee be assigned the task of updating the Habitat Policy 7 

and Procedures section in the Administrative Handbook. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Any objections?  Any 10 

discussion?  The motion passes. 11 

 12 

MS. MORRIS:  The committee agreed that a detailed review of the 13 

Draft Administrative Handbook will be made at the August meeting 14 

and council members are requested to notify staff of any 15 

suggested changes and/or additions.  That concludes my report, 16 

the written report, Chairman Shipp. 17 

 18 

MR. HENDRIX:  Just to that recent motion, if staff could 19 

schedule time for the Habitat Committee at the next council 20 

meeting to discuss that change to the policy or I guess we 21 

should do it in Administrative Policy again or no, the Habitat 22 

Committee. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The Habitat Committee will be 25 

meeting next time anyway to present the plan. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have two questions.  I actually have two 28 

documents that is the Draft Administrative Handbook and one is 29 

eighty-seven pages and the other one is ninety-nine pages.  Some 30 

of the pages actually has like some gibberish on it and maybe 31 

that’s why there’s a difference.   32 

 33 

I’m sure it was just an oversight, but I would ask staff not to, 34 

other than the changes that we just approved, that we be allowed 35 

to take this document and thoroughly review it, so that if there 36 

are some changes at the next meeting we can do so then. 37 

 38 

There’s a lot of things that’s been struck through and they’ve 39 

added new language and none of that has been approved and so 40 

since that was just a first stab at it, I just want to make sure 41 

that it will come back to us in this same format. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I think the last sentence suggests that.  44 

In fact, it specifies that.  If there is nothing else on this 45 

committee, we’re going to move ahead to the Data Collection 46 

Committee.  Robin, are you prepared? 47 

 48 
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DATA COLLECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 1 

 2 

MR. RIECHERS:  The Data Collection Committee met on June 15, 3 

2010.  The agenda was adopted as written, with the addition of a 4 

VMS discussion under Other Business.  The minutes of the April 5 

13, 2010 meeting were approved with no modifications. 6 

 7 

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith gave an update on the progress of motions 8 

made at the April 2010 council meeting.  Her report included 9 

progress of the following: completing outreach and education of 10 

electronic reporting systems, defining data standards and 11 

operating requirements for an electronic reporting system of the 12 

for-hire sector by June 2010, as well as implementing a 13 

mandatory electronic reporting system for federally permitted 14 

dealers. 15 

 16 

The committee suggested holding the education training in the 17 

evening, to try to involve the greatest number of for-hire 18 

permit holders that may also be involved in the Vessel of 19 

Opportunity Program.  Dr. Ponwith stated that she would also 20 

develop a table of dealers that are currently reporting 21 

electronically and the percent of landings those dealers are 22 

currently reporting and bring that back to us.   23 

 24 

The committee agreed the VMS advisory panel should meet to get 25 

things moving.  Dr. Steve Bortone stated Dr. John Froeschke was 26 

working on this and had emailed the panel to develop an agenda.   27 

 28 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to convene the Vessel 29 

Monitoring System Advisory Panel to discuss the VMS and other 30 

hardware programs that are available to the fishery for 31 

monitoring. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Is there any 34 

discussion?  Any objections?  The motion passes. 35 

 36 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report, but Ms. 37 

Ponwith has asked that she have a moment here under Data 38 

Collection to advise us on a couple of issues. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Go ahead, Bonnie. 41 

 42 

DR. PONWITH:  I have received some preliminary data regarding 43 

the question of how many dealers in the Gulf of Mexico would be 44 

subsetted as representing a certain percentage, high percentage, 45 

of the landings and then also, of those, how many are currently 46 

reporting via electronic reporting. 47 

 48 
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I’ve got, again, preliminary data, but it will give you a feel.  1 

The largest dealers, the dealers that deal with the highest 2 

volume of landings, what we’ve done is set a level at 95 or 96 3 

percent.  There’s approximately eighty-three dealers that 4 

represent the landings, by pounds, of the 96 percent of those 5 

landings. 6 

 7 

Of those eighty-three dealers, currently fifty-three of them are 8 

reporting electronically and that represents 71 percent and so 9 

it’s quite a large number of the major dealers in the Gulf are 10 

already reporting electronically. 11 

 12 

To give you a feel for the remainder, there are about 310 13 

dealers in the Gulf of Mexico and of those 310, 120 of them are 14 

reporting electronically, which is about 75 percent total.   15 

 16 

I talked with staff and their recommendation was if it’s the 17 

council’s will to allow the grace period that we talked about 18 

during the committee meeting that rather than setting a 19 

percentage, that they express to the Center that it’s their will 20 

to get the vast majority of the large dealers into the system 21 

this year and let the Science Center work with the states to 22 

actually set where that cutoff would be, to make sure that we do 23 

this in a way that’s executable. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Ponwith.  Any comments or 26 

questions for Bonnie?   27 

 28 

MR. PEARCE:  A real quick comment, Bonnie.  I think that’s great 29 

and I appreciate all the work you’ve just done and I know it’s 30 

going to take time to get some of these smaller guys on, but the 31 

quicker we do it, the better and as long as we get the bigger 32 

guys, we’re heading in the right direction. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Bonnie, it seems to me that one of the reports we 35 

get, and I think it was the grouper landings or something, but 36 

it comes in paper and I don’t know that we’ve ever been offered 37 

the ability to do it electronically. 38 

 39 

We do a number of things electronically and that’s not one of 40 

them.  It seems to me that on the large dealer side you could 41 

just ask if they would be willing to do it and I suspect that 90 42 

percent of them would say heck, yes, and it’s a lot better than 43 

handling paper. 44 

 45 

DR. PONWITH:  I agree.  I think the asking is the easy part.  46 

It’s setting the requirement and the operative word is the 47 

“mandatory”. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  One of the things that’s getting lost in this 2 

electronic reporting of dealers is the fact that a paper 3 

reporting of the dealers is required at the same -- Maybe not 4 

frequency, because electronically they can upload it quicker, 5 

but the real deadline is the same for them to get their reports 6 

in, at least in Texas.  Dave, do you want to comment on how that 7 

plays out across the Gulf?  I think it plays out everywhere the 8 

same. 9 

 10 

MR. DAVE DONALDSON:  You’re right, Robin.  They’re required, 11 

through the state trip ticket programs, to report on a monthly 12 

basis.  If you dealt with just federally-permitted dealers, you 13 

could make a requirement that they did report on a more frequent 14 

basis. 15 

 16 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t want to belabor the point, but it’s just 17 

that we’re making the issue regarding electronic versus paper, 18 

but in reality, the electronic guys, at this point in time, have 19 

the same due deadline -- Now, some of them may choose to upload 20 

it more often, but the reality of it is that they have the same 21 

requirement as the paper people now when it comes to those 22 

reporting frequencies. 23 

 24 

If we want to focus on something here, let’s make sure we’re 25 

focusing on the right thing.  Having electronics may not be the 26 

right thing.  It may be the frequency of reporting, that we 27 

require them to send it in. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  I agree with Robin that frequency of reporting 30 

could be part of the problem, but also, if it comes in in paper, 31 

it’s got to be put into the system, whereas electronic is 32 

already there. 33 

 34 

The time it takes to get this all entered, it takes us a lot of 35 

time and so the more electronic we are, the quicker that tenth 36 

of the month deadline is going to be -- You’re going to see your 37 

reports more, but I do agree that having reports more frequently 38 

would be better, but electronic is definitely better than paper 39 

and especially for the states. 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  Harlon, I don’t disagree with you, but those 42 

scanners can run a whole bunch of paper through in a heartbeat 43 

once they get it there.  Let’s just make sure we’re making our 44 

focus on the thing that we need to be focusing on. 45 

 46 

I agree that if we’re trying to monitor this daily then we’re 47 

dealing with a different animal and we go electronic and we have 48 



160 

 

them uploaded every night at midnight, but if we’re still not 1 

going to look at it but on a monthly basis, then we’re asking 2 

for stuff that -- I understand that you want to go electronic 3 

because in the future it probably is where we need to go, but 4 

that’s a business cost for some of those individuals and so 5 

let’s just be cognizant as we move forward.  That’s all I’m 6 

suggesting, is we make sure we focus on the right things. 7 

 8 

DR. PONWITH:  There was a second part of the report and it’s 9 

referring to the importance of fishery-independent sampling.  10 

That was another issue that came up at the last council meeting 11 

and we were able to put together an add-on fishery-independent 12 

sampling program this year. 13 

 14 

We are going to be initiating it this summer.  Our hope is to 15 

have it going -- Right now, the target is mid-July, but there 16 

are some permit issues we’re trying to iron out.  The focus of 17 

it is going to be the eastern Gulf of Mexico, split into five 18 

regions. 19 

 20 

We’re looking at adding about a thousand stations of new 21 

sampling effort in the eastern Gulf of Mexico.  We’ll be using 22 

vertical longline gear and we’re going to supplement NOAA 23 

vessels with some volunteer vessels from the industry that are 24 

coming out on a voluntary basis.   25 

 26 

The number of vessels, as I understand it right now, is going to 27 

be around five or six vessels.  Again, those vessels will have 28 

trained observers onboard and will be gathering data as a 29 

research vessel.  They will not be commercially fishing.  Again, 30 

we hope to have that set up and running by July and so I should 31 

be able to give you an update on that at the August meeting. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s great news, Bonnie.  I have a couple of 34 

questions.  The vessels that you may charter, are they a mix of 35 

for-hire and commercials or are they private or just whatever is 36 

available and best equipped to do the job? 37 

 38 

DR. PONWITH:  I don’t -- I’m going to have to double-check and 39 

find out what the split is of what type of vessels, but the 40 

organization that we’re working with is the Shareholders 41 

Alliance and, again, they’re volunteering their vessels for 42 

this. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Again, that’s great news. 45 

 46 

MR. PEARCE:  Just real quick, Bonnie.  That’s wonderful news.  47 

That’s great to see us move in that direction and thank you very 48 
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much. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re done with Data and, Joe, I think you’re 3 

next up on Habitat and are you ready to go? 4 

 5 

HABITAT PROTECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 6 

 7 

MR. HENDRIX:  The Habitat Protection Committee met on Tuesday 8 

afternoon and discussed the five-year review of the council’s 9 

Essential Fish Habitat Amendment.  Mr. Jeff Rester stated that 10 

the council is required to review the EFH provisions of the 11 

fishery management plans and revise or amend EFH provisions as 12 

warranted, based on available information.  13 

 14 

The EFH five-year review report needs to be submitted to the 15 

National Marine Fisheries Service by the end of the year.  Mr. 16 

Rester stated that they were reviewing existing EFH descriptions 17 

and designations by life stage for errors.   18 

 19 

He stated that new information available since the 2005 EFH 20 

Amendment included larval fish distributions from SEAMAP data 21 

and new information on deepwater coral.  Mr. Rester stated that 22 

Dr. John Froeschke was examining possible new methods of 23 

designating EFH using generalized additive models.   24 

 25 

He reported that a literature survey was conducted to see if new 26 

information existed on fishing impacts that may adversely affect 27 

EFH.  The report will also review habitat areas of particular 28 

concern designations.  Mr. Rester stated that a draft report 29 

would be provided for the council to review at their August 30 

meeting.  What we’re hoping here is that John and Jeff can 31 

finish it beforehand and send it to council members for review 32 

before the meeting, so that we can make some good progress on 33 

this review before the report is due at the end of the year.  34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Joe. 36 

 37 

MR. GRIMES:  I understand this has probably been an effort 38 

that’s been underway for some time, but in light of recent 39 

events, it seems like this review of EFH ought to have 40 

substantial discussion of oil spill impacts in it, it just seems 41 

to me. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  For sure and I think we’re very fortunate to 44 

have the time series that we have had, obviously previously to 45 

the oil spill, and I know of both state and federal agencies, 46 

the day the spill started, began to gather baseline data and so 47 

you’re absolutely right and we’re going to have some data to 48 
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deal with it, too.  Joe, did you want to comment? 1 

 2 

MR. HENDRIX:  Some of the things like Larry’s organization, Gulf 3 

States, that Larry sent us the email about, all that information 4 

will really bring the EFH Amendment up to date or the document 5 

itself up to date and provide additional information. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If there are no other comments, that will move 8 

us to the last committee report and then we’ll have some Other 9 

Business that we mentioned yesterday.  Ms. Morris, for the very, 10 

very last time, I’ll turn it over to you. 11 

 12 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 13 

 14 

MS. MORRIS:  This is the Sustainable Fisheries and Ecosystem 15 

Committee Report.  It’s Tab G.  The first part of the report 16 

will be related to Tab G-4, which is the summary minutes of the 17 

SSC meeting from May 19th, and then later in the report we’ll 18 

begin talking about the third draft of the Options Paper for the 19 

Generic ACL, which is at Tab G-3. 20 

 21 

The agenda was adopted with the addition of selection of public 22 

hearing locations, plus the following under Other Business: 1) 23 

council response to a letter from several Senators requesting 24 

research needs; 2) Council policy on risk of overfishing; and 3) 25 

the South Atlantic Council’s letter on proposed allocation of 26 

black grouper. 27 

 28 

The minutes were approved with two corrections.  We then turned 29 

our attention to the summary of the SSC comments with respect to 30 

the Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  Steve reviewed the SSC summary of 31 

recommendations from their May 19 to 23 meeting pertaining to 32 

the Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  33 

 34 

With respect to a red drum ABC, the SSC recommended that a 35 

working group be formed to explore the possibility of 36 

determining an ABC for red drum.  This group will meet in early 37 

July and will consist of Karen Burns, Sean Powers from the 38 

Standing SSC, Harry Blanchet from the Standing SSC, Jessica 39 

McCawley from the Special Red Drum SSC, Jim Tolan from the 40 

Special Red Drum SSC, Clay Porch from the Southeastern Fisheries 41 

Science Center, and Mike Murphy from Florida FWC. 42 

 43 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 44 

and I so move, that the council support the formation of the red 45 

drum ABC working group as recommended by the SSC. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 48 
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discussion?  Any objections?  The motion passes. 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  With respect to species groupings, the SSC felt 3 

that it would first attempt to set ABCs on a species-by-species 4 

basis and then look at species complexes as a Plan B.  The SSC 5 

has formed a working group to review the landings data and 6 

produce initial results on ABCs.  The group consists of Carrie 7 

Simmons, Steve Atran, Nick Farmer from the Southeastern Regional 8 

Office, Rich Malinowski from the Southeastern Regional Office, 9 

Luiz Barbieri from the Standing SSC, and Jim Cowan from the 10 

Standing SSC as a reviewer. 11 

 12 

The SSC deferred a decision on octocoral OFL and ABC until it 13 

can meet with the Special Coral SSC.  For stone crab claws, it 14 

recommended an OFL of 2.65 million pounds and an ABC of 2.6 15 

million pounds.  For royal red shrimp, it recommended an OFL of 16 

392,000 pounds of tails and an ABC of 334,000 pounds of tails. 17 

 18 

With respect to the ABC penaeid shrimp statement, the SSC 19 

deferred a determination of OFL and ABC until the next stock 20 

assessments are completed and to evaluate each stock on a 21 

species-by-species basis. 22 

 23 

The next section has to do with the black grouper ABC, but we 24 

have already covered that in the Reef Fish Committee and so 25 

we’re going to skip down to the Options Paper, which is at Tab 26 

G, Number 3. 27 

 28 

Due to time constraints, the committee focused on those actions 29 

in the options paper that required action by the council.  30 

Action 1, Management of Species or Fishery Management Plans by 31 

Other State or Federal Agencies, this Action has several stocks 32 

where one of the options is to delegate management to Florida 33 

FWC.   34 

 35 

Bill Teehan reiterated that Florida FWC is not interested in 36 

accepting delegation of a stock under partial management, i.e., 37 

still subject to ACLs and AMs.  His agency could consider 38 

managing a species that is removed from the FMP, but he 39 

cautioned that FWC could only manage vessels in the EEZ that 40 

were registered in Florida or that intended to land their catch 41 

in Florida.  FWC is meeting next week, and he will present the 42 

FWC determinations to the council in August. 43 

 44 

Action 2, Species Groupings, the SSC and the IPT have requested 45 

that the council indicate their preferred alternatives for 46 

species groupings and indicator species for this section so that 47 

the SSC can begin developing ABC recommendations and council 48 
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staff can begin developing ACLs and ACT alternatives. 1 

 2 

For species groupings, some committee members suggested 3 

Alternative 3, because the Alternative 3 groupings have the most 4 

scientific analyses supporting them.  Other committee members 5 

suggested Alternative 2, because it has fewer but broader 6 

groups, which means fewer ACLs that need to be monitored, and is 7 

more consistent with the use of grouper multi-use shares. 8 

 9 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 10 

and I so move, that for Action 2 that Alternative 3 be the 11 

preferred alternative.  Select species groupings based on 12 

National Marine Fisheries Service stock groupings analysis.  13 

Group ACLs will be established for each group.  In addition, 14 

individual ACLs will be established for single-species sub-15 

groups and multi-species sub-groups within each group.  These 16 

are on pages 34 and 35 of the options paper. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Morris.  We have a committee 19 

motion.  We discussed it at length in committee and everyone was 20 

there.  Are there any objections to this motion?  Hearing none, 21 

the motion is adopted. 22 

 23 

MS. MORRIS:  Next, the committee discussed whether to use 24 

indicator species for each group, and if so, which species to 25 

use.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee 26 

recommends, and I so move, that for subgroups where we have no 27 

assessment, do not use an indicator species. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Any further 30 

discussion?  Any objection?  The motion passes. 31 

 32 

MS. MORRIS:  One sub-group did have an assessed species, which 33 

was also the most vulnerable in the group, based on PSA 34 

analyses.  By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee 35 

recommends, and I so move, that for the Mid/Deepwater Snapper 36 

group, sub-group 1-C in Alternative 3, that Option E be the 37 

preferred option, that vermilion snapper be the indicator 38 

species for the group that contains vermilion and lane snappers. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Is there discussion?  41 

Objection?  The motion passes. 42 

 43 

MS. MORRIS:  Within the Mid/Deepwater Snapper group, two of the 44 

sub-groups 1C, vermilion snapper and lane snapper, and 1D, 45 

blackfin snapper and silk snapper, could either be left as two 46 

separate sub-groups or combined into a single four-species sub-47 

group.  The analyses did not favor one approach over the other, 48 
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but combining the sub-groups would simplify the species 1 

groupings by having fewer groups. 2 

 3 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 4 

and I so move, that for the Mid/Deepwater Snapper group, sub-5 

groups 1C, vermilion snapper and lane snapper, and 1D, blackfin 6 

snapper and silk snapper, be combined into a single subgroup. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 9 

discussion?  Is there objection?  The motion passes. 10 

 11 

MS. MORRIS:  Action 3 deals with the ABC Control Rule.  Shepherd 12 

Grimes felt that the ABC control rule should reflect the 13 

council’s policy on setting a buffer between OFL and ABC and not 14 

the SSC’s.   15 

 16 

Roy Crabtree added that the Step 2 methods in the data-poor 17 

section of the control rule were open ended and non-specific, 18 

because they allowed ABC to be set equal to or less than 75 19 

percent of OFL, rather than set a specific percentage.   20 

 21 

In addition, he disagreed with having Alternatives 2 and 3 that 22 

allowed the control rule to be used as guidance rather than 23 

setting specific buffers between ABC and OFL.  He stated that 24 

the data-poor control rule needs to specify a buffer unless the 25 

SSC can devise a way to take a level of risk and turn it into a 26 

buffer.  He suggested replacing the ABC less than or equal to 27 

0.75 times OFL proxy with alternatives for specific percentage 28 

buffers.  Bob Gill disagreed with having an ABC control rule 29 

that mechanistically set ABC without thought as to the 30 

circumstances. 31 

 32 

By a voice vote with one nay, the committee recommends, and I so 33 

move, that the ABC control rules in Table 2.4.1 under Number 2 34 

be modified to have alternatives that ABC is equal to 85 percent 35 

of OFL proxy, 75 percent, and 65 percent and to also include an 36 

alternative that ABC equals OFL. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  To clarify a little bit the statements that are in 41 

here relative to my advice, the guidelines establish that it is 42 

a council decision as to risk of overfishing.  I don’t, per se, 43 

have a legal problem or have any issues with getting some SSC 44 

input on that, nor do I, per se, have a problem with a more 45 

flexible control rule, but I just wanted to point out that it 46 

does put you in the position that the South Atlantic has been in 47 

now, where you get a recommendation from the SSC and you end up 48 
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going back and forth and a lot of times that ends up building a 1 

less than ideal record, because I thought some of the discussion 2 

at the committee level may have been a little confusing to 3 

myself as well as others. 4 

 5 

I don’t think, per se, you have a legal problem with the 6 

flexibility you’ve established now and with some of what you’ve 7 

proposed, but, again, the guidelines envision something slightly 8 

different. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Roy, I would appreciate it if you could explain how 11 

you see this working.  I think in committee, if I understood it 12 

correctly, what you perceived was that we would in each FMP 13 

prescribe one of these rules for each species groupings or 14 

whatever and so that we would take these alternatives and 15 

distribute them amongst what we have in FMPs so that if we were 16 

dealing with say lane snapper and if we decided that lane 17 

snapper was an 85 percenter, then that was what the SSC was 18 

directed to do with regards to lane snapper.  If it was red 19 

snapper, we might use 65 or whatever.  Is that correct or is 20 

there some other mechanism that you envision of how this is 21 

going to work? 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, that’s basically it and what I would suggest 24 

is that we’re at a point now where maybe the thing to do is to 25 

refer the selection of these control rules to the appropriate 26 

committees for the FMPs that they work on and let them go 27 

through them and decide what might be the appropriate control 28 

rules for the various species or groups that that committee 29 

deals with, but that’s basically right. 30 

 31 

MS. MORRIS:  I have questions about how this gets 32 

operationalized as well and so I would like to pose those 33 

questions, just to understand how this is going to work.  What 34 

this motion does is it takes part of the decision tree for data-35 

poor species and says instead of putting an upper limit on the 36 

ABC that it has be 75 percent or less of the OFL and it could be 37 

85 percent or less or 65 percent or equal to, but it seems like 38 

for a particular data-poor species, like lane snapper, the 39 

council itself is not going to have the expertise and I’m not 40 

sure that council staff is going to have the expertise to decide 41 

which of those levels of risk are appropriate for an individual 42 

data-poor species. 43 

 44 

I don’t understand who is going to make that decision about 45 

which of these levels of risk should be applied to reach the 46 

ABC. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t think the SSC does either.  That’s the 1 

point.  We’re data-poor and I’ll turn it over to Roy to comment 2 

on that. 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s true that they don’t either and 5 

the other part of it is it’s not really a science issue, to some 6 

extent.  They are to give us advice about the amount of 7 

uncertainty, but I don’t think you can go to the SSC and ask 8 

them how conservative do you want to be or how risky do you want 9 

to be.  That’s not science.  That’s policy and so I think you 10 

have to make that decision with advice from the SSC. 11 

 12 

DR. PONWITH:  What I would anticipate could come from the 13 

science side, the Science Center from the SSC, would be advice 14 

on life history aspects of that species that make it either 15 

invulnerable or particularly vulnerable and that could be 16 

something like living to fifty-five years as opposed to living 17 

five years.  That’s the kind of scientific advice that would be 18 

advantageous as you’re making those selections. 19 

 20 

MR. SIMPSON:  I agree with Dr. Shipp and Roy and one thing, 21 

Julie, that this council does bring is a knowledge that the SSC 22 

doesn’t necessarily possess and that’s the means and methods of 23 

harvest of those animals and management measures and economic 24 

conditions that would influence what’s landed. 25 

 26 

The council does bring expertise that lends itself to setting a 27 

policy decision and about whether or not they feel the risk is 28 

appropriate, given the circumstances that they see in that 29 

fishery. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  I just wanted to clarify something I thought I heard 32 

Julie say and that was the way I understand this motion is 33 

that’s not the maximum.  Those percentages are not the maximum 34 

and if we take one and apply it to a species, that’s the number.  35 

It’s 85, 75, 65, or 100.  I’m not sure if I misunderstood what 36 

you said there, Julie. 37 

 38 

MS. MORRIS:  I believe our SSC made an inquiry to the Science 39 

Center, Bonnie, about whether your people would be able to do a 40 

quick PSA analysis of the data-poor species that they could then 41 

use to create advice on ABCs for those species and the response 42 

was that you couldn’t, that you didn’t have time and you weren’t 43 

going to be able to get to it in a timely fashion. 44 

 45 

Now it seems like you’re saying you could and so I just want to 46 

clarify what level of support you think the Science Center would 47 

be able to provide to the council between now and the August 48 
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meeting and the SSC between now and the August meeting regarding 1 

the kinds of life history factors that would be useful to have 2 

in front of you when you are deciding these levels of acceptable 3 

risk for these data-poor species. 4 

 5 

DR. PONWITH:  I believe when the request came in that it was to 6 

conduct a PSA analysis on all unassessed stocks and it was at a 7 

time when we were under quite a heavy load for ongoing stock 8 

assessments in the Gulf of Mexico. 9 

 10 

Another approach to that is a tiered approach, to say which of 11 

those species are the highest priority, and work through that.  12 

I think we absolutely can be advising on this. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would just like to follow up.  The kind of 15 

examples that Bonnie gave regarding life history characteristics 16 

are not going to require a whole lot of additional work.  These 17 

things are known and they’re in the literature, but it’s just a 18 

matter of extracting them through the Science Center and making 19 

them available to the SSC and council. 20 

 21 

We have this motion on the board.  Any further discussion?  Is 22 

there any opposition to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion is 23 

approved. 24 

 25 

MS. MORRIS:  The Council will decide in August which buffer 26 

level to use for each stock or stock group.  The committee 27 

discussed Alternative 4, which establishes a framework procedure 28 

for modifying the ABC control rule if requested by the SSC. 29 

 30 

Steven Atran explained the control rule has not been tested 31 

against many stocks and will likely need to be adjusted, 32 

particularly early in its usage.  Therefore, the SSC had 33 

requested a way to modify the control rule as needed.   34 

 35 

If adopted, the ABC control rule framework could be made part of 36 

the generic framework procedure.  However, some committee 37 

members felt that the control rule should be a relatively fixed 38 

process that should only be changed by a plan amendment and that 39 

any changes should be initiated as a policy change by the 40 

council rather than by the SSC.  A motion was made to remove 41 

Alternatives 2, 3, and 4 from Action 3 in the Generic ACL/AM 42 

Options Paper but failed for lack of a second. 43 

 44 

Moving on to Action 7, the Initial Specification of ACL, Method 45 

for Determining Overfishing, the National Standard 1 Guidelines 46 

describe two methods for determining overfishing and state that 47 

the council should select which method to use.   48 
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 1 

The MFMT, or fishing mortality rate method, compares the fishing 2 

mortality rate calculated in an assessment to the maximum 3 

fishing mortality threshold to determine if overfishing is 4 

occurring.  However, this method can only be used for years in 5 

which there is a stock assessment.   6 

 7 

The OFL method compares catches in a given year to the 8 

overfishing limit for that year to determine if overfishing is 9 

occurring.  This method can be used every year that there is 10 

catch data, but requires that there be an accurate relationship 11 

between the OFL and fishing morality rate at MFMT.   12 

 13 

Further pros and cons for each method are in the discussion on 14 

pages 76 through 78.  This section is not intended to be an 15 

action item for public hearings.  The council is asked to select 16 

which method or combination of methods to use and the section in 17 

the amendment will be revised to reflect the council’s decision.   18 

 19 

Roy Crabtree felt that Alternative 3 would effectively implement 20 

the MFMT method for years when there is a stock assessment and 21 

the OFL method for other years.  However, Bob Gill felt that 22 

Alternative 2 would be simpler, by implementing the OFL method 23 

at all times. 24 

 25 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 26 

and I so move, that in Section 2.7.6, that Alternative 3 be used 27 

as the method to determine whether a stock is undergoing 28 

overfishing.  The MFMT method will be used to determine 29 

overfishing for stocks or stock complexes which have stock 30 

assessments and estimates of current fishing mortality rates and 31 

maximum fishing mortality threshold only in years in which a 32 

stock assessment is conducted.  For other years, and for stocks 33 

or stock complexes without stock assessments or without 34 

estimates of fishing mortality and maximum fishing mortality 35 

threshold, the OFL method will be used to determine overfishing. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 38 

discussion?  Is there opposition?  The motion passes. 39 

 40 

MS. MORRIS:  Other Generic ACL/AM Amendment Issues, a question 41 

arose as to whether an ACL was needed for live rock.  Steve 42 

Atran noted that the council has a quota of zero for wild live 43 

rock and the only live rock being harvested is aquaculture.  44 

Based on that information, Shepherd Grimes stated that there is 45 

an ACL equal to zero for natural live rock. 46 

 47 

A question came up as to whether there should be a process 48 
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included in the amendment to periodically review ACLs.  Steve 1 

Atran noted that under the National Standard 1 Guidelines there 2 

should be a process and its inclusion had been recommended by 3 

several environmental groups. 4 

 5 

By a voice vote with no opposition, the committee recommends, 6 

and I so move, that the council request that staff add an action 7 

to periodically review the ACLs and landings to comply with the 8 

Magnuson Act. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  11 

Any objection?  The motion passes. 12 

 13 

MS. MORRIS:  Timeline for Completion of Amendment, Steve Atran 14 

provided the following timeline for completing the Generic 15 

ACL/AM Amendment, but added that some of the actions being 16 

requested by the committee may require an additional council 17 

meeting. 18 

 19 

The June council meeting, we select species groupings.  Between 20 

June and August, the SSC or a subgroup works with council staff 21 

to develop ABCs for the species and species groupings approved 22 

by the council. 23 

 24 

August council meeting, the council reviews a draft public 25 

hearing amendment and remaining preferred alternatives will be 26 

selected at this time or in October.  October council meeting, 27 

the council reviews and approves the public hearing amendment. 28 

 29 

Between October and February of 2011, hold public hearings and 30 

convene APs, as appropriate.  February of 2011, the council 31 

takes final action. 32 

 33 

Public Hearing Locations, Steve Atran asked that the council 34 

select public hearing locations for the Generic ACL/AM 35 

amendment.  If the projected timelines are adhered to, public 36 

hearings will be held for the Generic ACL/AM Amendment and Reef 37 

Fish Amendment 32 at about the same time.   38 

 39 

The state representatives recommended the following locations 40 

and by consensus, the committee recommends, and I so move, that 41 

public hearings for the Generic ACL/AM Amendment be held in the 42 

following locations.  In Florida, Panama City, St. Petersburg, 43 

Fort Myers, and Marathon.  In Alabama, Mobile.  In Mississippi, 44 

the Biloxi area and in Louisiana, the New Orleans airport area 45 

and in Texas, Galveston and Corpus Christi.  All of the above 46 

locations are also Amendment 32 locations, except for Corpus 47 

Christi. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion about locations.  2 

Any discussion?  Any objection?  The motion passes. 3 

 4 

MS. MORRIS:  The Ecosystem SSC was planning to meet via webinar 5 

to discuss the ecosystem implications of the oil spill.  Steve 6 

asked if there were any issues that the council wanted the SSC 7 

to address and the following issues were suggested: impacts on 8 

plankton, menhaden and other planktivores; impacts on marsh 9 

habitat, and subsequent impacts on the food chain; impacts on 10 

larval fish; and impacts on sargassum.  The committee also 11 

requested that the impacts of both the oil and dispersants be 12 

looked at.  I need to at this point return to a comment that 13 

Steve had about the penaeid shrimp section of the Generic 14 

Amendment. 15 

 16 

MR. ATRAN:  Thank you.  It was briefly mentioned in the 17 

committee report that the SSC reviewed the penaeid shrimp 18 

statement with respect to what the ABCs would be and they did 19 

not accept that proposed ABC.  Instead, they recommended that 20 

ABCs be set on an individual species-by-species basis for each 21 

of the three shrimp species as stock assessments under the new 22 

stock assessment method are produced. 23 

 24 

What this means is that right now the penaeid shrimp statement 25 

that’s in the amendment is in conflict with what the SSC 26 

recommended and so I would suggest -- I guess there’s two things 27 

we could do, either remove that item from the amendment or we 28 

can try to reword it so that it’s basically a shell to define 29 

what types of status determination criteria we would have, but 30 

the actual numbers would remain blank until we get those 31 

assessments. 32 

 33 

I think the more cleaner thing to do would be to remove it from 34 

the amendment and set ABCs through the Shrimp FMP as we get 35 

those new assessments. 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think given that, I would remove it from this 38 

amendment.  We don’t need to do ACLs and it’s not subject to the 39 

same timeline as the rest of this and we can deal with it in the 40 

Shrimp Committee when we need to. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree, but I think it requires a motion that 43 

we remove it. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would move that we remove the shrimp discussion 46 

from the amendment. 47 

 48 



172 

 

MR. PERRET:  Second. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Discussion?  We have a motion and it’s seconded 3 

to remove the shrimp discussion from the Generic ACL/AM 4 

Amendment.  Is there further discussion?  Any objection?  5 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 6 

 7 

MR. RIECHERS:  Just briefly on the locations of public hearings.  8 

If this ends up being associated with Amendment 32, hopefully 9 

you all will allow us to come back and make sure -- I don’t want 10 

folks to have to go to Port Aransas and Corpus Christi if you’re 11 

going to tag them up on the same night.  If it’s with Amendment 12 

32, Port Aransas is probably the place to go and if it’s by 13 

itself, Corpus Christi is probably easy enough. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay. 16 

 17 

MS. MORRIS:  That’s the conclusion of the written report and 18 

there’s just one more issue.  The committee is now down to five 19 

members and I definitely won’t be there and you wouldn’t 20 

normally re-jigger the committees until January of 2011 and so 21 

you may need to make some interim appointments to this 22 

committee. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We had discussed that earlier and in fact, I 25 

was prepared to make a recommendation to replace -- You’re 26 

irreplaceable, but to replace your slot on the committee and I 27 

had asked Robin if he was willing to do it.  Otherwise, we’re 28 

going to be missing committee members for several months and so 29 

the Chair normally makes these appointments and if there’s no 30 

objections, I would ask Robin to serve on that committee.  No 31 

objections?  Okay.  It is done.  I’m sorry, Robin. 32 

 33 

MS. PERRET:  Can we put Ms. Morris on any of our committees at 34 

this time or what’s the procedure to do that? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  You mean on an AP? 37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  Appropriate committees. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would ask Shep, since he’s not here, whether 41 

we can do that or not.  Shep, the question is, given the very 42 

important function of some of our committees, do we have the 43 

latitude to go ahead and make an AP appointment at this time 44 

with a retiring council member? 45 

 46 

MS. MORRIS:  Not at this time.  Let’s not do that at this time. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been pointed out that we need to do it in 1 

closed session anyway and so the first opportunity that presents 2 

itself, we will act on that. 3 

 4 

MR. PERRET:  I may change my mind at the next meeting. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That would be the first opportunity we have to 7 

act on it.  That brings us to some of the new business items.  8 

We dealt with a good number of them yesterday, but I think we 9 

have two or three more.  Dr. Bortone or Bob, would you give us 10 

some of these new business items that we have not dealt with? 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  The next one that was on the list was crew sizes on 13 

vessels and that was Kay Williams’ issue. 14 

 15 

OTHER BUSINESS 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, do you want to address it and perhaps make 18 

a motion? 19 

 20 

DISCUSSION OF CREW SIZE ON VESSELS 21 

 22 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We may have taken care of that.  I’m not quite 23 

certain.  You received the information at this meeting and you 24 

could have probably chose one of the alternatives if you had 25 

wanted to.  You probably may want to look at it a little more in 26 

depth and I believe you said we perhaps or you suggested 27 

yesterday that we may revisit that as well the COI about 28 

carrying passengers, if you recall that. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob, do we have other new business items? 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  The next one is emergency action to open areas to 33 

fishing and again, it’s Kay Williams. 34 

 35 

DISCUSSION OF EMERGENCY ACTION TO OPEN AREAS TO FISHING 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That was strictly came from where we had the 38 

roundtable or the discussion at night.  You had some of your 39 

longliners, since their area, they’re limited in where they can 40 

fish, they were asking that we consider opening some of the 41 

previous areas that we had closed to them, because they had very 42 

little fishing ground left, due to the oil spill. 43 

 44 

Basically, that’s what was about.  If someone wants to make a 45 

motion, fine.  If they don’t, that’s perfectly okay.  Roy, is 46 

there anything that you can do to help them out, since that 47 

discussion came up? 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  Anything like that would require a rulemaking and 2 

I think that any rulemaking that looked at allowing them to fish 3 

in other areas, we would have to go through the biological 4 

opinion process and do a consultation on it, I think. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To that, I also had those concerns, because the 7 

areas were closed for a specific reason, but because they did 8 

ask, I said that I would at least put it on the table to give 9 

everyone some information so they would know why it can’t be 10 

done.  Thank you. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  The next item was ITQ shares and Kay Williams. 13 

 14 

DISCUSSION OF ITQ SHARES 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  This was another request, again, that was 17 

discussed at the roundtable, where the commercial industry was 18 

asking if they would be allowed to harvest their shares that had 19 

not been harvested, due to the closed areas and the oil spill, 20 

for perhaps the first ninety days of the next year.  I believe 21 

Roy said that wasn’t possible and, Roy, could you tell us again. 22 

 23 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s not possible under the current regulations.  24 

It would, again, require a rulemaking and I guess if you did an 25 

emergency rule, we could look at it, if you all want us to. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That would lead me to say what’s the pleasure of 28 

the committee or the council?  Do you all feel like there’s 29 

going to be enough of an issue of unused quota shares that we 30 

should ask for an emergency action, as we did for extending the 31 

recreational fishery, or is there some council member that has 32 

certain reasons why they don’t think perhaps it’s a good idea? 33 

 34 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m not commenting on whether it’s a good idea or 35 

not, but I would say it’s different than what we talked about 36 

with the recreational fishery, because what we did with the 37 

recreational fishery was to allow them to fish later in the 38 

year, but we didn’t allow them to carry anything and under the 39 

IFQ, they’re allowed to already fish all the way to the end of 40 

the year.  I think they’re different circumstances. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you for putting that on the record. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  The next item is Red Drum Harvest and Kay Williams. 45 

 46 

DISCUSSION OF RED DRUM HARVEST 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m sure other people has made some of these same 1 

requests.  This was where the recreational industry, especially 2 

the charter industry, was, once again, asking us -- This isn’t 3 

the first time, but due to the circumstances that’s going on 4 

with the oil and also with the red snapper season and the closed 5 

areas and all of the economic impacts that are going on, they 6 

were hoping that there was some way, through an emergency 7 

action, we could allow them to at least keep one red drum per 8 

trip per vessel per customer or something, just to where they’re 9 

not throwing the red drum back. 10 

 11 

They’re plentiful and they’re having to throw them back and they 12 

just thought that this would be a very small request that this 13 

council perhaps could do for them in order to help extend them 14 

some type of flexibilities to their seasons.  Any comments from 15 

the council members? 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  We would have to have some consideration of how 18 

much harvest would that allow and how would it affect the 19 

population and why is it okay.  We don’t have an annual catch 20 

limit for red drum and we might have to have that in order to do 21 

it. 22 

 23 

The other problem is most of the requests for this are -- I’m 24 

hearing about in Mississippi and that area and that’s closed 25 

right now anyway and so that’s the other part.  You would have 26 

to justify why this is an emergency action and how it’s going to 27 

benefit people and it doesn’t seem to me that it benefits folks 28 

that are in the area that’s closed. 29 

 30 

I guess it would benefit folks in Texas and parts of Florida, 31 

but they’re not the ones, it seems to me -- In fact, Florida has 32 

come out opposed to the idea and so there are a lot of 33 

complications with it. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  Just a quick comment.  It’s not just Mississippi.  36 

There’s other states interested in that for sure.  All the for-37 

hire guys I’ve talked to here wanted it to be done and so 38 

there’s a lot more at stake than just Mississippi. 39 

 40 

MR. PERRET:  We had public testimony yesterday from members of 41 

the public from Texas and I don’t know if we had anybody from 42 

Louisiana.  That I don’t recall, but Mississippi and Alabama are 43 

supportive of it.  I don’t recall what we got out of Florida, 44 

other than Mr. Teehan. 45 

 46 

Roy, my question is I know the people, the members in the 47 

fishing community, my commission, one commissioner in particular 48 
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last night, and I think he bent your ear pretty good, would like 1 

to see something happen today. 2 

 3 

Now, I’ve been around long enough to understand we can’t do -- 4 

Things just don’t work that quickly, but I’m asking you for a 5 

recommendation for how to begin the process, in the event, 6 

number one, the council would approve of going forward with some 7 

sort of limited harvest and then, of course, it’s got to go 8 

through the system and so how would we begin that process? 9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that the best way to do this is in the 11 

ACL Amendment.  We’ve got to set an annual catch limit for red 12 

drum.  I believe we had a recommendation from the SSC to convene 13 

a red drum SSC panel or something. 14 

 15 

I think you could make an argument.  We’ve heard testimony that 16 

the depths they’re catching red drum in the EEZ, that there’s a 17 

very high mortality of those fish.  One thing I think we have to 18 

look at is there are a lot of studies on red drum release 19 

mortality and they all indicate extremely low release 20 

mortalities, but I think they were all done in depths of ten 21 

feet or less. 22 

 23 

I’m not aware of any release mortality rate study on red drum 24 

that was done, for example, at a hundred feet.  I think we would 25 

need to look at that and maybe we could get someone to do a 26 

study like that, but if they’re catching these at depths that 27 

the mortality rate is really high, I think probably the way I 28 

would come at it would be to set up an ACL and set up an 29 

accountability measure and make the argument that allowing one 30 

per vessel or one per person in the EEZ during some period of 31 

the year is not likely to increase the catches very much, but 32 

you’re going to put in place an accountability measure so that 33 

if it does in fact result in a substantial increase in catches, 34 

you’re going to have to deal with it. 35 

 36 

Unless we get something out of the SSC panel we’re going to 37 

bring in, I suspect we’re going to use some variant of average 38 

catches as the ACL and if we do that, then that’s really the 39 

concern.  If we do something that then results in higher 40 

catches, we’re going to end up with accountability measures 41 

kicking in and that will defeat the purpose of it. 42 

 43 

I think we just need to think it through, but I think it could 44 

be done and I think the best way to do it is through the ACL 45 

Amendment and come at it from that perspective. 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  Didn’t we approve a Red Drum Committee meeting of 48 
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some sort this afternoon?  Did we have a date on when they -- 1 

 2 

MS. MORRIS:  Steven can tell us that.  I think it’s -- 3 

 4 

MR. ATRAN:  I believe it’s July 30th.  I just put my notes away, 5 

but I can tell you in a second. 6 

 7 

MS. MORRIS:  This would be a group to advise the SSC on an ABC 8 

for red drum. 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  Would it be appropriate to ask, at that meeting, 11 

that that group provide some of the information we talked about, 12 

ACLs and AMs and so on, on red drum, to see if we can’t get some 13 

sort of recommendation out of them to go to the SSC and then 14 

come to us? 15 

 16 

MS. MORRIS:  Yes, I think they’re specifically being asked to 17 

bring their best thinking to the problem of what an allowable 18 

biological catch should be for red drum and AMs and everything 19 

else will be up to us, but they will recommend something to the 20 

SSC and you will see it in August at the council meeting. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s the point I -- It’s going to be by the 23 

next meeting that we’re going to have something in place to move 24 

on.  Anything else, Mr. Gill? 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  The next item on the list is Regional Recreational 27 

Management and Kay Williams. 28 

 29 

DISCUSSION OF REGIONAL RECREATIONAL MANAGEMENT 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That idea also came from our constituency, where 32 

they were asking that we consider different zones, the zone 33 

management where it’s split into either five, three, two.  It’s 34 

where they talked about moving the lines sort of like summer 35 

flounder, where maybe each state has their own allocation. 36 

 37 

Mr. Jim Smarr asked about it and two or three of the other 38 

charter industry asked about it and I believe we told them that 39 

we were going to consider something like that, but we were going 40 

to have to get the information and do any of you remember 41 

exactly what we said?  We did discuss it. 42 

 43 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t remember discussing it.  It got certainly 44 

brought up in the hearing process yesterday and people have been 45 

bringing it up more and more through time.  With that, I will 46 

make the following motion, which is on the board.  Basically, 47 

what the motion says is that on the next council agenda we’ll 48 
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basically set aside some time to review the past discussion 1 

sections in Reef Fish Amendment 27/Shrimp Amendment 14 and any 2 

other materials to inform the discussion on the pros and cons of 3 

regionalized management, just to get some of the information so 4 

that we can have an informed discussion, if in fact we want to 5 

take a look at this more closely. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second? 8 

 9 

MR. HENDRIX:  Second. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there discussion? 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Robin, I guess I’ll ask you the same question I asked 14 

some of the guys up at testimony.  Are you suggesting for all 15 

fish species or are you suggesting it for some?  It would seem 16 

to me that the subject is worthy of discussion, but we ought to 17 

narrow it down so we can focus and get a little bit better 18 

discussion rather than just kind of generically talk about it 19 

for everything. 20 

 21 

MR. RIECHERS:  If I were going to narrow it down, and I’ll leave 22 

this up to you and the chair, but at this point, since we’re 23 

pulling it out of Reef Fish Amendment 27 -- The topic where this 24 

has come up most often is red snapper and that’s probably where 25 

it would put it, under Reef Fish at this point, and let the 26 

consideration take it where it is.  If the motion passes, that’s 27 

what I would do.   28 

 29 

There are many considerations we’ve got to consider, whether or 30 

not we can do it under Magnuson as a management unit or how we 31 

would go about it, the procedural issues.  There’s a lot of 32 

biological implications of that, of how the stocks -- Whether 33 

it’s two stocks you’re trying to them manage or whether it’s 34 

not.  We’ve been through that with red snapper and it’s not two 35 

stocks.  They’re all in one stock. 36 

 37 

There’s the possibility of economic costs as well as benefits if 38 

we go to that and there’s effort shifting issues that we would 39 

have to explore.  There’s certainly law enforcement issues and 40 

we’ll have to talk with the law enforcement community. 41 

 42 

There’s a lot of issues surrounding this, but we kind of keep 43 

having it come up to the surface and it might be worth us at 44 

least informing our discussion by going back and getting some of 45 

the past information that we’ve had. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I’m going to definitely support the motion and 48 
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I’m not one to delay things.  I like to act on them, but I will 1 

say, given Bonnie’s comments about the fishery-independent data, 2 

let’s face it, the big gorilla is red snapper. 3 

 4 

The big discussion was the western Gulf snappers are in pretty 5 

good shape and in the eastern Gulf they’re not and I think 6 

contingent on the data that Bonnie and her group brings in is 7 

going to have a big bearing on that.  Now, that’s not to say 8 

that we shouldn’t start this process, but I think that’s going 9 

to be our ultimate consideration. 10 

 11 

MS. MORRIS:  Another reef fish where this has come up was in the 12 

Amendment 32 scoping meetings and also in the 30B workshops 13 

regarding groupers.  The season where people catch gag groupers 14 

is real different in south Florida than in the northern Gulf and 15 

this relates to snapper, too. 16 

 17 

We’ve set up our snapper season so that they make sense for the 18 

northern Gulf, but they don’t make sense for south Texas and so 19 

there’s that latitude.  It’s not just the east to west division.  20 

There’s the latitude north to south division as well. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  I thought I was going to get closer to the intent of 23 

the motion maker, but I’m not sure, given Julie’s comments, that 24 

I have, but I was going to offer as a friendly amendment, Robin, 25 

that we add, after “regionalized management” “for red snapper”, 26 

so we can focus and get the discussion going. 27 

 28 

Yes, Julie’s comments are definitely applicable, but if we don’t 29 

get something that we can focus on, we’re going to have a real 30 

hard time trying to sort this thing out and parse out the 31 

important factors.  If you would accept that as a friendly, I 32 

would like to add, after “regionalized management”, “for red 33 

snapper”. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Dr. Shipp was nodding his no, as if he wanted to 36 

leave it. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think Julie’s comments are right on and I 39 

think the whole purpose -- We can’t focus now.  The idea is to 40 

start discussing it and that will result in the focus.  I would 41 

speak against and ask the maker of the motion not to accept this 42 

amendment. 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  Can we call the question on this one? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Let’s go ahead and 47 

vote on this.  All in favor of this motion signify by saying 48 
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aye; opposed.  The motion passes.  Anything else? 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  The last item I have under Other Business is 3 

Amendment 28 transfer dollars to 2011 and that’s Ed Sapp. 4 

 5 

DISCUSSION OF CARRYOVER TO 2011 6 

 7 

MR. SAPP:  You just stated my whole case.  We had discussion at 8 

the last council meeting and when I was reviewing the amendments 9 

and when Cathy was doing the budget for 2010, we carried money 10 

forward into 2010 so that it was there when and if we decided to 11 

take further action on Amendment 28, which has been in limbo for 12 

quite a while. 13 

 14 

In conversations with Cathy, she suggested that if it’s the 15 

intent of the council to continue to carry that money forward 16 

into 2011, that she needs some instructions from the staff so 17 

that she can make that request and just as a little bit of a 18 

background, for those of you that don’t remember what 28 is, 19 

since it’s been so long since the council dealt with it, it’s 20 

got to do with grouper allocation. 21 

 22 

The reason that the council has never taken any action is 23 

because -- My understanding is that about the same time that we 24 

were talking about Amendment 28, we decided that it would 25 

probably benefit the council for us to actually develop some 26 

guidelines and principles for how the council should handle that 27 

allocation. 28 

 29 

At this point, we’ve got those principles and guidelines in 30 

place and they’re part of our SOPPs and I expect at some point, 31 

when the calendar allows, that we would want to readdress 32 

Amendment 28.  I don’t know if I need to make that in the form 33 

of a motion or if we can just agree to tell Cathy to go ahead 34 

and carry that money or request that we carry that money forward 35 

into 2011. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Since we brought it to the table, I do think we 38 

need to have it in the form of a motion, if you’ve got one, Ed, 39 

drafted that we can use. 40 

 41 

MR. SAPP:  Instruct staff to request that funding for Reef Fish 42 

Amendment 28 be carried forward into 2011. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded.  Cathy, does that 45 

satisfy your needs on this? 46 

 47 

MS. READINGER:  Yes.  I’ll get with Ed and Assane and we’ll 48 



181 

 

develop the rationale. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a question.  Cathy, are there any other 5 

programs that we haven’t finished or that we need to also 6 

address, so that the money can be carried forward into 2011, 7 

other than just this one? 8 

 9 

MS. READINGER:  At this point, Kay, I don’t think so.  We’ve 10 

pretty much started spending most of the 2009 carryover, except 11 

for that particular one.  We will have a budget review in August 12 

and I do try to make -- I’m going to plan on making budget 13 

projections and so at that point in time, the council can 14 

determine if we need to do anything else with any other 15 

carryover money. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I think I mentioned it earlier, but 18 

this particular item was brought up by other councils and it’s 19 

being referred to NOAA if we are even able to do that, but we 20 

certainly will make the request. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There’s a motion on the floor.  Any objections 23 

to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  The only other 24 

thing is Rick pointed out to me that we did not select sites for 25 

the coastal migratory pelagics public hearings, but that’s not 26 

going to occur until November or December and so we can address 27 

that at the August meeting. 28 

 29 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Mr. Chairman, I just want to take one quick 30 

second and introduce our new Coast Guard District 7 31 

representative.  It’s Lieutenant Rick Mach and if he could just 32 

stand real quick. 33 

 34 

He’s going to be representing Rear Admiral Bill Baumgartner, who 35 

is the new District 7 Commander, which is Florida and the 36 

Caribbean.  You’ll see Rick once in a while fill my shoes if I 37 

can’t make a council meeting. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We appreciate that, but we are a little 40 

disappointed that Admiral Allen didn’t show up at this meeting. 41 

 42 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  I’ll see what I can do for the next one. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think he’s otherwise engaged, however. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’ve got a couple of things I need to brief you 47 

on.  One has to do with some sawfish takes that have occurred in 48 
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the shrimp fishery and we did a biological opinion in January of 1 

2006 on the Gulf shrimp fishery and it was a non-jeopardy 2 

opinion on smalltooth sawfish and it established an incidental 3 

take statement of one smalltooth sawfish from the fishery. 4 

 5 

We’ve had three takes occur this year and all of them in south 6 

Florida.  I think there was one right along the state water line 7 

near Naples and then two down towards the Dry Tortugas.  We have 8 

reinitiated consultation on smalltooth sawfish in the Gulf 9 

shrimp fishery. 10 

 11 

We’ve also had, I think, three takes occur in the South 12 

Atlantic, south of the Florida Keys, and so we’ve reinitiated 13 

consultation on the shrimp fishery in smalltooth sawfish in the 14 

South Atlantic as well. 15 

 16 

I would request that we convene the Shrimp Committee to talk 17 

about the takes and look at where they’ve occurred and what 18 

conservation measures we might could take in order to minimize 19 

takes of smalltooth sawfish. 20 

 21 

I also wanted to point out I think we were supposed to have the 22 

Shrimp Committee meet in August to go over, Corky, the 23 

assessments and latent permits.  It’s my understanding that the 24 

assessments are not going to be ready until October and is that 25 

correct? 26 

 27 

The latent permit analysis is also not going to be ready at that 28 

time and so what I would suggest is that we convene the Shrimp 29 

Committee at the October meeting and we could go over the 30 

assessments, the latent permit analysis, and smalltooth sawfish 31 

issues, unless you would rather deal with sawfish in August, 32 

Corky. 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  Roy, when we’re dealing with a threatened and/or 35 

endangered species, you know the urgency of doing whatever we 36 

can do from a conservation standpoint.  As much as I don’t like 37 

the idea of having to do that, I think probably we should take 38 

it up as quickly as we can, to see what we can do. 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  We also have a sturgeon take in the shrimp 41 

fishery and we’ll go over that as well. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I assume these are mortalities? 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, I believe one of the sawfish was a lethal 46 

take and the other two the sawfish swam away.  Now, whether they 47 

subsequently died or not, we don’t know, but they were released 48 



183 

 

alive at release and I don’t know about the sturgeon.  We’ll 1 

plan on talking about this at the August meeting and we’ll have 2 

Jennifer Lee here to go over the particulars of it. 3 

 4 

Then the last thing I wanted to let you know is that we have had 5 

a dolphin take on buoy gear in the reef fish fishery.  This was 6 

buoy gear that involved cable and some other things and so my 7 

suspicion, although I can’t say for sure, is that the 8 

configuration of the gear probably wouldn’t be allowed once the 9 

gear is redefined, but I wanted to bring that to your attention 10 

and that occurred only in the last several days.  Those were the 11 

things I wanted to let you know about. 12 

 13 

MR. SIMPSON:  If you will remember, I placed at everyone’s 14 

location a three-disk DVD of a MARFIN fisheries principle 15 

investigator conference that was held during April.  My 16 

commission produced it and I think single copies are available 17 

at Roy’s office from Ellie Roche and you can see on the back the 18 

listing of the projects and the principle investigators and 19 

their actual presentations, shortened summaries. 20 

 21 

Much of this information from the MARFIN program is intimately 22 

useful and used by this council and others for management 23 

purposes.  For the members of the audience, I have one copy 24 

left, for whoever wants it.  Then the rest of them will have to 25 

go through Ellie. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Larry.  If there is no other 28 

business, we’re adjourned until our meeting in Pensacola. 29 

 30 

DISCUSSION OF RED SNAPPER IFQ FIVE-YEAR REVIEW 31 

 32 

MR. GREENE: During the last couple of days there seems to be a 33 

lot of concern coming up about the ITQ plan coming up for the 34 

five years and I was wondering if there would be any interest in 35 

an AP being designed to tackle the ITQ five-year review coming 36 

up. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I know at a previous meeting we discussed that 39 

the review was coming up and there was some discussion of can we 40 

do it before the five years actually gets here or do we have to 41 

wait until the five years, but I would suggest if we’re going to 42 

do this that the individuals that were on the original panel 43 

that voted and supported and asked for whatever the measures 44 

were that made up the entire plan, that they be reappointed to 45 

that panel. 46 

 47 

If you wanted to add a couple more, that would be fine, but it’s 48 
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something they designed, I think they’re going to have to be the 1 

ones to give us a lot of information on it. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, there’s going to be a lot of other people 4 

potentially involved and we couldn’t restrict it to them.  Julie 5 

or Ed, do you want to comment on that or suggest a committee 6 

where we could begin discussion? 7 

 8 

MS. MORRIS:  I was going to go someplace else.  It seems like we 9 

had hoped to have, for the April meeting, some staff looking 10 

forward comments or ideas about red snapper and the upcoming 11 

review and what were the kinds of issues we anticipated with red 12 

snapper that we needed to be thinking about.  I don’t know -- 13 

That was pulled from the agenda I think at the council 14 

chairman’s suggestion and I would hope that we haven’t lost our 15 

intent to do that. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, what I would suggest is anyone who has any 18 

thoughts or suggestions on that, pass them on to Steve or Bob or 19 

myself and we will place it in the appropriate committee, 20 

because I certainly agree that time is getting close and we 21 

cannot wait until the five years have passed.  We have to 22 

address it in anticipation and it’s probably going to take three 23 

or four council meetings to develop a plan or advice on this. 24 

 25 

We will put it on the agenda in the appropriate place and begin 26 

discussion at the August meeting, Dr. Bortone.  Now can we 27 

adjourn?  We are adjourned until Pensacola. 28 

 29 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 2:30 p.m., June 17, 2010.) 30 

 31 

- - - 32 

33 
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TABLE OF MOTIONS 1 

 2 

PAGE 64:  Motion to request an emergency rule to authorize the 3 

Regional Administrator to reopen the recreational red snapper 4 

season after the September 30, 2010 closure, to allow the 2010 5 

quota to be harvested.  The motion carried on page 73. 6 

 7 

PAGE 85:  Motion that Action 2 be modified into a discussion.  8 

The motion carried on page 86. 9 

 10 

PAGE 86:  Motion that staff develop a solution to the problem of 11 

quota increases and ACLs and present it to the council.  The 12 

motion carried on page 86. 13 

 14 

PAGE 87:  Motion to add the following as Alternative 5 to Action 15 

3: If, for a given species of species group, the catches of all 16 

sectors in aggregate exceed the aggregate of all sector ACLs, 17 

the target catch levels for each sector for the following year 18 

will remain at the previous year's level.  In addition, any 19 

applicable overage adjustment will be applied to the sector or 20 

sectors that exceed their respective ACLs.  The motion carried 21 

on page 87. 22 

 23 

PAGE 87:  Motion that in Action 5 that an alternative be added 24 

that would exempt spear fishermen from the multispecies closure 25 

of shallow-water grouper and only apply the gag closure to them.  26 

The motion carried on page 90. 27 

 28 

PAGE 91:  Motion that the dead discard estimates in the 29 

alternatives in Action 6.1 be reevaluated in the context of the 30 

observer data and that expected increases in commercial dead 31 

discards through the actions in this Amendment 32 be projected.  32 

The motion carried on page 93. 33 

 34 

PAGE 93:  Motion that Action 6.1 and Action 6.2 be removed from 35 

the options paper and that those recreational alternatives be 36 

embedded into Action 5 and either create a new action for 37 

commercial management measures or move it into the appropriate 38 

existing action.  The motion carried on page 93. 39 

 40 

PAGE 94:  Motion to request an interim rule that reflects 41 

setting the commercial quota at 390,000 pounds for 2011, and 42 

closes the recreational harvest of gag for the interim rule 43 

period with the expectation that recreational management defined 44 

in Amendment 32 will define what recreational harvest is allowed 45 

during the balance of 2011 and suspends red grouper multi-use 46 

shares.  The motion carried on page 98. 47 

 48 
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PAGE 99:  Motion that in the Red Grouper Regulatory Amendment, 1 

Action 3.1, that Action 3 be the preferred alternative.  2 

Alternative 3 is to set the 2011 total allowable catch based on 3 

the yield projection for fishing at FOY, using the projection 4 

scenario recommended by the Scientific and Statistical Committee 5 

for setting the acceptable biological catch.  Total allowable 6 

catch would be 5.68 million pounds gutted weight for 2011.  7 

Based on the 76 percent/24 percent commercial to recreational 8 

allocation of red grouper, the commercial quota would be 4.32 9 

million pounds gutted weight and the recreational allocation 10 

would be 1.36 million pounds gutted weight for 2011.  The total 11 

allowable catch and commercial quota would remain at the 2011 12 

levels until modified by a subsequent amendment or framework 13 

procedure.  The motion carried on page 105. 14 

 15 

PAGE 105:  Motion that the council submit the Red Grouper 16 

Regulatory Amendment to the Secretary of Commerce and that the 17 

council deems the rules as necessary and appropriate.  The 18 

motion carried on page 107. 19 

 20 

PAGE 107:  Motion to select Alternative 4, which would have the 21 

closed season be June 1 through July 31.  The motion carried on 22 

page 110. 23 

 24 

PAGE 110:  Motion to defer final action on the Greater Amberjack 25 

Regulatory Amendment until August.  The motion carried on page 26 

110. 27 

 28 

PAGE 110:  Motion that the council accept the buoy gear 29 

definition as described in the Tab E Handout.  Buoy gear means 30 

fishing gear intended to fish vertically in the water column 31 

that consists of a single drop line suspended from a float, from 32 

which a limited number of hooks are suspended, and the terminal 33 

end of the drop line contains a weight that is no more than ten 34 

pounds.  The drop line can be rope (hemp, manila, cotton or 35 

other natural fibers; nylon, polypropylene, spectra or other 36 

synthetic material) or monofilament, but must not be cable or 37 

wire.  The gear is free-floating and not connected to other gear 38 

or the vessel.  The drop line must be no greater than two times 39 

the depth of the water being fished.  No more than ten hooks can 40 

be connected to the drop line between the buoy and the weighted 41 

terminal end.  All hooks must be attached to the drop line no 42 

more than thirty feet from the weighted terminal end.  These 43 

hooks may be attached directly to the drop line; attached as 44 

snoods (defined as an offshoot line that is directly spliced, 45 

tied or otherwise connected to the drop line), where each snood 46 

has a single terminal hook; or as gangions (defined as an 47 

offshoot line connected to the drop line with some type of 48 
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detachable clip), where each gangion has a single terminal hook.  1 

The motion carried on page 111. 2 

 3 

PAGE 111:  Motion that staff add an action to Reef Fish 4 

Amendment 32 to allow the Regional Administrator under certain 5 

conditions, such as, but not limited to, hurricanes and oil 6 

spills, to temporarily suspend the earned income requirement for 7 

reef fish permit renewal.  The motion carried on page 113. 8 

 9 

PAGE 117:  Motion to request that the Gulf Council and South 10 

Atlantic Council staff work together to develop alternative 11 

methods for allocating black grouper catch between the two 12 

council areas and those be reviewed at the August Gulf Council 13 

meeting.  The motion carried on page 117. 14 

 15 

PAGE 120:  Motion to remove Alternatives 2 and 3 from Action 1 16 

and move them to the Considered but Rejected Appendix.  The 17 

motion carried on page 120. 18 

 19 

PAGE 121:  Motion to add individual alternatives or options to 20 

remove the individual species that are currently listed in the 21 

management unit for data collection purposes.  The motion 22 

carried on page 121. 23 

 24 

PAGE 121:  Motion that any of the species currently listed in 25 

the management unit for data collection purposes, before they 26 

are added to the plan, should be assessed by a SEDAR assessment 27 

approved by the Gulf Committee.  The motion carried on page 122. 28 

 29 

PAGE 122:  Motion to accept Alternatives 1 through 5.  The 30 

motion carried on page 123. 31 

 32 

PAGE 123:  Motion to accept the alternatives for Action 6 as 33 

presented.  The motion carried on page 123. 34 

 35 

PAGE 123:  Motion to accept the three alternatives for Action 7.  36 

The motion carried on page 123. 37 

 38 

PAGE 123:  Motion to accept the alternatives for Action 8.  The 39 

motion carried on page 124. 40 

 41 

PAGE 124:  Motion to add an alternative that matches what is 42 

listed for Spanish mackerel in Action 11.  The motion carried on 43 

page 124. 44 

 45 

PAGE 124:  Motion to accept the alternatives for Action 9, with 46 

the intent to add a subalternative for runaround gillnets.  The 47 

motion carried on page 125. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 125:  Motion that Actions 10, 11, and 12 be accepted with 2 

no changes.  The motion carried on page 125. 3 

 4 

PAGE 132:  Motion to convene the Mackerel LAPP AP at a 5 

convenient time relative to Amendment 18.  The motion carried on 6 

page 132. 7 

 8 

PAGE 134:  Motion that Action 1, Delegate Management of the 9 

Spiny Lobster FMP to Florida FWC, be moved to the Considered but 10 

Rejected Appendix.  The motion carried on page 134. 11 

 12 

PAGE 134:  Motion that Option A, which is smoothtail spiny 13 

lobster, and Option B, which is spotted spiny lobster, under 14 

Alternative 2 for setting ACLs and AMs be moved to the 15 

Considered but Rejected Appendix.  The motion carried on page 16 

134. 17 

 18 

PAGE 135:  Motion that the preferred option be to list these 19 

species as an ecosystem component species, Option A, smoothtail 20 

lobster, and Option B, spotted spiny lobster.  The motion 21 

carried on page 135. 22 

 23 

PAGE 136:  Motion to add a subalternative of an option of not 24 

subdividing the commercial allocation.  The motion carried on 25 

page 137. 26 

 27 

PAGE 137:  Motion that Alternative 2, set an ACL for the entire 28 

stock based on the acceptable biological catch, Option A, ACL 29 

equals ABC, be the preferred.  The motion carried on page 137. 30 

 31 

PAGE 137:  Motion that Alternative 1, no action, do not set 32 

ACTs, be the preferred.  The motion carried on page 137. 33 

 34 

PAGE 143:  Motion to adopt the following language in Section D 35 

of the Travel Guidelines in place of the highlighted language in 36 

Tab E-3: Lodging will not be authorized if commuting is fifty 37 

miles or less, except for council meetings (committees and 38 

council of the whole) and other council related meetings as 39 

approved in advance in writing.  The motion carried on page 143. 40 

 41 

PAGE 143:  Motion that on page 11 that the list of current 42 

management committees of the council will include the seven 43 

fishery management plans in the list 1 through 7; add an eighth 44 

item entitled “Other Management Committees Approved by the 45 

Council”; remove “Marine Reserves” and “Sustainable 46 

Fisheries/Ecosystem” from the list of committees; and remove the 47 

word “Current” and replace it with the word “Fishery” in this 48 
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section.  The motion carried on page 144. 1 

 2 

PAGE 146:  Motion that on page 12, in order to avoid a specific 3 

reference to a staff position, by consensus, the committee 4 

approved changing the word “habitat support specialist” to 5 

“staff” on page 12, Habitat Protection, third paragraph.  The 6 

motion carried on page 146. 7 

 8 

PAGE 146:  Motion to remove the reference to the “Council 9 

Coordination Committee” (CCC) from the list of committees on 10 

page 13.  The motion carried on page 148. 11 

 12 

PAGE 149:  Motion to delete the second sentence, “Ordinarily a 13 

meeting will be held each two months” on page 16, XII.C., 14 

Frequency and Duration.  The motion carried on page 149. 15 

 16 

PAGE 150:  Motion to approve adding the word “geographic” before 17 

the word “location” on page 19, XIII.A.  The motion carried on 18 

page 150. 19 

 20 

PAGE 150:  Motion to recommend to the council that the SOPPs be 21 

adopted as amended.  The motion carried on page 150. 22 

 23 

PAGE 150:  Motion to add the following underlined sentence on 24 

Page 16 of the SOPPs, XII., A., Meetings of the Council, 25 

Committees, and Advisory Groups: “A. General: The Council 26 

will meet at the call of the Council Chair or upon request of a 27 

majority of its voting members.  Meetings will ordinarily be 28 

held in plenary sessions, but may be in subgroups or in 29 

individual sessions.  The Council’s SSC and APs will meet with 30 

the approval of the Council Chair.  The SSC shall hold its 31 

meetings in conjunction with the meeting of the Council to the 32 

extent practicable.  All participants are to keep electronic 33 

devices on silent or vibrating mode during Council meetings.”  34 

The motion failed on page 153. 35 

 36 

PAGE 153:  Motion to remove the third, fourth, and fifth 37 

sentences on page 64 of the Draft Administrative Handbook, 38 

Policy on Minority Reports, which are:  “If voting members are 39 

to utilize staff assistance in preparation of a minority 40 

position on an FMP or amendment, they must declare their intent 41 

to do so at the time the majority approves the FMP or amendment.  42 

The Council Chair will ask for a statement of such intent 43 

immediately following the roll call vote on the plan or 44 

amendment.  If such members request staff assistance, where 45 

possible the Council Chair shall provide time during the course 46 

of that meeting for minority members to meet with staff to 47 

outline, verbally or in writing, the minority position and 48 
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discuss (and record) supporting rationale.”  The motion carried 1 

on page 156. 2 

 3 

PAGE 156:  Motion to request that the Habitat Protection 4 

Committee be assigned the task of updating the Habitat Policy 5 

and Procedures section in the Administrative Handbook.  The 6 

motion carried on page 156. 7 

 8 

PAGE 157:  Motion to convene the Vessel Monitoring System 9 

Advisory Panel to discuss the VMS and other hardware programs 10 

that are available to the fishery for monitoring.  The motion 11 

carried on page 157. 12 

 13 

PAGE 162:  Motion that the council support the formation of the 14 

red drum ABC working group as recommended by the SSC.  The 15 

motion carried on page 163. 16 

 17 

PAGE 164:  Motion that for Action 2 that Alternative 3 be the 18 

preferred alternative.  Select species groupings based on 19 

National Marine Fisheries Service stock groupings analysis.  20 

Group ACLs will be established for each group.  In addition, 21 

individual ACLs will be established for single-species sub-22 

groups and multi-species sub-groups within each group.  These 23 

are on pages 34 and 35 of the options paper.  The motion carried 24 

on page 164. 25 

 26 

PAGE 164:  Motion that for subgroups where we have no 27 

assessment, do not use an indicator species.  The motion carried 28 

on page 164. 29 

 30 

PAGE 164:  Motion that for the Mid/Deepwater Snapper group, sub-31 

group 1-C in Alternative 3, that Option E be the preferred 32 

option, that vermilion snapper be the indicator species for the 33 

group that contains vermilion and lane snappers.  The motion 34 

carried on page 164. 35 

 36 

PAGE 165:  Motion that for the Mid/Deepwater Snapper group, sub-37 

groups 1C, vermilion snapper and lane snapper, and 1D, blackfin 38 

snapper and silk snapper, be combined into a single subgroup.  39 

The motion carried on page 165. 40 

 41 

PAGE 165:  Motion that the ABC control rules in Table 2.4.1 42 

under Number 2 be modified to have alternatives that ABC is 43 

equal to 85 percent of OFL proxy, 75 percent, and 65 percent and 44 

to also include an alternative that ABC equals OFL.  The motion 45 

carried on page 168. 46 

 47 

PAGE 169:  Motion that in Section 2.7.6, that Alternative 3 be 48 
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used as the method to determine whether a stock is undergoing 1 

overfishing.  The MFMT method will be used to determine 2 

overfishing for stocks or stock complexes which have stock 3 

assessments and estimates of current fishing mortality rates and 4 

maximum fishing mortality threshold only in years in which a 5 

stock assessment is conducted.  For other years, and for stocks 6 

or stock complexes without stock assessments or without 7 

estimates of fishing mortality and maximum fishing mortality 8 

threshold, the OFL method will be used to determine overfishing.  9 

The motion carried on page 169. 10 

 11 

PAGE 170:  Motion that the council request that staff add an 12 

action to periodically review the ACLs and landings to comply 13 

with the Magnuson Act.  The motion carried on page 170. 14 

 15 

PAGE 170:  Motion that public hearings for the Generic ACL/AM 16 

Amendment be held in the following locations.  In Florida, 17 

Panama City, St. Petersburg, Fort Myers, and Marathon.  In 18 

Alabama, Mobile.  In Mississippi, the Biloxi area and in 19 

Louisiana, the New Orleans airport area and in Texas, Galveston 20 

and Corpus Christi.  All of the above locations are also 21 

Amendment 32 locations, except for Corpus Christi.  The motion 22 

carried on page 171. 23 

 24 

PAGE 171:  Motion to remove the shrimp discussion from the 25 

Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  The motion carried on page 172. 26 

 27 

PAGE 177:  Motion that on the next council agenda to set aside 28 

some time to review the past discussion sections in Reef Fish 29 

Amendment 27/Shrimp Amendment 14 and any other materials to 30 

inform the discussion on the pros and cons of regionalized 31 

management.  The motion carried on page 180. 32 

 33 

PAGE 180:  Motion to instruct staff to request that funding for 34 

Reef Fish Amendment 28 be carried forward into 2011.  The motion 35 

carried on page 181. 36 
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